5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Cabinet

Date:  Thursday 20 January 2011

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Sally Cole, Committee Manager Executive
Tel: (01432) 260249
Email: scole@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Sally Cole, Committee Manager
Executive on (01432) 260249 or e-mail scole@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet

Membership

Chairman Councillor RJ Phillips
Vice-Chairman

Councillor LO Barnett
Councillor AJM Blackshaw
Councillor H Bramer
Councillor JP French
Councillor JA Hyde
Councillor JG Jarvis
Councillor PD Price
Councillor DB Wilcox

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

The Council’'s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s)
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial. Councillors have to decide
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion. They will then have to
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial.

A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council. Councillors
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area. If they do have a personal
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor. What Councillors have
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public — if he or she knew all the facts — would think
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it. If a Councillor
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is. A Councillor who has declared a
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak. In such
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on
the same terms. However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 20 JANUARY 2011

AGENDA
Pages

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on

the Agenda.
3. MINUTES 1-4

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2010.

4, JOINT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/14 AND BUDGET | 5-84
UPDATE 2011/12

To agree the budget and Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for
recommendation to Council on 4 February 2011.

5. JOINT CORPORATE PLAN 2011/14 85-90

To invite Cabinet to commend for Council’s approval the Council and NHS
Herefordshire Joint Corporate Plan vision, priorities and long-term outcomes
attached at appendix 1.

6. RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW OF HOME CARE 91 - 126
To respond to the review of home care.
7. REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES | 127 - 216

To be advised of the outcome of a joint review of third sector support and
development services; to approve the principles for future delivery and
delegate authority to officers to deliver the proposal, in conjunction with
relevant voluntary and community organisations.







The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting.

e Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six
years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to
four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a report is
given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on which the officer
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately
every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with
Old Eign Hill. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the
southern entrance to the car park. A check will be undertaken to
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building
following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the
exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to
collect coats or other personal belongings.

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer

waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA).

%(:9 Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel
environmental label



AGENDA ITEM 3

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at The Council
Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Thursday 16
December 2010 at 2.00 pm

Present: Councillor RJ Phillips (Chairman)

Councillors: AJM Blackshaw, JA Hyde, PD Price and DB Wilcox

In attendance: Councillors PA Andrews, WLS Bowen, PJ Edwards, TM James, Rl Matthews,
PM Morgan, WU Attfield and MAF Hubbard

73. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors: LO Barnett, Cabinet Member Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing, H Bramer, Cabinet Member Resources and JP French, Cabinet
Member Corporate & Customer Services and Human Resources.

74. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

6. RESPONSE TO CALL IN OF DILWYN SCHOOL CLOSURE.
Councillor AJM Blackshaw, Personal, School Governor, Canon Pyon CE Primary School.

6. RESPONSE TO CALL IN OF DILWYN SCHOOL CLOSURE.
Councillor RJ Phillips, Personal, School Governor, Pembridge CE Primary School.

6. RESPONSE TO CALL IN OF DILWYN SCHOOL CLOSURE.
Councillor WLS Bowen, Personal, School Governor, Kingsland CE Primary School.

75. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2010 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Note: The Leader of the Council advised Cabinet that the local government settlement had
been received on Monday 13 December. He reminded Cabinet that an all Member
seminar was to be held on Monday 10 January 2011 to address the issues of the
settlement as the cut in funding had been 13.3%, which was a larger cut than had
been expected. The Leader added that a general press release would be made to the
local papers today, 16 December

76. 2011 CENSUS LIAISON

The Leader advised Cabinet of the need to raise public awareness of the forthcoming
Census and how essential it was to the authority for future funding from central government.

A Senior Research Officer presented the report to Cabinet and the following comments were
made/questions raised:

o Herefordshire Council was working closely with the Office for National Statistics.




77.

e Cabinet was reminded of the hand book that had been sent to all Councillors
regarding the Census and Census day was 27 March 2011.

¢ Reminded Cabinet of the need for all Councillors to raise the issue in their ward
as there would not be the same degree of national publicity as in previous years.

e There had been a 94% response for the last Census and it was hoped to
increase the response rate as the authority could lose out in future government
funding if the detail was not gathered through the Census - current funding is
based on 2001 statistics.

o There would be door to door visits to all households that didn’t respond by post or
online to gather the Census information.

e Currently there was a campaign to get Census collectors to carry out these visits
for ONS — 100 needed for the county.

o Assistance would be provided for anyone with a language difficulty and posters
would be available in different languages to raise awareness.

RESOLVED
THAT Cabinet:

a) recognised the importance of supporting the Office for National
Statistics to ensure the 2011 Census response is maximised in
Herefordshire;

b) noted the ongoing liaison activities; and

¢) encouraged all Members to use the information in the Office for
National Statistics Councillor Handbook to help spread the work
in their communities.

JOINT CAPITAL AND ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2010-13

The Head of Financial Services presented the report to Cabinet and reminded Cabinet
that it was a joint strategy for both the Council and NHS Herefordshire for the approach
to capital investment and disposal over the short and long term to deliver core service
priorities.

Cabinet discussed the following points:

The priorities for Herefordshire both current and future.

e Noted that the assessment of assets and joint management approach by
Herefordshire was a forerunner at to how other authorities would need to proceed
in the future.

e |n assessing assets held by the authority, it was noted that some buildings were
old and would require considerable maintenance and in line with this the authority
needed to be mindful of its requirement to reduce its carbon footprint.

e Cabinet was reminded that Herefordshire was a net beneficiary of business rates
and any changes to the scheme could have considerable impact for the county.

e This local government settlement only covers a two year period. Any proposal to
change the business rates scheme was currently out for consultation.
Herefordshire would be asking questions on the proposals through the
consultation process to try to ensure a sound system was brought in place of the
current system.

o Cabinet was reminded that not only salaries in the county were low, but also
profit levels of some businesses.

e Following reference to the new livestock market and the interest by those
companies wishing to relocate to the units available, Cabinet was advised there
was a mixture of current companies wishing to relocate and new companies



wishing to take up units to make the new market the agricultural hub for the
county.

e Cabinet was reminded that it was clear through the local government settlement
that funds would not be available for capital programmes and therefore, funding
needed to be found through asset disposal.

¢ In referring to capital costs in locality working, Cabinet was advised this would be
looked at on a case by case basis and through the recycling of assets.

o Discussion was held on the Localities Bill and the issues that would be raised
because of it. A request was made that further information on the bill be provided
to Members at the earliest opportunity.

RESOLVED: That the Joint Capital and Asset Management Strategy be approved.

78. RESPONSE TO CALL IN OF DILWYN SCHOOL CLOSURE
Cabinet was provided with an extract from the minutes of the Children’s Services
Scrutiny Committee meeting, which resolved that, the Committee accepted the decision
of Cabinet with no further comment.
It was noted that the Cabinet decision of 25 November would take effect and that Dilwyn
Church of England Primary School be discontinued on 31 August 2011.

The meeting ended at 2.35 pm CHAIRMAN






AGENDA ITEM 4

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 20 JANUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | JOINT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

2011/14 AND BUDGET UPDATE 2011/12

PORTFOLIO: CORPORATE STRATEGY & FINANCE

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To agree the budget and Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for recommendation to
Council on 4 February 2011.

Recommendation(s)

THAT (a) the attached MTFS including the overall 2011/12 budget be agreed for

recommendation to Council; and

(b) a freeze of Council Tax for 2011/12 at 2010/11 levels be agreed for
recommendation to Council.

Key Points Summary

A set of principles and priorities has been developed, and used to assess all proposals and
the resultant service changes.

On 14 January 2011 Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered a report on the JMTFS
and Budget Update; their views will be reported to Cabinet on 20 January.

The Council will set its Council Tax on 4 March 2011 based on a balanced budget. It cannot
budget for a deficit. Any proposals to increase expenditure in one service area must be
matched by compensatory reductions elsewhere in the budget.

The analysis of the provisional local government settlement has confirmed a number of grants
have ceased, others have reduced and are now part of the “general” Formula Grant.

Herefordshire has been adversely affected by funding formula changes.
The 2011/12 net Budget total is £148.28m.

A Star Chamber process has been used by JMT to identify and challenge savings proposals

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
David Powell, Director of Resources on (01432) 383519

11 JANUARY 2011



and service pressures.

The budget makes temporary use of reserves to support concessionary fares and to balance
the impact of reductions over the two years financial years of the settlement.

A budget management reserve is proposed in order to provide adequate financial reserves.

Alternative Options

1

Joint Management Team (JMT) has proposed a balanced budget for 2011/12 and this is
summarised in the Financial Resource Model (FRM) in the attached MTFS. It incorporates
inflation, service pressures and other spending requirements, the financing of which has been
identified from within the Formula Grant, service efficiencies & reductions and council tax.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

The proposed MTFS, shown in Appendix A, provides a financial planning framework for the
next three years.

Introduction and Background

4

On 20 January 2011, Cabinet is requested to consider the budget proposals set out in the
MTFS, in order to make a recommendation to Council for setting the 2011/12 revenue budget
based on holding Council Tax at current levels.

The provisional Local Government Settlement was announced on 13" December 2010; the
key components were:

e The Formula Grant, which includes Revenue Support Grant and Redistributed Business
Rates, is set at £60.125m. It is unlikely there will be changes to this figure when the final
settlement is published 20 January 2011.

¢ Indicative figures have been provided for 2012/13. This confirms a continuing tightening
financial picture for local government.

The Department for Education has yet to provide an overall Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)
estimate for 2011/12. However, we know that per pupil funding will be £4,723.65 per pupil.
The planning total being used by the Council is 22,467 pupils.

Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR10)

7

CSR10, announced on 20 October 2010, was largely in line with the anticipated position and
this in turn influenced the provisional Local Government Settlement announced on 13"
December 2010. In summary CSR10 meant the following for Herefordshire:

e If local authorities wish to take part in the voluntary scheme, Council Tax in 2011/12 will
‘have the tax base funded at a rate of 2.5% in each year of CSR10’. Herefordshire
intends to take advantage of this to freeze council tax.

o By 2014/15, £1bn will be put into Formula Grant for Personal Social Services, meaning
total funding for social care, including rolled-in grants, will be £2.4bn; in 2011/12 the
addition is £530m. In 2011/12 this is an additional £1.96m for Herefordshire and a further
£1.48m in 2012/13.

o £1bn of funding will be provided through the NHS budget to support joint working between



the NHS and local authorities in the provision of social care. For Herefordshire this is
£2.368m, and will be transferred from the NHS against an agreed business case.

e All ring fencing on grants will be removed, apart from a total of nine grants including the
Dedicated Schools Grant and a new grant for public health, to be introduced in 2013. For
Herefordshire this means we will have only six specific grants.

e The schools budget for 5 to 16 year olds will increase by 0.1% in real terms each year of
the Spending Review period; this includes £2.5bn of funding allocated at £430 per pupil in
receipt of free school meals. In 2011/12 Herefordshire estimates it will receive just over
£1m. Further instalments are expected in future years.

e The number of transport grants to councils is to be reduced; however, councils will gain
greater control and flexibility over spending these grants.

e Bus Operators’ Subsidy will be reduced by 20%, but the statutory concessionary travel
entitlements remain in place.

e The ‘New Homes Bonus’ will be introduced to ‘reward’ councils granting planning
permission for the construction of new homes, by matching Council Tax receipts for each
new home built for a number of years, with an additional premium added. It is estimated
that this will provide £660k per annum.

o The Regional Growth Fund totals over £1.4bn over three years. A panel will assess
funding bids from Local Enterprise Partnerships as well as the private sector.

e Revenue grants to local authorities from DfT will be reduced by 28%.

e From April 2011 grants currently paid outside Formula Grant worth more than £4bn, will
be rolled into Formula Grant. For Herefordshire this is an estimated £13.55m.

e From 2013/14 Council Tax Benefit (CTB) will be localised. We await details of this
change.

The announcement on 13 December included a significant factor that added to the pressure
already faced in 2011/12. This sees the front loading of funding reductions and the profile of
reduction is therefore uneven with Herefordshire facing 13.3%, 8.6% and 1.9% reductions for
the next three years.

Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2010

9

10

11

12

The provisional settlement was announced on 13 December 2010 and remains subject to
consultation until 20 January 2011. As previously indicated CSR10 and the subsequent
provisional settlement form part of the Government’s deficit reduction plan. In year savings for
2010/11 have already been made.

The provisional settlement gives local government greater flexibility to take decisions locally.
Restrictions have been lifted on how local government spends its money by removing “ring
fences”. The intention is to give councils extra flexibility to make decisions about where
savings are found. However, this is subject to the usual rules to ensure that capital funding is
used on capital expenditure.

The provisional settlement covers two years (unlike CSR10 that covers the next four years).
The shorter time frame is because local government is expected to have a new funding
distribution system from 2013. It is anticipated that consultation on changes will commence in
2011.

The number of specific grants has reduced dramatically. In 2011/12 Herefordshire will receive
only six specific grants compared with approximately 70 it received in 2010/11. The majority
of funding is now via the general Formula Grant and this has been subject to a significant
reduction of £11.008m for 2011/12 when compared with a like for like 2010/11 total for



13

14

15

16

17

Formula Grant (plus grants rolled into Formula Grant for 2010/11).

follows, and the table shows its impact of the overall savings target:

In summary this is as

£000
2010/11 Formula grant 57,583
Grants rolled into Formula Grant 13,550
TOTAL 71,133
2011/12 Formula Grant 60,155
TOTAL loss in Formula grant 11,008
Grants reduced or ceased -2,566
NHS funding transferred to the Council 2,368
Net funding reduction 11,206
Budget no longer required in 2011/12 -904
Total savings required for 2011/12 10,302

In addition a number of grants have been reduced or have ceased and these total £2.566m.
However, £2.368m in NHS funding transferred to the Council to provide support for Social
Care. After the removal of changes in budget only valid for 2010/11 the net savings
requirement is £10.302m.

The Council will receive £1.961m as part of the national allocation for Personal Social
Services but this is within the 2011/12 formula grant total of £60.155m.

As part of the Local Government Settlement, the government reviews the funding formula that
distributes funding to local authorities. The provisional settlement indicates that the Council
has been badly hit by changes to the formula. The net change in grant is £2.7m, with the main
variation arising from changes to concessionary travel funding distribution.

Changes to the funding formula in relation to funding to support concessionary bus fares, has
adversely affected Herefordshire.

The formula grant consultation launched in the summer of 2010 presented 40 options for the
transfer, with losses ranging from £1.5m-£3.5m for Herefordshire, based on the 2010/11
settlement. Due to the inherent unfairness of the transfer for unitary authorities we worked
with organisations such as SPARSE Rural, the SCT and the LGA to persuade the government
of this view. Subsequently, a 41% option was considered, which ensured a zero loss for all
unitary authorities. This option was not supported by Government.

Budget and Policy Process

18

The authority has been preparing for the funding reduction for some time. In late 2009 there
was evidence that the public finances would be reduced to meet the growing national deficit.
As a result the process of preparing for the 2011/12 budget commenced as part of setting the



19

20

21

22

23

current year’s (2010/11) budget. In 2009 Directorates were asked to submit proposals for an
anticipated 5% year on year reduction as part of the overall resource allocation framework.
This approach used an estimated 15% reduction in government funding over three years that
represented a best estimate in 2009 of an approach to address the national deficit. These
figures were built into the 2010 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) agreed by Council in
March 2010.

A series of meetings (Star Chambers) have been held by JMT in preparation for the
anticipated financial pressures ahead which challenged proposals for meeting savings targets
and financial pressures. Over the same period, Cabinet has met informally to consider the
emerging picture. Consideration has also been given to assessing the impact across
Herefordshire Public Services (HPS). These preparations were focussed on the anticipated
dates of Government announcements.

The provisional Local Government Settlement was announced on 13 December 2010. This
was one of the latest announcements in recent times. The settlement includes a reduction in
formula grant funding of £11.008m when comparing a rebased 2010/11 funding position with
2011/12. After taking into account further reductions and allowing for additional allocations of
social care funding there is a net funding loss of £11.206m in 2011/12.

It is proposed that the 2011/12 budget will also include the setting up of a budget management
reserve to be held on the balance sheet. In line with current policy the general fund reserve
will remain at a minimum of 3% of net budget. This means that the general fund reserve will
be £4.5m in 2011/12.

Star Chambers

The overall budget and policy process is now concluding. The Star Chambers had four key
aims:

¢ To sign off the ongoing 5% savings previously identified for 2010 and beyond.
o To review future savings identified in Star Chambers earlier in 2010.

o To identify further cross-cutting savings from the ‘Rising to the Challenge’ transformation
programme and challenge existing proposals. These are primarily Streamlining the
Business (shared services, organisational redesign, office accommodation and
commercial strategy), People & Performance (reducing the pay bill, agency spend),
Communities First (property review) and Customer Services (replacement CRM).

e To challenge and review all submitted service pressures.
The Star Chamber process used a set of core principles and priorities to guide the search for
further savings and the necessary service changes. These re-emphasised the need to bring

policy based issues to the centre of the process. Given the financial challenge ahead, the
following core principles for the future were agreed.

PRINCIPLE IMPACT

Valued Services * Focusing on what matters to people, core business,
stopping things we don’t need to do



Cutting Red Tape

Supporting the Vulnerable

Cutting Costs

Local Delivery

Personal Responsibility

Less regulation and bureaucracy, smaller local
government

Targeting more resources on individuals, families,
communities at risk or disadvantaged; early
intervention/prevention

Reducing the pay bill; third party spend savings; smarter

delivery

Devolution, role of parishes and the VCS; working through
the nine localities

Self reliance, people and communities helping
themselves, behavioural change

Alongside these principles the priorities to be delivered in the medium term were expressed in
the form of the Joint Corporate Plan, which appears elsewhere on the Cabinet agenda.

PRIORITY

A resilient Herefordshire

Creating a strong
economy

Raising Standards for
Children & Young people

Improving Health Care
and Social Care

Promoting self reliant
local communities

Commissioning the right
services

IMPACT

Preserving our environment and access to the countryside
Promoting access to services in rural areas

Strong voice in the region

Regeneration of Hereford; delivery of ESG

Delivery of key infrastructure for growth

Small business growth: jobs and wages; broadband
An affordable education system

Meeting safeguarding standards

Increasing primary school and pupil performance
Reforming care for Older People

Creation of the ICO: April 2011

Planning for GP Consortium and Health Promotion
changes

A balanced housing market

Reducing fear of crime

Encourage community and parish planning
Streamlining working practices

High levels of customers and citizen satisfaction

A High quality workforce

10



25

26

The Rising to the Challenge programme is the prime delivery mechanism for the budget
saving and organisation change which the proposals represent. Realisation of benefits will be
a key focus of this, with individual directors being accountable for delivery.

Given the provisional settlement only covers two years, more detailed financial planning over
the two year period has been conducted based on the Joint Corporate Plan. The settlement
announced on 13 December 2010 was worse than anticipated in terms of total reduction and
timing of the reductions and therefore required a further phase. This led to the development of
a further set of principles to help refine the budget proposals. These principles are as follows:

Grant reductions and grants that have ceased won’t be back-filled and therefore the grant-
funded activity will cease with the grant. If the service considers the activity to be critical
and therefore wish to continue funding, compensatory savings must be made from
elsewhere within the relevant directorate budget.

Any growth requirement will need to be self funded by directorates.

The additional sums provided for Adult Social Care as part of the settlement and also via
Health (on the basis of an agreed business case) will be added to the overall control total
for Adult Services. This amounts to £4.329m.

There will not be any additional capital borrowing in 2011 apart from meeting agreed prior
year decisions that still have a sound business case, any Health & Safety issues or where
borrowing commitments cover projects already being delivered. Spend-to-save funding
will be made available where a sound business case demonstrates a positive revenue
contribution.

Inflation at 2% will be applied to budgets, and discretionary fees and charges. An holistic
review of fees and charges, as part of the emerging income policy, will be undertaken in
the coming months; any future decisions arising from that review regarding levels of fees
and charges will need to take account of consequent implications for the overall budget.

Savings proposals identified for 2012/13 to be reviewed to assess if these could be
brought forward.

Budget Setting Principles

27

The attached draft Medium Term Financial Strategy includes the Council’s financial model.
This indicates the amounts built in to meet unavoidable commitments. It also includes
reductions to balance the budget. Key points included in the model are as follows;

a. Inflation: The model includes net inflation of £2.962m. In previous years inflation has
not been applied to the budget as part of efficiency savings. This approach is no
longer sustainable and therefore inflation is included as part of the 2011/12 budget
framework.

b. Additional funding for Adult Social Care: The council will passport to Adult Social Care
the £1.96m for Adult Services included in the formula grant and the £2.368m of funding
from the NHS included in the CSR10 announcement. In order to support the
transformation of Adult Services £750k of funding will also go to Adult Services. This
will enable a continuation of the activity commenced using the 2010/11 social care
reform grant that is now part of general funding in 2011/12. After the provision of
inflation the gross addition is £6m.

11



. Shared Services: Funding and savings associated with the Shared Services
programme is included in the financial model.

. Budget Management Reserve: The potential pressures associated with the reduction in
funding will require adequate reserves. The budget will include a £500k contribution to
a specific budget management reserve. This will be brought to a level of £1m by the
addition of £500k following a review of existing specific reserves.

. Change Management Reserve: In 2010/11 a reserve was established to support costs
associated with staff reductions. In 2011/12 the annual budget will increase to £1m.

Use of Reserves: Changes to the local government funding formula remove £2.7m of
funding in 2011/12. The main reduction affects concessionary fare funding. In
2010/11 gross expenditure on concessionary fares of £1.8m is projected. In order to
support concessionary fares’ funding it is proposed £1m is temporarily used from
specific reserves to ease financial pressure. This demonstrates the benefits of
financial planning over more than one year with the sum being repaid in 2012/13 and
to be included in the budget for that year.

. The council will take advantage of government funding up to 2.5% of council tax
increase and this is included in our financial plan. For Herefordshire this is £2.15m;

. An additional 0.7% of pay is included for the outcome of the actuary’s revaluation of the
pension fund;

The front loading of government funding reductions announced in CSR10 is now
included in the financial plan.

Savings proposals

28 Savings proposals have been framed within an agreed set of principles.

In summary, the

proposals can be analysed by directorate or principle as set out in the two tables below.

29 The following tables provide the summarised information by directorate.

2011/12 2012/13 TOTAL

£000 £000 £000

Adult Services 2,649 2,383 5,032
CYPD 1,747 839 2,586
DCX 1,033 853 1,886
Public Health 297 278 575
Resources 576 338 914
Sustainable Communities 2,200 1,092 3,292
Commercial Strategy 1,800 0 1,800
TOTAL 10,302 5,783 16,085

12



30

As indicated in paragraph 13 the overall 2011/12 savings requirement being built into the
budget totals £10.302m and can be analysed against the budget principles as follows:

Savings analysed by budget 201112 2012/13 TOTAL
principle £000 £000 £000
Valued Services 1,925 394 2,319
Cutting Red Tape 729 570 1,299
Supporting the Vulnerable 453 250 703
Cutting Costs 6,743 4,166 10,909
Local Delivery 202 253 455
Personal Responsibility 250 150 400
TOTAL 10,302 5,783 16,085

Financial Management

31

32

33

It is important that the Council has appropriate levels of reserves at a time of financial
challenge. The current policy for the general fund reserve requires it to be 3% of net revenue
budget. The total net budget for 2011/12 is £148.8m and will require a general reserve of
£4.5m. In addition our non schools specific reserves total £7.87m.

It is proposed that a specific financial reserve is established following a review of current
specific reserves. The reserve will need to be £1m and any future use repaid as part of the
budget process. In order to incentivise sound financial management the first call on
‘repayment” should be the directorate that has overspent in the previous year.

In 2010/11 the Council spends approximately £1.8m on concessionary fares. It is estimated
that in 2011/12 £1.6m is required. Given that changes to the Formula Grant have reduced this
funding, steps will be taken to ensure £1.6m will be available in 2011/12. Measure will include
temporary use of £1m of the Council’'s Waste Reserve, with repayment in 2012/13..

Provisional 2012/13 Settlement

34

The two year settlement provisionally allocates £54.4m of formula grant to Herefordshire for
2012/13 with a new methodology to be in place for 2013/14. For this reason local authorities
have a two year financial settlement compared with the four year timeframe of CSR10.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/14

35

36

The Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (JMTFS) covers financial years 2011 to 2014. The
JMTEFS is a key part of HPS’s integrated corporate, service and financial planning cycle. This
cycle is designed to ensure that corporate and service plans are developed in the context of
available resources and that those resources are allocated in line with corporate priorities.

The strategy covers local and national factors affecting financial planning for public services in

Herefordshire. Clearly CSR10 features as a key influence on our planning along with the local
government finance settlement.

13



37

38

The Council is required to approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and
Prudential Indicators. The annual treasury management strategy includes these as part of the
budget setting process. Herefordshire’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2011/12, is
provided at Appendix A and complies with the detailed regulations that have to be followed.
The Treasury Management Strategy is a key element of the overall financial management
strategy. It supports achievement of several corporate financial objectives, including creating
financial capacity within the revenue account as it aims to optimise investment and borrowing
decisions.

The JMTFS contains the council’s financial model that has been amended for the provisional
two year settlement. As a result the third year of the model has made an assumption about
the likely level of formula grant from government. This is because the formula grant will be
subject to variation arising from any changes in the local government funding formula that will
be consulted upon over the coming year and will come into effect in 2013/14.

HR Implications

39

40

The number of posts (FTE) that would be deleted from the organisation as a result of the
budget proposals has been assessed. The current estimate is that up to 250 posts will be
deleted from the organisation.

Reductions in posts will be subject to the Council’s existing policies on organisational change
and appropriate consultations with individuals and Trade unions representatives.

Legal Implications

41

42

Local authorities must decide every year how much they are going to raise from council tax.
They base their decision on a budget that sets out estimates of what they plan to spend on
services. Because they decide on the council tax before the year begins and can't increase it
during the year, they have to consider risks and uncertainties that might force them to spend
more on their services than they planned. Allowance is made for these risks by:

. making prudent allowance in the estimates for services; and
. ensuring that there are adequate reserves to draw on if the service estimates turn out
to be insufficient.

Local government legislation requires an authority's chief finance officer to make a report to
the authority when it is considering its budget and council tax. The report must deal with the
robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the reserves allowed for in the budget
proposals, so members will have authoritative advice available to them when they make their
decisions.

Risk Management

43

44

Clearly, there is the potential risk that public finances will be in worse shape than assumed by
CSR10. The appropriate management would be via further cost reduction.

The additional risk that may occur is if the services currently supported through former specific

grants are no longer funded because of a change in priorities. This would need to be
managed over time.

14



Consultees

45 Overview & Scrutiny Committee will consider the draft MTFS and budget proposals at its
meeting on 14 January and any comments or views will be reported to Cabinet.

46 The Director of Resources has held a seminar for all members, and has met with all Town

Councils and a number of Parish Councils. Further briefings are scheduled with Herefordshire
Association of Local Councils and representatives of the Business Community.

Appendices
. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/14
. Reconciliation between the 2010/11 and 2011/12 budgets.

° Grants ceased for 2011/12

15



Appendix B
BUDGET 2010/11 TO 2011/12 — Movements

£M £M
2010/11 Net Budget 142.844
Block 1: Additional Spend
Inflation for 2011/12 2.962
Grants rolled into formula grant 10.832
Adult Social Services 1.961
capital financing 0.860
Addition to redundancy reserve 0.500
Shared Services costs 0.049
West Midlands Councils 0.209
Garrick House move 0.230
Prior year changes 1.809
Contingency addition 0.129
19.541
Block 2: Additional Income/Budget No Longer required
Remove 2010/11 addition to Waste Reserve (0.500)
Remove 2010/11 funding for LDF (0.275)
Remove 2010/11 top ups of Winter Reserve (0.500)
Remove losses associated with academy schools (0.370)
Council tax freeze grant (2.150)
New Homes Bonus (0.660)
Reserves additions in 2010/11 no longer required (1.500)
(5.955)
Block 3: Savings required to balance
Directorate reductions (4.594)
Reductions in pay bill (3.148)
Shared Services and Commercial Strategy (2.560)
(10.302)
2011/12 NET BUDGET 146.128

16



GRANTS CEASED

Area Based Grant

School Development Grant

Extended Schools Start-Up Grants

Primary National Strategy - Central

Secondary National Strategy Central Co-ordination
Secondary National Strategy - Behaviour and Attendance
School Improvement Partners

Education Health Partnerships

School Travel Advisers

Choice Advisers

School Intervention Grant

14 - 19 Flexible Funding Pot

Sustainable Travel - General Duty

Designated Teacher Funding

Standards Fund

Assessment for Learning (AfL)

Communication, Language and Literacy development

(CLLD)

Early Years/Primary (Foundation)
Behaviour & Attendance

Primary (MfL) - missing one-third
Leading Teachers

Targeted gifted & talented support
Assessment for Learning AfL
Gaining Ground

Aim Higher DCSF

Key Stage 4 Engagement Programme

Other
Cohesion
Climate Change

82
334
115
141

68
108

55

32

20

70

48

16

15

1,104

122

65
26
29
43
10

64
191
179

58
789

57
23
80

Appendix C

The new Early Intervention Grant has already had a reduction of £597k; therefore the total of the

above equates to £2.566m.

17



GRANTS CEASED BUT ROLLED INTO FORMULA GRANT

In addition a number of grants have been rolled into Formula Grant in 2010/11 these total £13.55m
but in 2011/12 we assume that these are valued at £10.832m. The list of grants rolled into Formula
Grant are as follows:

Grants rolled to Formula grant

Social Care Reform Grant

Stroke Strategy

Aids support grant

Animal Health

Concessionary Fares Special Grant

DfT Revenue Grants

Care Matters White Paper

Child Death Review Processes

LSC Staff Transfer

Adult Social Care Workforce

Carers

Child & Adolescent Mental Health
Learning & Disability Development Fund
Local Involvement Networks

Mental Capacity Act & Independent Mental Capacity
Mental Health

Preserved Rights

Economic Assessment Duty

Supporting People

GRANTS STILL TO BE ANNOUNCED

Stronger Safer Communities
Young People Substance Misuse
Extended Rights to Free Transport
Music Grant

Community Call for Action

18



5 Herefordshire
Council

Working together for the people of Herefordshire

NHS!

Herefordshire

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy

12 January 2011

2011/14

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/14
Foreword by the Council Leader & NHSH Chair

The Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (JMTFS) is an important document as it underpins our
strategic, transformational and operational intentions for the Herefordshire Public Services. The
strategy will support, shape and influence the challenging financial environment that public
services are facing. The total resource envelope for Herefordshire Public Services is circa £650m.
Our joint strategy is one that will need to enable a culture to develop and is one where there is a
movement away from short-term budget setting and savings to an approach that reviews all
expenditure and focuses on what matters to the people of Herefordshire. 20011/12 provides a
great opportunity to develop service flexibility across Public services in Herefordshire and this
JMTFS identifies the transfer of funding between the PCT and Council We aim for a culture where
there is less bureaucracy and where resources can be targeted towards frontline services A culture
where we stop doing things we do not need to do, ensuring a longer-term approach that brings
service and financial stability to our service delivery.

CSR 10 will have a significant impact on funding from central government. It is currently
estimated that the level of savings required to be delivered across the partnership for 2011/12 is
circa £32m (£11m PCT, £11m HHT, and £10m HC). Throughout the coming year we will assess
discretionary services, and consider alternative ways of working, in particular investigating broader
partnership arrangements, to mitigate the effects.

The JMTFS identifies the scale of the impact of the economic downturn that has affected the world
economy and reflects this impact on Herefordshire. However, during the past eighteen months
Herefordshire Council and the PCT have been actively planning for the impact of the reduced
settlement as part of CSR 10. There a number of joint assumptions about cross cutting service
areas that are delivered across both organisations and by working in partnership and in line with
government policy will enable improved service delivery in Herefordshire. In line with the equality
act of 2010 which comes into effect from April 2011 Herefordshire Council and the PCT will ensure
that any efficiency savings and service reviews will demonstrate that all financial decisions are
made in a fair, transparent and accountable way, considering the needs and rights of different
members of our communities. We have revised our joint medium term plans to address the
implications of the significant change in the economy and the CSR 10 financial settlement. In line
with government policy we will be implementing Shared Services to deliver back office savings
which will be released for front line service delivery.

2011 will be both challenging and exciting as a result of not only the economic downturn but the
creation of the Integrated Health and Social Care Organisation and the Pathfinder status for the
emerging GP Consortia who will in 2011 operate as a subcommittee of the PCT Board with a
defined scheme of delegation.

In 2011/12 it will be more important than ever that we continue to strengthen the partnership
between the Council, NHSH and Hereford Hospital Trust. The level of service transformation,
improvement in quality and ensuring services deliver value for money can only be delivered
through the strength of maximising the interfaces between primary and secondary care, between
health and social care and between empowered service users. This deep partnership has already
demonstrated both qualitative and quantative benefits for Herefordshire in the past 12 months.
However as we move forward, there will be even stronger evidence of the impact of the deep
partnership, with the implementation of shared services. The Commissioning of integrated care
pathways will deliver the service transformation that our population expects and will maintain
financial stability across public services within Herefordshire.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

n
D




Clir. Roger Phillips
Leader of the Council

Joanna Newton
Chair of NHSH

Clir Harry Bramer
Cabinet Member — Resources

12 January 2011

no
Hrg

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011/14

Foreword by the Chief Executive and Director of Resources (Council
and NHSH)

Herefordshire not only faces an economic challenge but the demands of an ageing population will
require us to transform our services to ensure that people can maintain levels of independence.
HPS will need to ensure that packages of care and support do not only contribute to independence
but also prevention. It is accepted that service delivery will need to be undertaken in a less
institutional setting in order that the additional challenge on the service delivery agenda can be met
Planning the use of public money and transparent accountability for Herefordshire is a key priority,
from which we continue to ensure Herefordshire has financial stability and also deploy resources to
support agreed priorities. This cannot be achieved if we limit our planning horizon to a single year.
The Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (JMTFS) helps planning over a longer time framework
and demonstrates how we will use our resources in the future.

The JMTFS forms part of the service planning process and sets a framework for the interpretation
of both the councils and NHSH’s priorities and principles. It is an appropriate way to plan our
expenditure and has played a part in helping maintain the Use of Resources standards. However,
we continue to review and, where appropriate, improve the strategy each year.

The JMTFS has helped change Herefordshire’s financial management culture; it includes a
requirement that responsibility for managing individual budgets rests with our budget managers
who operate within our financial policies and procedures. The JMTFS helps explain the overall
position, so that we all know that financial management is part of our day-to-day activity and that
we must demonstrate we provide value for money at a time when the economic downturn is having
a widespread effect.

The JMTFS will support and drive delivery of the next stage of the Herefordshire
transformational agenda,

Chris Bull
Chief Executive

David Powell
Director of Resources (Council)

Marcia Pert
Director of Resources and Delivery (NHSH)

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

o
o




Contents

Page
1. Introduction 7
2. Economic and Demand Background 8
2.1 Introduction 8
2.2 Inflation 8
2.3 Economic Summary of Herefordshire 9
24 Potential Growth and Changes that will affect Finance 11
2.5 Impact of Demand for Services 12
3. The National Financial Context 14
3.1 Introduction 14
3.2 Pre Budget Cuts Summer 2010 14
3.3 June Budget 14
3.4 Four Year Spending Review 15
3.5 Local Government Settlement 18
3.6 NHS Settlement 20
3.7 Health & Wellbeing Board 21
4, Herefordshire PCT Financial Context 22
4.1 Quality, Innovation, Product & Prevention (QIPP) 22
4.2 Health and Social Care Pathway Re-design 24
4.3 Changes to the National PBR Tariff 24
4.4 Risk 25
4.5 Capital 25
4.6 Next Steps 26
5. Herefordshire Council’s Financial Context 27
51 Introduction 27
5.2 Formula Grant 27
5.3 Specific Grants 28
54 Dedicated School Grant 28
5.5 Revenue Spending Power 29
5.6 Council Tax 29
5.7 Reserves 30
5.8 Capital Reserves 30
6. Herefordshire’s Policy Context 32
6.1 Introduction 32
6.2 Herefordshire Sustainable Community Strategy 32
6.3 Corporate Plan and Annual Operating Plan 32
7. Financial Management Strategy 33
71 Introduction 33
7.2  Corporate Financial Objectives 33
7.3 Managing Partnership Resources 33

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




7.4 Managing External Funding
7.5 Managing the General Fund Balance
7.6 Governance

7.7

Efficiency Review

7.8 Value for Money (VfM)

7.9

Financial Management Strategy for Capital Investment

7.10 Capital Programme 2010/11
7.11  Treasury Management Strategy
7.12 Key Corporate and Financial Risks

Medium Term Financial Resource Model (FRM)

8.1 Background

8.2 Assumptions

8.3 Budget Process

8.4 Directorate Budgets

Statutory Statement by the Chief Finance Officer

Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy
Appendix B - Financial Resource Model 2010-13

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

n
N

63

34
34
35
35
35
36
37
38
39

40
40
40
40
42
44

45




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Introduction

The Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy (JMTFS) covers the financial years 2011/2014
and demonstrates how HPS will maintain financial stability, deliver annual efficiencies, and
support investment in priority services, whilst demonstrating value for money and
maintaining service quality.

The JMTFS is a key part of HPS’s integrated corporate, service and financial planning
cycle. This cycle is designed to ensure that corporate and service plans are developed in
the context of available resources and that those resources are allocated in line with
corporate priorities.

A major development has been the continuation of the downturn in the economy and the
clarity of how the “credit crunch”, has impacted across the world. This has had a direct
effect on the income earned from investing balances and income collected from the
provision of services.

The coalition government has published a two year financial settlement for the public sector
alongside a number of white papers that will transform local service delivery and resultant
financial requirements:

. Equity and Excellence - liberating the NHS
. Operating framework NHS 2011/12

. Schools — the importance of teaching

. Healthy Lives, healthy people: our strategy for public health in England

The settlement reduces public sector funding thus providing a challenge to deliver front line
services against severe financial constraints.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




2.1.1

2.2

2.21

222

2.2.3

Economic and Demand Background

The national outlook suggests the economy will grow less than expected, although growth
in 2012 will be better than predicted. The Office for Budget Responsibility recently
downgraded its 2011 growth forecast from 2.3% to 2.1% but it indicated the economy was
sufficiently robust to avoid slipping back into recession and was more upbeat moving
forward because of private sector growth. The UK economy grew by 0.8% between July
and September 2010, but most economists expect this rate to slow once the government's
austerity measures kick in.

There are concerns that government spending cuts and tax rises, including the VAT
increase, will undermine the recovery, with increased unemployment through public sector
job losses as a result of the spending cuts.

The Monetary Policy Committee decided to a move away from further Quantitative Easing.
Despite Money supply being weak and growth prospects remaining subdued the MPC have
gravitated towards increasing rates as global inflation continues to rise along with
household inflation.

Inflation

HPS needs to understand the future inflation rates and the potential impact on the cost of
supplies and services. NHSH has identified that inflationary pressures for 2011/12 are
related to new technology and NICE guidance in addition to those identified by the
Consumer Price indices. It is currently estimated that NHS inflation is running at circa 7%.
The rates will also affect the potential cost of borrowing and at what point in the year they
change assists in decisions on the timing of events.

The Consumer Price Indices rose to 3.3% year-on-year to November 2010. This was above
the forecast by economists. This is in relation to October 2010 figure of 3.2%. It is likely to
move above 4% when further price increases are implemented.

Annual Inflation Rates — 12 month percentage change

Percentages

(S

g 4

£

3 4

=

1 4

] T T T
. \_\/_/
-z 4

Pl o Feb Mawy Aug Mo Feb Mawy Aug Mo

2005 2009 2010
—FRPI CPI —FRFIx

The most significant change in the 12 month rate between October and November came
from food and non-alcoholic beverages, where prices increased by 1.6% on the month, in

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

n
»




224

225

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

233

234

235

comparison to 0.6% in November 2009. Clothing and footwear prices rose by 2%, the
largest rise for the month on record. There was also a 3.7% rise in furniture and furnishings
prices.

It is possible that some of these rises reflect ‘temporary’ reasons. For example, food price
inflation was pushed higher by the rising bread and cereal prices, reflecting higher wheat
prices. Clothing prices are known to always rise in November in advance of sales in
December and January.

The cold weather could also be a reason for the increase in clothing prices. However, not
all of those effects will reverse in subsequent months and headlines suggest that inflation
continues to remain a problem and eventually this will impact on underlying inflationary
expectations.

Economic Summary of Herefordshire

The Office for National Statistics supplies data on numbers and rates of unemployment (%
of the working age population claiming Jobseekers Allowance). The claimant count for
Herefordshire saw a decrease between September and October 2010.

In October 2010 the count was 2,368, a 1% decrease on September and a 16% decrease
on this time last year (2,831) however a large increase as compared to July 2008 (1,505).

Herefordshire’s unemployment rate in October was 2.2%, low compared to West Midlands
region 4.4% and England as a whole 3.5%.

The unemployment rate for the 18-24 age group saw an increase in October 2010,
increasing to 5.7% from 5.5% in September. The rate for the over 50s remained at 1.3%,
whilst the 25-49 age group decreased to 2.3%.

The State of Herefordshire report for 2010 contains information that describes the county.
Some of the key findings are:

o The population of Herefordshire is increasing - Herefordshire’s resident population
grew by 2% between 2001 and 2009 — which is a similar growth rate as that of the
West Midlands region overall (+3%), but slightly lower than England & Wales (+5%).

. Herefordshire's economic output is low compared to regionally and nationally - as
measured by Gross Value Added (GVA) per resident and has increased at a lower
rate over the last ten years. This has resulted in a widening of the gap between
Herefordshire and the rest of the West Midlands and England.

o Herefordshire's weekly work based earnings are low compared to regionally and
nationally. In addition, the gap between Herefordshire's earnings and those of the
West Midlands region and England as a whole is getting wider.

o The rate of self-employment in Herefordshire is higher than in the West Midlands and
England as a whole.

o Increases in number of out-of-work benefit claimants have been seen during the
recession. However, rates are still low in Herefordshire compared to regionally and
nationally.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

no
~N




o Pockets of deprivation are concentrated in urban areas of Herefordshire, but smaller
pockets also occur in more rural areas. Some of these areas have got worse since
2004.

o Rural areas in Herefordshire are less likely to receive a decent level of broadband
service compared to urban areas.

o Affordability of housing is a key challenge in Herefordshire.

o Herefordshire has a longer life expectancy that is healthy, disability free and life in
general than regionally and nationally.

o Mortality rates from circulatory disease are low compared with regionally and
nationally, however it is the main cause of mortality in Herefordshire. In 2010/11
additional investment was made in Stroke services as this was seen as a service that
required investment to deliver improved outcomes, reducing the incidence of stroke
and therefore the risk of death or disability from stroke. The stroke pathway is
currently being implemented which includes the following:

o Increase public and health and care staff awareness of stroke symptoms,
implement NHS Health Checks to ensure those at risk of stroke are assessed
and given appropriate information and advice.

o Improve access to urgent Transient Ischemic Attack (TIA) and stroke care,
including where appropriate, a 24/7 thrombolytic service, direct admission to an
Acute Stroke unit within 2011/12

o Develop in county specialist stroke rehabilitation ( Inpatient and home based),

o Ensure that longer term care, support and advise is available for stoke survivors
and their carers.

. Cancer is another high mortality area. Our commissioning intentions in 2011/12 will
centre around further measures to improve detection and prevention as well as
improving one year and five year survival rates. Cancer admissions are the main
cause of hospital admissions in Herefordshire.

) The number of 18 - 64 year olds with disabilities in Herefordshire is likely to increase
by 2026.

o The PCT and Herefordshire Council will work together in addressing reliance on, and
support for carers and in line with the Operating Framework will consider the
Recognised, valued and supported: next steps for the Carers Strategy which focuses
on four priority areas:

o Identifying carers earlier

o Supporting carers to achieve their full education and employment potential;
o Personalised support for carers so that they can live a full life; and

o Supporting carers to remain mentally and physically well

o Jointly agreed plans, policies and budgets will be developed and agreed
between the partners.

. A substantial increase in numbers of older people expected by 2020 will require
increased reablement services to enable greater independence and enable people to
remain at home rather than receive institutional care in traditional health and social

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

n
do




24

2.41

242

243

244

245

246

care settings. It is envisaged that the commissioning of new care pathways for older
people will address these issues.

. There is also expected to be a disproportionate increase in the number of older
people with dementia which is in line with the demographic growth for elderly people.
NHSH will progress the National Dementia Strategy and the Commissioning strategy
will reflect the four priority areas as set out within the implementation plan published
this autumn:

o Good quality early diagnosis and intervention for all;
o Improved quality of care in general hospitals;
o) Living well with dementia in care homes; and

o Reduced use of anti psychotic medication
Potential Growth and Changes that will affect Service Need

Over a fifth (22%) of Herefordshire’s population is aged 65 and over (38,800 people),
compared to 17% regionally and 16% nationally. Numbers of older people have grown
more rapidly locally than nationally: there are 15% more people aged 65+ living in
Herefordshire in 2009 than in 2001, compared to 8% more in England and Wales. This
growth is expected to continue, but even more rapidly - with 57% more people aged 65+
forecast to be living in Herefordshire by 2026, an increase from 38,800 in 2009 to 61,000 in
2026. In particular, the number of people aged 85+ is expected to almost double, from
5,400 in 2009 to 10,200 in 2026.

Numbers of children in Herefordshire are decreasing, although there have been more births
than expected in the last two years. The current proportion of Herefordshire’s population
aged under 16 (17%) is similar to England & Wales (19%), but numbers have fallen from
34,000 in 2001 to 31,000 in 2009. This decline is expected to continue and then stabilise
from 2016; around 6% below 2009 levels (29,000 children).

Primary school numbers (including nursery classes) will continue to fall in 2011/12 with a
predicted reduction of 191 pupils or 1.6% from January 2010. Since the establishment of
Herefordshire Council in 1998, primary school numbers have fallen by 2,224 from a high of
14,230 in 2006 equivalent to 15.6%. Since January 2010 secondary school numbers have
increased by 30 or 0.3%. From a high point in January 2005, secondary numbers have
fallen from 10,511 to 9,791, a reduction of 720 (equivalent to 7%) and are expected to
continue to fall until 2019.

Recent years have seen a slight decline in overall municipal waste in Herefordshire from
over 100,000 tonnes per annum in 2002/03 to 90,000 tonnes in 2009/10. This trend has
helped offset significant increases in Waste Disposal Costs for both Herefordshire Council
and for our partner in the Waste Disposal Contract, Worcestershire County Council. This is
at a time when the two councils, together with the district councils in Worcestershire, have
invested significantly in expanding kerbside collection services, refurbishing existing
Household Recycling Centres and developing the new EnviroSort materials recovery
facility. Herefordshire is currently on track to meet the national recycling target of 40%
which increases to 50% in 2020.

Significant challenges lay ahead in meeting landfill diversion requirements which will
require significant investment in waste treatment infrastructure.

Although the council will continue to invest in the promotion of Waste Prevention with the
aim of minimising waste it is very likely that in the future waste will once again start to rise

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




247

2.5

2.51

in line with population growth and this is illustrated in the graph below. The Joint Municipal
Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and Worcestershire predicts that this growth
will be in line with expected increases in housing stock as detailed in the Regional Spatial
Strategy.

Central Government are expected to publish the Waste Strategy for England later in 2011
and this will give a clearer picture of the financial position in relation to waste in the future.

Impact of Demand for Services

In August 2010 it was reported that the number of looked after children showed a significant
increase over the summer period with numbers of children being placed with agency foster
carers up from 28 at the end of July 2010 to 37 at the end of August 2010. Since then
numbers have continued to rise with numbers as at 12th October being 14 in residential
placements and 45 in agency foster placements. The trends are demonstrated in the chart
below.

70
60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Numbers in Children's Agency Residential and Fostering
Placements

Placement Numbers

P
T —a——

Mar-07 Jun-07 Sep-07 Dec-07Mar-08 Jun-08 Sep-08 Dec-08 Mar-09 Jun-09 Sep-09Dec-09Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10Mar-11

Residential Secure
Fostering
Total

Quarter

252

The number of children requiring intervention and subsequent support from Children’s
Services is increasing. There have been a number of reports on the national trends which
show a 33% increase in referrals from 2008 to 2009/10 (post the “Baby Peter” case of
2008). The following graph shows the upward trend and expected cost. The projections and
trend line give an indication of the potential pressures.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(03]
D




253

Complex Needs

Cost £k No. Young people
5,000 - 30.0
4,500 +
4,000 + + 25.0
3,500 + 20.0
3,000 —+
2,500 + + 15.0
2,000 —+
17500 L + 10.0
1,000 j_‘ + 5.0

500 +

0 T T T T } T T T T T 0.0

A N ‘0 ) ) @ @
Q" Q" & & N X< X< X X &
& & & & <& <L <L 4 <& &
090 \r\ofb ,\e?’Q & & & & & & &

N NV > > N O L N
(190‘3 D O N D ) D Rl o &
N A A M
mEmmm Total Complex Needs —= LA Cost Complex Needs

No placements yr end Poly. (Total Complex Needs)

Adult Social Care face significant future pressures due to increased life expectancy and
future demand due to an aging population. The main service pressures are:

. An increase of 21% in the number of older people requiring care from 2011 to 2020
which will result in an additional 155 new care packages per annum.

. Ten new learning disability service users coming into adulthood per annum in addition
to existing clients now meeting FACS criteria and now eligible for support. There are
also additional pressures on the older carers of learning disability clients (currently 19
over 85 years old) which will no longer be able to provide support.

. There are also increased cost pressures for high complex packages.

. The number of adults experiencing common mental health problems in the county is
expected to increase by an average of 10 cases per year.

. The number of clients client’s with a serious physical disability is due to rise by 5%
between 2005 and 2021, 10 per annum.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(3]
hire




3.1

3.1.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

National Financial Context

Introduction

This section of the JMTFS sets out the financial context at national level across both NHSH
and Herefordshire Council.

Pre Budget Cuts — Summer 2010

On 24™ May 2010 the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced spending cuts totalling
£6.2bn to be implemented in the 2010/11 financial year. From these savings there was a
net spending cut of £5.7bn; the remaining £500m to be reinvested in further education,
apprenticeships and social housing. This announcement also detailed that grants to local
authorities would be cut by £1.166bn.

On 10™ June 2010 the Communities and Local Government Minister, Eric Pickles, laid a
written ministerial statement before the House of Commons. The statement outlined details
of the £1.166bn local government contribution to the £6.2bn spending cuts, broken down by
central government department as shown in the table below.

Department Revenue Cut Capital Cut  Total Grant Cuts
Department for Education £311m - £311m
Department for Transport £35.6m £273.4m £309m
CLG DEL £278.5m £80.0m £358.5m
Local Government DEL £175m - £175m
Defra - £7.5m £7.5m
Home Office £6m - £6m
Adjustment grant -£1.1m - -£1.1m

£805m £360.9m £1.166bn

June 2010 Budget

The Coalition Budget of 22" June gave the overall level of public spending for the four
years from 2011/12 to 2014/15 (spending envelope). The Spending Review 2010 is the
process through which this spending envelope is allocated to pay for all areas of
Government activity including public services, social security, and administration costs.

The Budget suggested action to eliminate the bulk of the structural deficit through plans for
additional consolidation of £40 billion per year by 2014/15. This is expected to be achieved
through £32bn of spending cuts and £8bn of net tax increases. The plans are for the
structural current deficit to be eliminated by 2014/15, with a projected surplus of 0.8% of
GDP in 2015/16.

Borrowing - The current structural deficit "should be in balance" by 2015/16. The balance
of spending cuts to tax rises would be 77% to 23%. The measures are forecast to result in
public sector net borrowing of £149bn this year, £116bn in 2011, £89bn in 2012/13 and
£60bn in 2013/14. The Chancellor said by 2014/15 borrowing should reach £37bn, falling to
£20bn in 2015/16.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
no




« Spending - Current expenditure would rise from £637bn in 2010/11 to £711bn in 2015/16,
the Chancellor blaming a "rapidly rising bill for debt interest". He said his Budget implied a
further £17bn cuts in departmental spending by 2014/15, unprotected departments face an
average real terms cut of around 25% over four years.

o Tax - VAT will rise from 17.5% to 20% from 4th January 2011. Personal income tax
allowance for basic rate taxpayers to go up by £1,000 in April to £7,475. Councils which
propose no council tax increases will be offered extra funds to allow them to freeze the tax
for one year from April 2011. Capital Gains Tax remains at 18% for low and middle-income
savers but, higher rate taxpayers will pay 28%. The capital gains tax "entrepreneurs’ relief"
rate of 10% on the first £2m of gains will be extended to the first £5m.

« Benefits - From 2011 - except for the state pension and pension credit - benefits, tax
credits and public service pensions will rise in line with CPI, rather than RPI, saving over £6
billion a year. A new maximum limit of £400 a week will be applied to Housing Benefit, to
save £1.8bn a year by the end of the Parliament. The government will introduce a medical
assessment for Disability Living Allowance from 2013 for new and existing claimants. The
above measures are expected to save £11bn by 2014/15.

« Public Sector Pay and Pensions - Public sector workers face a two-year pay freeze. John
Hutton (ex Labour cabinet minister) to head an independent commission to undertake a
fundamental and structural review of public sector pensions which would unveil "early
steps" by September, with full proposals in time for the 2011 Budget.

o Business - From April next year, the threshold at which employers start to pay National
Insurance will increase by £21 per week. Corporation Tax will be cut in 2011 to 27%, and
by 1% annually over the next three years, until it reaches 24%. The small companies' tax
rate will fall to 20%. Tax relief for the video games industry will be scrapped.

« Pensions - The basic state pension will be linked to earnings from April next year, with the
pension guaranteed to rise in line with earnings, prices or 2.5%, whichever is the greater.
The government will accelerate the increase in state pension age to 66.

« Banks - Introduction of a bank levy, which will apply to the balance sheets of UK banks and
building societies and the UK operations of foreign banks from January next year - but
smaller banks will not have to pay. It is expected to rise over £2bn a year.

3.4. Four Year Spending Review
3.4.1 The Comprehensive Spending Review was announced on the 20" October 2010, Last

year, the Government borrowed one pound in every four that it spent and the UK currently
spends £43 billion on debt interest, which is more than it spends on schools in England.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
do




3.4.2 The diagram below show government spending on debt interest and amount of borrowing
as part of the total budget:

Spent : Raised

on: : from:
Debt Interest -
Public sector net
Education - borrowing
Hawith . Income Tax
Defence :
National Insurance
Contributions
Welfare : -
B Council tax
: IS - Business rates

Transport A
Housing and environment — NN |

tow and order N

Other spending -

£697bn

3.4.3 The Government has said that tackling Britain’s deficit is its top priority and that it is
necessary to secure sustainable economic growth. The consequences of not acting could
be serious: higher interest rates, business failures and rising unemployment.

Corporation Tax

Other tax

3.4.4 The Spending Review sets out spending plans for the four years until 2014-15. In its
approach to these choices, the Government has prioritised:

° spending that promotes long-term growth, and creating the conditions for a private
sector-led recovery and

. fairness, with all sections of society contributing to tacking the deficit, whilst protecting
the most vulnerable and providing opportunity for the poorest.

3.4.5 This is underpinned by a radical programme of public service reform, improving
transparency and accountability, giving more power and responsibility to citizens and
enabling sustainable long term improvements in services. It also includes further savings
and reforms to welfare, environmental levies and public service pensions. Around 490,000
public sector jobs are likely to be lost over the period and on average departmental budgets
will be cut by 19% over the four-year period.

3.4.6 The Spending Review also delivers the Government’s specific commitments set out in the
Coalition Agreement to:

. increase NHS spending in real terms in each year of this Parliament;

. spend 0.7 per cent of Gross National Income on overseas aid by 2013 and

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

o
i




. restore the earnings link for the basic state pension from 2011, as part of the triple
guarantee of using earnings, prices or 2.5 per cent, whichever is highest, from April
2011

3.4.7 The main changes for local government are:

Formula Grant
. Formula Grant will decrease 10.7% from £28.0bn in 2010/11 to £26.0bn in 2011/12

o From April 2011 grants currently paid outside Formula Grant worth more than £4bn,
will be rolled into Formula Grant.

o An additional £1bn for personal social services will be included in Formula Grant by
2014/15.

Un ring fencing Grants
o From April 2011 onwards, grant streams to local authorities will be reduced to less
than ten.

o All ring fencing on grants will be removed, except from the Dedicated Schools Grant
and a new grant for public health, to be introduced in 2013.

o A separate new unringfenced Early Intervention Grant, worth around £2bn will be
introduced.

Council Tax Freeze

o Authorities, which choose to freeze Council Tax in 2011/12, will ‘have the resultant
loss to their tax base funded at a rate of 2.5% in each year of the Spending Review
period’. The report tables show this will cost CLG £700m in each of the four years.

Social Care
o £1bn will be put into Formula Grant for Personal Social Services, meaning total
funding for social care, including rolled-in grants, will be £2.4bn a year by 2014/15.

o In addition, £1bn of funding will be provided through the NHS budget to support joint
working between the NHS and councils in the provision of social care.

Transport
o Bus Operators’ Subsidy will be reduced by 20%, saving over £300m by 2014/15.

o Statutory concessionary travel entitiements will remain.
o Revenue grants to local authorities from DfT will be reduced by 28%.

o The number of transport grants to councils will be reduced; councils will gain greater
control and flexibility over spending these grants.

Education

o The schools budget for 5 to 16 year olds will increase by 0.1% in real terms each year
of the Spending Review period. This includes £2.5bn of funding for the new pupil
premium.

o £15.8bn of capital funding will be made available for schools over the Spending
Review period. The Government will rebuild or refurbish over 600 schools from the
Building Schools for the Future and Academies programme.

Housing

o The ‘New Homes Bonus’ will be introduced to incentivise councils to grant planning
permission for the construction of new homes, by matching Council Tax receipts for
each new home built for a number of years.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
(O)]




3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

o The council housing finance system will be reformed so councils can invest in
housing stock.

Economic Growth
o The Regional Growth Fund will be worth over £1.4bn over three years. A panel will
asses funding bids from Local Enterprise Partnerships as well as the private sector.

Council Tax Benefit
. From 2013/14 Council Tax Benefit will be localised; Government also plans to reduce
spending by 10%.

o Government will consider measures to give authorities more flexibility ‘to manage
pressures on council tax’, to be implemented from the same date.

Local Authority Borrowing

o Interest rates on loans from the PWLB have been increased to 1% above the rate for
British Government gilts, previously the rate tracked gilts. The Treasury estimate this
will lead to a reduction of 17% in self-financed expenditure by councils over the
Spending Review period.

Internal Restructuring
o In 2011/12 a £200m capitalisation fund will be available for capitalisation to support
authorities wishing to deliver savings through internal restructuring.

Public Sector Pensions
o The state retirement age will reach 66 in 2020, four years earlier than planned

o Employee contributions to public sector-pensions scheme will be increased. However,
they will remain as ‘defined-benefit’ schemes. A consultation will be launched on a
Fair Deal system, recommended by Lord Hutton.

Local Government Settlement

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was presented to the House of
Commons on 13" December 2010, and will be ratified in the Final Local Government
Finance Report (England) presented in a written statement to the House of Commons on
20™ January 2011. The Final Settlement potentially remains unchanged from those
published in the Provisional Settlement.

A key message contained in the provisional settlement is that local government has been
given flexibility to take decisions locally to address local priorities. Restrictions have been
lifted on how local government spends its money by removing “ring fences”. The intention
is to give councils extra flexibility to make decisions about where savings are found,
however, this is subject to the usual rules to ensure that capital funding is used on capital
expenditure.

The settlement is for a two year period, a second two year settlement is expected to follow,
for which Government intend to adopt a new distributional system.

A significant factor that added to the pressure faced in 2011/12 is the front loading of

funding reductions. The profile of reduction is therefore uneven and for Herefordshire is
13.3%, 8.6% and 1.9% for the next three years.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(8]
»




3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

The headline changes are:

. Two year settlement, then a further two year settlement which will have a new
distribution system from 2013

. Nationally Formula Grant falls by 12.1% for 2011/12

. Significant formula distribution changes — concessionary fares, social care and
transport

o Specific grants have rolled into either formula grant, dedicated schools grant (DSG) or
early intervention grant

. Damping arrangements are in place based on four banded floors and dependency on
formula grant; Herefordshire in Band 3

o Those worst hit by the changes (limited to 8.9% of spending power reduction) will be
provided with a transitional grant of £85m

. There will be the ability to capitalise redundancy costs
. Council tax grant will cover a one year (2011-12) freeze
o £1bn additional funding for social care within the formula grant by 2014/15.

o NHS Funding of £648m in 2011-12 and £622m in 2012-13 has been identified to
support integrated working between health and social care

. Bus operators subsidy reduction of 20% but statutory concessionary entitlement
remains

. New homes bonus to incentivise the support of new housing development

° Dedicated Schools Grant has an overall increase of 1%, but this translates into a flat
cash per pupil increase, due to pupil number rises. There will be a minimum funding
guarantee at school level of -1.5%

. Pupil premium of £625m will be distributed, which has been set at £430 per free
school meals pupil for the first year

. Pupil premium will rise to £1,750 per free meals pupil as the premium increases over
the next four years

Although formula grant is being cut nationally by 12.1 per cent, cost pressures in areas
such as adult social care, children’s protection, waste management, and flood defence will
continue to mount. As a result, local government faces a total funding shortfall in the order
of £6.5bn in the next two years.

The government has introduced a measure known as “local authority spending power”.
This is based on funding from central government and council tax receipts. For 2011-12
this is made up of:

. Council tax

o Formula grant

o Specific grants

o NHS funding to support social care
o NNS Operating Framework 2011/12

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
N




3.6 NHSH Health Settlement 2011/12 and Financial Context

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.6.5

3.6.6

3.6.7

2011/12 is the first year of the new NHS Spending Review period and whilst the settlement
represents growth for the NHS it is considerably below previous levels of funding and does
not equate to the pressures that are faced for rising demand, changing demography and
new technologies. Therefore it is important that a focus remains on the delivery of the
National £20billion of efficiency savings for re-investment and improving quality across the
spending review period. NHSH’s figure is estimated currently at £73m for the period
2011/12 to 2014/15. This equates to £48m on inflationary cost pressures and £25m
demographics and demand.

PCTs will continue to be required to set aside non recurrently 2% of their budgets to create
financial flexibility and headroom to support change. Within the West Midlands the
approach being taken for 2011/12 is a top slice of the 2%. This equates to £5.6m for NHSH.
NHSH will be required to submit business cases to the SHA in order to release our funding.
It is envisaged that the top slice will be used to support restructuring costs.

NHSH received an uplift of 3.1% equating to £8.6m. Contained within the revised 2011/12
baseline is the non recurrent funding to support joint working between Health and Social
Care therefore £2.368m will be transferred to Herefordshire Council to invest in Social Care
services that will benefit Health and improve overall Health gain. A joint plan will be
required that outlines appropriate areas for Social Care investment and the outcomes that
will be expected from this investment. NHS Commissioners will need to demonstrate plans
that alleviate pressure put upon the social care system through reduced length of stay in
hospital beds.

The Department of Health expects these plans to take into account the local joint Strategic
Needs Assessment. Transfers will need to be made via an agreement under section 256 of
the 2006 Act. Additionally PCTs will be responsible for securing post discharge support
within Acute Care settings with Hospitals responsible in 2011/12 for readmissions within 30
days of discharge.

2011/12 PCT baseline allocations now include funding for reablement services. This is in
addition to the £2.368m and is intended to be invested in jointly developed plans that will
need to be agreed for appropriate social care investments and agreed outcomes for this
investment. This can include telecare, community directed prevention (including falls
prevention) community equipment and adaptations, and crisis response services.

Local Authorities are facing a significant funding reduction which needs to be considered
when considering care outside hospital. Within the 2011/12 resource allocation is an
assumption that NHSH will transfer monies of circa £500k to Herefordshire Council that will
support and facilitate discharges, 30 day reablement and preventative measures that will
impact on health service utilisation. The Distance from target funding for NHSH is now
2.8% which is circa £7.9m a move from 3.1%.

The greatest challenge being faced by the Health and Social Care economy is the
demographic impact of older people. NHSH spend circa £52m (commissioning and non
NHS commissioning budgets) and Herefordshire Council spend £1.5m on services for older
people. Whilst investment levels are high resources are centred around institutional based
care that creates dependence on services. It is imperative that future scarce resources are
used to not only support or maintain independence and are used to ensure that a greater
focus is placed around prevention, personalisation and wider partnership working to

support this.
Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
do




3.7 Health and Well-being Boards

3.7.1 The creation of new Health and well being boards will legitimise the local democracy of
NHS Commissioning decisions. Health and well being boards will bring together key NHS,
public health and social care leaders to work in partnership.

3.7.2 In addition to assessing needs and developing an overarching commissioning strategy,
health and well being boards will also be able to make use of the existing flexibilities
between the NHS and local authorities (pooling of budgets) .These flexibilities , and the
ability to invest differently at the interfaces of the NHS ,public health ,social care and
children’s services, will be increasingly important in meeting the challenge of delivering the
best possible outcomes for our communities within a more constrained financial
environment. Herefordshire Council is an early implementer and has been granted
pathfinder status.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

4o
©




4. Herefordshire Primary Care Trust Financial Context
4.1 Quality , Innovation, productivity and prevention (QIPP)

4.1.1  Whilst the NHS has been relatively protected from budget cuts there are a number of
factors that make the financial settlement very challenging:

o Rising demand from an ageing population, from increased “lifestyle” disease and from
increasing technological capability estimated at as much as 2% per annum.

o The actual cost of NHS inflation (driven by technological advance) running ahead of
general inflation

. VAT and National Insurance increases

o Pay bill increase resulting from increments

4.1.2 Nationally, it has been recognised that the above combination of factors leads to a potential
gap between resources required and available of between £ 15-£20 billion cumulatively by
2014/15, if the NHS does not review the way that care is delivered and provided.

4.1.3 Currently NHSH’s share of the QIPP agenda is circa £73m.Improving quality can reduce
costs. A greater focus on prevention rather than responding to ill health is more cost
effective and results in greater quality of life and less interventional procedures in later life.
Maximising the use of technology can support care at home or in the community and avoid
unnecessary admissions to hospital or residential care. There are opportunities for
maximising productivity and examples include duplication of treatments, processes and
follow up outpatient appointments. Clearly ensuring that opportunities for the maximisation
of opportunities for health and social care to work together to streamline care is a strength
of the deep partnership between NHSH and Herefordshire Council.

4.1.4 Management costs reductions of £1.2m in 2011/12 will be released to support frontline
services. Additionally procedures that deliver low levels of clinical benefit will continue to
be reviewed to ensure that these resources can support procedures that offer greater
clinical benefits.

4.1.5 NHSH is required to set aside 2% of its allocation £5.6m to reinforce financial control in
2011/12. The 2% will be top sliced and held by SHAs. PCTs will be required to submit
business cases to access funding that will demonstrate the non recurrent nature of the
expenditure proposed.

4.1.6 All business cases will need to be supported by the SHA Directors of Finance Group.
Restructuring costs are likely to be approved. The £5.6m was set aside recurrently from
the 2009/10 allocation and does not therefore appear in the Sources and Applications table
overleaf.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

IS
(«»}




4.1.7 The NHSH QIPP challenge is £11m for 2011/12. This consists of the following:

Source Amount
£m
3.1% uplift 8.6
Application
NHS Contracts ( reflecting 10/11 outturn and -9.1
demand)
Health and Social care -2.3
Investment re continuing care, special placements , -4.8
free nursing care
Reablement Funding -0.5
Inflation uplift ( Non NHS/prescribing budgets) -1.3
GP Consortia Development Funding -0.5
Other (e.g. PBC savings liability) -1.1
Total Application -19.6
COST PRESSURE -11.0

4.1.8 The QIPP initiatives to cover the cost pressure currently identified are:

QIPP Initiatives Amount £m
NHS activity

Care pathway redesign 2.6
Data Quality 0.5
Low priority Treatment 0.1
Demand Management 1.0
Outpatient —new/follow up ratio 0.9
Non NHS activity

Continuing care 1.5
Special placements 0.5
Free Nursing care 0.5
Mental Health Repatriation 0.5
Other

Med.icines Management/Management Cost savings/Shared 29
services

Total QIPP savings initiatives 11.0

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




4.2

4.21

4.2.2

4.3

4.31

43.2

4.3.3

As part of the initial plans for 2011/12 to 14/15 NHSH has identified the following main
initiatives that will need to be delivered for QIPP savings:

£m
Care Pathways 15
Review emergency admissions 2
Continuing Health care 4

Health and Social Care Pathway redesign

The essential characteristics of our future care delivery system are based upon:

o Integrated Health and social care model based on a reablement focus through
personalisation agenda

o Commissioning by care pathways

o Move away from a bed based model of care provision

o Using tools to support effective, efficient commissioning processes E.g. prioritisation
and impact assessment tools.

o Ensuring cost effectiveness and clinical effectiveness
o Move to a more prevention focused agenda
o Increased patient choice of provider

o Increased use of assistive technology

In 2009/10 work undertaken by KPMG confirmed that the existing provider landscape within
Herefordshire was not financially sustainable and therefore clinically led reviews of five initial
pathways was undertaken. The KPMG report concluded that the delivery of new models of
care at existing levels of demand provided an opportunity for significant cost savings. The
largest savings are assumed as being for frail older people. As can be seen from the QIPP
initiative table above the commissioning assumption for 2011/12 care pathways is £2.6m.

Changes to the National PBR Tariff 2011/12

The design and structure of the national tariff for 2011/12 signals the start of a series of
changes to be made over the coming years, and has been informed by a number of key
priorities:-

Quality and outcomes

Efficiency and value for money
Integration and patient responsiveness
Expanding the scope of the tariff

The coverage of best practice tariffs, first introduced in 2010/11, will be expanded to cover
a number of new service areas, and it is anticipated that this expansion will accelerate in
2012/13 and beyond. Best practice tariffs are designed not only to promote better patient
outcomes and experience, but also to deliver gains in productivity and efficiency. To drive
further tariff efficiency a change is being introduced re the funding of long stays in hospital
by a five day trim point floor. This will mean that relatively short stays in hospital do not
attract a long stay payment.

In addition all tariffs have been set at 1% below the average as an initial step in pricing
policy to set all tariffs below the national average level. The change to the calculation of trim

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




43.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

437

4.3.8

4.4

441

442

4.5

4.5.1

points, setting tariffs below the average, and the expansion of best practice tariffs, mean
that a 2 per cent efficiency requirement has been "embedded" into the tariff.

The national efficiency requirement in 2011/12 is 4% and the uplift for pay and price
inflation is assessed at 2.5%. Consequently, the prices for services outside the scope of the
national tariffs should reflect a reduction of 1.5% compared with those of 2010/11 before
negotiated and agreed developments. Tariff prices for 2011/12 also reflect the 4%
efficiency requirement: 2% is embedded in tariff design with the remaining 2% offsetting the
pay and prices uplift resulting in a final tariff adjustment of 0.5%. Taking both the 2%
efficiency requirement embedded in the tariff design and the 2% general efficiency deflator,
offsetting pay and prices uplifts, results in an overall reduction between 2010/11 and
2011/12 of 1.5%. This 1.5% reduction will also apply to non tariff services and is consistent
with the current NHS Operating Framework statement that over the next three years tariff
adjustments will not be better than 0%.

In 2011/12 hospitals will not be reimbursed for emergency readmissions within 30 days of
discharge following an elective admission, and all other readmissions within 30 days of
discharge will be subject to locally agreed thresholds, set to deliver a 25% reduction where
possible.

NHSH will be working with HHT, GP’s and Herefordshire Council to manage the savings
arising from non- payment of emergency readmissions to fund both reablement and post
discharge support.

Opportunities exist to develop local currencies and tariffs (subject to SHA approval).These
local currencies and tariffs flexibilities can support changes in service provision and
integration of services .Work is underway to develop local tariffs re the stroke and older
peoples care pathway.

A new flexibility to be introduced in 2011/12 is the opportunity for providers to offer services
to commissioners at less than the published mandatory tariff where both providers and
commissioners agree. Any such agreement will need to demonstrate that there will be no
detrimental impact on quality, choice or competition.

Risks
Whilst there is a 2% top slice held by the SHA which will be subject to business cases. It is
important to note that NHSH commences 2011/12 with no risk reserve and with a level of

risk of circa £5m.

This risk is explained below:

Detail of risk Amount £m

Non delivery of care pathways 1.6

System failure to manage demand 1.0

Continuing Healthcare risk 1.0

Other pressures 1.4

Total Risk 5.0
Capital

In 2011/12 there will be no automatic capital allocation for PCTs, with necessary capital
funding for PCTs being granted on a case by case basis. This represents a fundamental
change in funding which previously consisted of both a block capital allocation and a
bidding process. This also reduces some in year revenue flexibilities due to asset

classification.
Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




4.6 NHSH Next steps

4.6.1 Currently NHSH is undertaking the 2011/12 system planning and agreement of contract
process in accordance with the system planning timetable outlined by the Department of
Health/SHA. From an NHSH perspective this is an initial iteration of the JMTFS re NHSH
which will constantly be refreshed over the next two months in line with the planning

timetable outlined below:

Month Week Requirements Operating Framework new
Commencing requirements
January 3 Jan Author plan workshop
10" Jan Cluster CEO and SHA
report
17" Jan LTSM resubmission Review Finance strategy with
and cluster system Clusters
plan resubmission FIMS and Performance
measures
24™ Jan First weekly call to discuss
contract issues
February 31% Jan Second weekly call to
discuss contract issues
7™ Feb Third weekly call to discuss
contract issues
14™ Feb 18™ FEB cluster Fourth weekly call to discuss
system plan contract issues
resubmission
21 Feb Fifth weekly call
Contract agreement
March 28" Feb Conciliation/arbitration
7™ March Conciliation/arbitration
14™ March 18" Final System plan  Conciliation/Arbitration (16'")
Contract agreement FIMS and Performance
measures (18™)
Final signed contract( 18")
21% March 25" March Final Regional

System plan to Department
Of Health

4.6.2 Each cluster is required to resubmit updated system plans (including LTSMs by the close of
play on 21% January 2011, 18" February 2011 and 18" March 2011.

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




5.

5.1

5.1.1

5.2.1

5.2.2

523

524

525

Herefordshire Council’s Financial Context

Introduction

This section of the JMTFS describes Herefordshire’s financial position. It is important to set
the scene locally before considering the best approach to the high-level management of the
Council’s financial resources to ensure cash follows priorities.

The overall reduction to council funding is £11m from formula grant changes with further
cuts to Children’s grant of £2.5m.

Additional funding of £4.3m is being made available for Social Care.

Formula Grant

The council received £57.583m in 2010/11, but specific grants and funding streams within
Area Based Grant (ABG) have transferred into formula grant for 2011/12 giving a starting
point of £71.13m.

The government calculates an adjusted figure for 2010/11 to enable a like-for-like
comparison with 2011/12 which has been calculated as £69.349m. It is estimated that this
calculation has cost the council £1.8m due to the way that schools budgets have been
transferred to academies and concessionary travel, specific grant and transport grants have
been transferred into formula grant.

Herefordshire Council’s allocation of formula grant is £60.125m for 2011/12 and £54.404m
for 2012/13.

Herefordshire’s reduction against the adjusted 2010/11 Formula Grant is £9.244m or
13.3%, which is the ‘floor’ for the damping group the council is allocated to, (this is in
addition to the £1.8m mentioned above). Within the overall reduction, the following can be
identified specifically;

. £3.1m reduction to the formula that distributes Concessionary Fares

° Approximately £2.7m reduction in the grants rolled into formula grant, including
supporting people and transport.

o £650k has be taken out for academy transfers

Additional funding is provided for in the settlement:

o £2.0m social care funding within formula grant
o £2.1m council tax grant

. £2.3m NHS funding to support social care, money which is held by PCT’s, but will be
distributed on submission of robust business cases

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




5.3

5.3.1

43.2

43.3

434

4.3.5

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

543

5.4.4

Specific Grants

The number of specific grants has reduced dramatically, with only the following allocated
for 2011/12 and 2012/13 (excluding DSG and council tax grant);

List of Specific Grants 2011-12 2012-13
£000 £000
Early Intervention Grant 6,473 6,873
HCTB Admin 1,228 0
Lead Local Flood Authorities 130 200
Learning Disability 3,647 3,733
Preventing Homelessness 225 225

£13.5m of specific grant and ABG have been moved into formula grant, but reduced to an
estimated £10.8m, leaving a funding shortfall of £2.7m.

£16.3m of former Standards Funds grants have been transferred into Dedicated Schools
Grant on a per pupil basis.

The Early Intervention Grant replaces non-ring-fenced funding from the Department for
Education. Grants totalling £7.07m have been transferred into the Early Invention Grant
and reduced to £6.47m in 2011-12, leaving a funding shortfall of £0.6m.

A number of education grants have not been mentioned and we assume at this stage that
they will no longer be received, the major areas are, ABG £1.1m and Standards Fund
£0.8m.

Dedicated Schools Grant

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is paid as a ring-fenced specific grant and used in
support of the Schools Budget. It is the main source of income for Schools. DSG is based
upon a per pupil formula using the actual pupil numbers from the January school Census
data each year. Government sets a fixed amount per pupil for Herefordshire which is
multiplied by the total pupil numbers to determine the final grant. There is specific grant
certification and audit requirements to ensure appropriate use of the grant and any under or
overspends must be carried forward to the next financial year. Funding is delegated to
schools through a funding formula that is agreed with Schools Forum.

National funding reflects factors such as deprivation, sparsity and area cost adjustments
which affect urban and rural areas in different ways. The current grant methodology
(“Spend Plus”) underlying the allocation of DSG to individual authorities is determined by
central government. A national review of the distribution formula for DSG is about to
commence.

For 2011/12 the expected fall in pupil numbers and increased spend on out of county
suggests a DSG shortfall of £1m, equating to £40 per pupil. A pupil premium of £430 per
free school meals pupil will be new money distributed to schools.

DfE informed us that DSG funding will be at £4,723.65 per pupil. The planning total is
based on 22,293 pupils (as at Sept 10) plus an extra 174 pupils for the increase in private
nursery hours to 15 per week (from 12.5 hrs per week), giving a DSG planning total of
£106.126m.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

IS
()]




5.4.5 Academies are publicly funded independent local schools that provide a first class free
education. Academies are independent of the Council and responsible directly to
government and are funded directly by government. They are freed from national
restrictions such as the teachers pay and conditions documents, the national curriculum
and Ofsted inspection requirements.

5.4.6 Academies provide a teaching and learning environment that is in line with the best in the
maintained sector and offer a broad and balanced curriculum to pupils of all abilities,
focusing especially on one or more subject areas (specialisms). As well as providing the
best opportunities for the most able pupils and those needing additional support,
academies have a key part to play in the regeneration of disadvantaged communities.

5.4.7 Academies receive additional top-up funding to reflect their extra responsibilities which are
no longer provided by the local authority.

5.4.8 In May 2010 the Secretary of State for Education, Michael Gove, announced legislation
which allows the Secretary of State to approve schools to become academies through a
simplified streamlined process.

5.4.9 Reduction for schools moving to academy status from formula grant is £650k in 2011/12,
this is irrespective of the number of academies commencing. Services will need to consider
charging to mitigate this reduction, for example within school improvement, strategic
management and property.

5.5 Revenue Spending Power
The Revenue Spending Power amounts for Herefordshire are set out below;

2010-11 201112

£m £m
Council tax requirement (including parishes) 87.749 87.749
Formula grant (adjusted base) 69.349 60.125
Learning disability grant 3.574 3.647
Early interventions grant 7.070 6.473
Cohesion 0.057
HB admin subsidy 1.324 1.228
Preventing Homelessness 0.191 0.225
Council tax freeze 2.152
NHS funding to support social care 2.368
REVENUE SPENDING POWER 169.314 163.967
Change - £000 -5.347
Change - % -3.16

5.6 Council Tax

5.6.1 Authorities, which choose to freeze Council Tax in 2011/12, will ‘have the resultant loss to
their tax base funded at a rate of 2.5%, equating to £2.1m in 2011/12, in each year of the
Spending Review period’.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

IS
N




5.6.2 The scheme will be voluntary; and will apply separately to each billing and major precepting
authority in England (including police and fire and rescue authorities) rather than to each
council tax bill issued. Local precepting authorities, such as town and parish councils, will
not be included in the scheme.

5.6.3 The Spending Review has concluded that funding can only be provided to support a council
tax freeze for 2011/12. However, the Government intends to provide supplementary funding
to local authorities in subsequent years of the Spending Review via specific section 31
grants to compensate them for the council tax income foregone during the period of the
freeze.

5.7 Reserves

5.7.1 Revenue Reserves

5.7.2 Herefordshire has two main sources of reserve funding to support the day to day spending
that is recorded in the revenue account, the General Fund balance and Specific Reserves.
As the titles suggest, the latter are held for a specific purpose whilst the former could be

considered a general contingency.

5.7.3 The following table shows the year end balance on the General Fund and the level of
Specific Reserves for the last three financial years.

Balance as at: General Fund
£000 Specific Reserves Total
Schools Other £000
31 March 2008 6,728 5,657 10,915 23,300
31 March 2009 6,390 5,476 10,588 22,454
31 March 2010 5,390 5,497 8,739 19,626

5.7.4 A significant proportion of the Specific Reserves belong to schools and cannot be used to
help pay for non-schools services.

5.7.5 The Council's policy is to maintain the General Reserve at a minimum of £4.5m
(approximately 3% of the net revenue budget). This level of General Reserve balance is in
line with recommended best practice and is consistent with the approach other similar
authorities take. Although the Director of Resources is content to make his statutory
declaration that this level of General Reserves is prudent, there is an increased level of risk
attached to this volatile financial climate, and use of these reserves are not advisable
without a clear strategy for payback in a short time frame.

5.8 Capital Reserves

5.8.1 There is one capital reserve that represents cash available to support spending on the
creation or enhancement of assets that is recorded in the capital account. It is known as the
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve. The following table shows the level of usable capital
receipts for the last 4 financial years and an estimate for 2010-11;

Balance as at: £000
31st March 2008 17,945
31st March 2009 17,558
31st March 2010 13,296
31st March 2011 6,337

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




5.8.2 The Council has a policy that ensures capital cash resources are used effectively in support
of corporate priorities. As a result all capital receipts are a corporate resource and not
‘owned’ or earmarked for directorates unless allocated for a specific purpose.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

IS
©




6.1
6.1.1
6.2

6.2.1

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Herefordshire’s Policy Context

Introduction

This section of the JMTFS describes the local policy context for Herefordshire.
Herefordshire Sustainable Community Strategy

The Herefordshire Sustainable Community Strategy 2006 to 2020 sets out what the Council
and its partners aim to achieve to make the county an even better place to live and work.

The strategy is being reviewed for 2013 to focus even more on the people and places of
Herefordshire.

Corporate Plan

The Council, working with NHSH, have a joint corporate plan that sets out the vision for
Herefordshire Public Services 2011-14 including how the aims and objectives of the
Herefordshire Sustainable Community Strategy (HSCS) will be realised. The vision is
‘Working together to deliver excellent services and improve outcomes for the people of
Herefordshire’.

The Joint Corporate Plan contains the current overall targets, milestones and actions,
together with the current budgets and other resources to achieve them, over the coming
years.

The shared values expressed in the Joint Corporate Plan themes are:

e People — treating people fairly, with compassion, respect and dignity,

e Excellence — striving for excellence and the highest quality of service, care and life in

Herefordshire,
o Openness — being open, transparent and accountable for the decisions we make,

e Partnership — working together in partnership and with all our diverse communities,

e Listening — actively listening to, understanding and taking into account people’s views

and needs,

e Environment — protecting and promoting our outstanding natural environment and

heritage for the benefit of all.
The priorities of the joint Corporate Plan are:

e The creation of a strong economy

e The improvement of Health Care & Social Care

e Raising standards for Children and Young people
e The promotion of self reliant local communities

e Aresilient Herefordshire

e Commissioning the right services

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(O]
D




7.2

7.2.1

7.3

7.31

Financial Management Strategy
Introduction

This section of the JMTFS describes Herefordshire’s corporate financial objectives given
the national and local context. It also covers Herefordshire’s financial management
proposals to achieve these objectives. This section also describes the financial approach
for:

e Revenue spending.
e Capital investment.
e Treasury management.

Active risk management is a key component of the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements. This section of the JMTFS therefore sets out the key corporate and financial
risks the Council will be monitoring to ensure it stays on course to deliver its overall
objectives.

Corporate Financial Objectives
Herefordshire’s financial management objectives are to:
a) Ensure budget service plans are realistic, with balanced budgets and support

corporate priorities.

b) Manage spending within budgets; Directorates have a ‘non-negotiable’ pact to
manage outturn expenditure for each financial year within budget.

c) Ensure sustainable balances, reserves and provisions, within a reasonable limit,
consistent with the corporate financial risks and without tying up public resources
unnecessarily.

d) Create the financial capacity for strategic priorities for service improvement.

e) Support a minimum level of capital investment to meet the Council's strategic
requirements.

f) Maintain a strong balance sheet position.
g) Deliver and capture year on year efficiency and Value for Money improvements.

h)  Ensure an integrated approach to corporate, service and financial planning in full
consultation with key stakeholders.

i) Ensure a whole-life costing approach is taken to both revenue and capital spending
decisions.

Managing Partnership Resources
Herefordshire welcomes the opportunity to work with strategic partners to improve

outcomes. However, to achieve its corporate financial management objectives, we will
always seek to ensure:

a) The financial viability of partners before committing to an agreement.

b) Clarity of respective responsibilities and liabilities.

c) Accounting arrangements are established in advance of operation.

d) Implications of terms and conditions on any associated funding are considered in

advance of operation

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

o,
i




7.3.2

7.3.3

7.4

7.41

7.4.2

743

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

From April 2011 an Integrated Care Organisation (ICO) for Herefordshire will be
established, comprising the provider arm of the council and NHSH, alongside Hereford
Hospital Trust. The aim of the ICO is delivering health and social care which is focused on
providing care as close as possible to people’s homes, rather than in an institutional setting;
a model which is also aimed at identifying our most vulnerable citizens and shifting the
emphasis from diagnosis and treatment to prediction and prevention.

The creation of the ICO will deliver financial savings across the health sector which will
contribute towards financial viability. A proposal to change Care Pathways, shifting care
from a bed to community base with pilot areas for frail elderly, stroke, COPD and diabetes
are progressing. It is likely spend will increase within Social Care, but will be funded partly
by health savings.

Managing External Funding

Grants - provides another opportunity to increase financial capacity. The JMTFS will be to
pursue such opportunities, providing that:

a) Match funding requirements are considered in advance.

b) They support, or do not conflict or distract from, corporate priorities.

c) They have no ongoing commitment that cannot be met by base budget savings.
d) They do not put undue pressure on existing resources.

e) The net cost overall is not excessive

Managing Developer Contributions - This is another source of external funding that can be
secured through the planning system. It may be possible to secure funding to support the
cost of day-to-day services (e.g. commuted sums for maintenance of public open spaces).
Support for capital infrastructure can also be achieved in this way (e.g. developer
contributing to cost of new access roads). HPS aims to maximise the potential for
increasing financial capacity and managing growth in volumes through s106 agreements,
where possible.

Managing Fees and Charges - The Council is currently developing a charging protocol with
the aim of implementing a corporate charging policy. The policy will recognise the potential
for discretionary charges to fund services and ensure full cost recovery where feasible and
minimise the subsidy from Council budgets.

Managing the General Fund Balance and Specific Reserves

Herefordshire’s General Fund opening balance for 2010-11 was £5.39m, with an additional
contribution of £1m allocated on 1st April. This is in excess of the current policy in place to
maintain a minimum balance of £4.5m (3%).

Herefordshire’s financial management strategy is to maintain specific reserves to deal with
the key corporate financial risks reducing the need for a higher level of General Fund
balances. This strategy ensures there is complete transparency about what is resourced,
for corporate financial risks that, if realised, would affect the Council’s financial standing. It
represents an ‘open-book’ approach to accounting.

There is an increased level of risk attached to this volatile financial climate, and the use of
these reserves is not advisable without a clear strategy for payback in a short timeframe.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(O]
o




7.54

7.5.5

7.5.6

7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.7

7.71

7.7.2

7.8

7.81

7.8.2

All Directorates are expected to manage budget pressures within the overall requirement to
deliver an outturn at or below budget. Any in-year budget pressures must be managed by
use of a recovery plan, which is approved at Joint Management Team.

The need for the range and level of specific reserves and the policy for minimum General
Fund balances is continually reviewed as part of the financial planning, monitoring and
outturn processes.

It is proposed that a specific financial reserve is established following a review of current
specific reserves. The reserve will need to be £1m and any future use repaid as part of the
budget process. In order to incentivise sound financial management the first call on
“repayment” should be the directorate that has overspent in the previous year.

Governance

Maintaining strong financial control is a prerequisite to achieving the Council’s corporate
priorities and the integrity of the MTFS. Good systems and procedures are in place for
regularly reporting on financial performance to Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committee
and Scrutiny Committees as part of the integrated performance framework.

NHSH and Herefordshire Council currently operate two separate continuing care panels
and assessment processes which do not facilitate the joint commissioning of care
packages, best use of resources nor ensures the best outcomes for Herefordshire citizens.
Additionally, the use of personal health or social care budgets is not maximised. It is
proposed that a section 75 agreement be developed in 2011/12 that will support a single
assessment process, single panel and a joint commissioning approach via a pooled budget
approach.

Efficiency Review

Herefordshire’s strategy for securing efficiency gains is to seek continual improvement in
the productivity of all our resources, including people, land, property, ICT and cash.

Herefordshire has had a good track record delivering to the government’s efficiency targets.
For 2010/11 this rises to 4%. £6.7m.

Value for Money (VfM)

In October 2010 Herefordshire Council and PCT agreed a joint Value For Money Strategy.
This has built upon the development of the routine use of VFM information and
benchmarking data to review and challenge VfM throughout services and corporately,
supporting continuous service improvement and the drive for efficiencies. This is an integral
component of the Performance Improvement Cycle.

We support the drive for VM through the following mechanisms:

Ensuring service managers deliver the outputs and outcomes agreed for their service
area within budget, managing within budget is a key responsibility for all budget holders
embedded in our staff review and development procedures.

Support from the Procurement through efficient tender and other procurement processes
that ensure robust quality and price.

Integrating corporate, service and financial planning processes.

Planning over the medium-term as well as the short-term.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Developing our routine financial performance monitoring reports for Cabinet to include
VM data over the coming year.

Benchmarking our costs and activities, year on year and with other authorities.
Through internal and external audit reviews.

Through scrutiny reviews.

7.9 Financial Strategy for Capital Investment

7.9.1

7.9.2

7.9.3

7.94

The coalition government will no longer support borrowing costs. There future capital
funding is by way of grant:

Local Transport Plan

. This is now funded by an un-ring-fenced capital grant of £10.3m. 2010-11 funding
allocation was initially £13.0m reduced to £12.5m so this represents a further £2.3m
(17%) cut.

. Other funding pots have been announced, available through a bidding process, the
main one being the Local Sustainable Transport Fund (for sustainable transport
initiatives) which is available for both capital and revenue need. The first bidding
round closes in April 2011.

Schools Capital

« There has been a major shift in allocation of funding from devolving funding to schools
to allocating to the local authority.

« The total allocation has reduced by 1%. The main reduction is in relation to devolved
funds decreasing from funding in 2010-11 initially of £2.9m - reduced by a £1.4m
advance into 2009-10 - to £0.7m in 2011-12.

« The maintenance allocation for Hereford has therefore increased from funding in 2010-
11 of initially £1.9m - reduced by a £1.3m (advance into 2009/10) - to £2.7m in
2011/12.

Disabled Facilities Grant
. It is likely the Disabled Facilities Grant allocation will be circa £0.6m.

Adult Social Care
. A grant allocation of £0.4m has been published.

The FRM reflects the borrowing requirement implied by the Treasury Management Strategy
to support the capital programme currently in place.

The Council can fund additional borrowing to the extent it considers it is affordable and
prudent to do so (prudential borrowing) but are unlikely to fund any scheme unless a spend
to save/mitigation assessment demonstrates a clear benefit. One surprising aspect of the
Spending Review is that Public Work Loan Board rates (the rates at which local authorities
can borrow) will be 1% above the gilt rate (compared to the 0.13% previously). This makes
PB more expensive, and this is likely to reduce the amount of schemes that are given the
go ahead, both locally and nationally

The coalition government has recently announced new borrowing powers aimed at
encouraging local investment and economic growth. Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) Tax
works on the basis that when a development or public project is carried out, there is often
an increase in the value of surrounding land and property, and perhaps new investment.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(]
N




7.9.5

7.9.6

7.9.7

7.9.8

7.9.7

7.9.10

710

7.10.1

Local Authorities will be able to borrow against predicted growth in their locally raised
business rates. They can use borrowing to fund key infrastructure and other capital
projects, which will support locally driven economic development and growth.

The capital receipts reserve totalled £13.296m as at 1st April, 2010, this is likely to fall to
just over £6m by the end of the financial year. Capital receipts reserve funding has been
committed to fund the capital programme in coming years.

The financial management strategy for increasing capital investment capacity centres on:

e Maximising developers’ contributions.
o Effective project management of capital schemes to ensure they stay within budget.

o Implementing the property review arrangements set out in the Asset Management
Plan to rationalisation of property assets to release resources (capital and revenue).

e Maintaining our successful track record for innovative capital investment schemes.

e Attracting external funding

The challenges given to retaining assets will be based on value for money and delivery of
HPS’s strategic priorities and key service delivery. Surplus properties will either be recycled
or disposed of and proceeds will be reinvested. The disposal of land will be allowed after
consideration of sacrificing a capital receipt for transfer of the land for use as social
housing.

Over the longer term authorities are expected to generate income from selling surplus
assets and reduce the costs of running their property portfolios by providing efficiencies
including reducing carbon emissions from their capital stock. At the same time there is
increasing pressure to provide cross-cutting co-located services to provide a one-stop
service provision to the public which is steering authorities to share buildings, pool
resources and jointly plan strategic capital programmes with local agencies, private
companies, voluntary sector and community organisations. For local authorities to deliver
their priorities within the financial constraints officers must demonstrate creativity using
greater innovation and ideas, to deliver services differently.

The localities agenda is steering authorities to share buildings, pool resources and jointly
plan strategic capital programmes with local agencies, private companies, and voluntary
sector and community organisations. This new concept of meaningful engagement at a
very local level, critically challenges the historical basis for resource allocation and the
effectiveness of services to deliver on local need and is designed to provide a more
creative use of the current asset base and support improvements to community based
planning and service. This is designed to produce more efficient local spending by pooling
budgets and ending duplication.

Other Capital Grants

Herefordshire has been selected as one of four pilot schemes to deliver superfast
broadband to rural areas and this is expected to receive grant funding of £6m over the next
two financial years. An unringfenced allocation of disabled facilities grant is expected but
this hasn't been confirmed to date. The department of health has announced funding of
£452k towards personalisation, reform and efficiency in adult social care.

Capital Programme 2011-12

The 2011-12 capital programme represents funding indications received to date from grants
and the existing schemes that commenced in prior years.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




7.10.2

7.11

7.11.1

7.11.2

7.11.3

7.11.4

7.11.5

The following table summarises the existing capital investment programme updated for
slippage.

201112 201213 2013-14
£'000 £'000 £'000

Directorate
Children's Services 23,402 4,849 4,849
Resources 6,229 7,028
Deputy Chief Executive 482 208 -
Adult Social Care 1,123
Sustainable Communities 23,413 15,336 9,792
Public Health 289
Contingency (1%) 539 224 147
TOTAL 55,477 27,645 14,788
Funded by
Prudential Borrowing 10,920 7,811 147
Capital receipts reserve 4,260 - -
Grants and contributions 40,297 19,834 14,641
TOTAL 55,477 27,645 14,788

Treasury Management Strategy

The Council is required to approve an annual treasury management strategy each year as
part of the budget setting process. Herefordshire’s Treasury Management Strategy for
2011/12, is provided at Appendix A and complies with the detailed regulations that have to
be followed.

The Treasury Management Strategy is a key element of the overall financial management
strategy. It supports achievement of several corporate financial objectives, including
creating financial capacity within the revenue account as it aims to optimise investment and
borrowing decisions.

In summary, the Treasury Management Strategy sets out the Council’s strategy for making
borrowing and investment decisions during the year in the light of its view on future interest
rates. It identifies the types of investment the Council will use and the limits for non-
specified investments. On the borrowing side, it deals with the balance of fixed to variable
rate loan instruments, debt maturity profiles and rescheduling opportunities. The strategy
also included the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy.

Since the ‘credit crunch’ a more cautious approach to investment has been implemented,
these options deliver lower interest rates, but within a low risk environment. This has
resulted in reduced interest on investments used to support Council budgets.

The Council’s treasury adviser assists the Council in formulating views on interest rates.
They are predicting that the bank rate will remain at 0.50% until autumn 2011 when it will
gradually rise to reach 2.50% by the end of 2012.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(oAl
(0]




7.11.6

7117

712

7.12.1

7.12.2

7.12.3

The Treasury Management Strategy also sets the Prudential Code limits for the year and
beyond. These limits define the framework within which the Council self-regulates its
borrowing based on long-term affordability. These link back to the overall size of the capital
investment programme and the FRM.

The Treasury Management Strategy assumes that, as far as possible, external borrowing
for the capital programme will be delayed and will be funded by borrowing from internal
reserves until the economic situation improves. In the current climate long term borrowing
would be at considerably higher rates than investment income can generate and the
number of counter parties has reduced due to poor credit ratings.

Key Corporate & Financial Risks

HPS sees risk management as an essential element of the corporate governance
framework. All formal reports include a risk management assessment. The Cabinet
receives regular updates on the corporate risk register as part of our Performance
Reporting arrangements.

Service Plans for each directorate provide a section on both short and long term risk,
assessing the feasibility of delivering their objectives against barriers for delivery.

An extract from the Corporate Risk Register is shown at Appendix B where these items
could have a significant financial impact.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

()]
N




8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

8.3.1

8.3.1

8.3.2

Medium-Term Financial Resource Model (FRM)
Background

The FRM shown in Appendix C takes into account the corporate financial objectives and
MTFS approach set out in this document. The FRM is designed to provide an assessment
of the overall resource availability for the revenue account over the medium-term. It sets the
financial context for corporate and service planning so that the two planning processes are
fully integrated. It covers the period from 2011 to 2014.

Assumptions
The FRM includes the following assumptions;
a) Council Tax - a nil increase for 2011-12 and 2.5% there after

b) Formula Grant — the FRM reflects the two year settlement, including the grants
transferred in

c) New Homes Bonus - using the 2010-11 tax base compared to the 2009-10
demonstrates additional home growth of 468 which provides £660k. A similar level
of growth has been anticipated for future years.

d) Inflation -The current FRM includes 2% inflationary uplift on non pay expenditure
and income

e) Pay — assume zero pay awards for 2011 and 2012

f) Employers’ superannuation costs — the FRM includes increases in employers’
contributions rates of 0.7% in line with latest valuation which concluded in
November.

g) National Taxation — the FRM assumes there will be an increase in national

insurance contributions in 2011/12 in line with the pre-budget report.

h) Interest Rates — the FRM reflects interest rate assumptions for investment income
and new borrowing costs in line with the Treasury Management Strategy 2011-12.

Budget Process

The FRM includes key growth items and budget pressures identified as corporate priorities,
alongside service and initiatives council wide to deliver savings.

Given the provisional settlement only covers two years Joint Management Team conducted
more detailed financial planning for the two year period based on the Joint Corporate Plan.
As the settlement was worse in terms of total reduction and phasing a further phase that
saw Directors work to a further set of principles to help refine the budget proposals took
place. These principles are as follows:

e Directors to assume that grant reductions and grants that have ceased will not be
funded.

e The outcome of the Star Chamber process saw a level of budget growth request that
cannot be funded within existing budgets directorates must fund these requirements.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

(0)]
do




8.3.3

e The additional sums provided for Adult Social Care as part of the settlement and also
via Health will be added to the overall control total for Adult Services. No further
funding will be provided and service redesign will need to deliver a balanced position.

e There will not be any additional capital borrowing in 2011 apart from agreed prior year
decisions that still have a sound business case or where borrowing commitments cover
projects already being delivered. Spend to save funding will be made available where a
sound business case demonstrates a positive revenue contribution.

e Inflation will be applied to budgets. There is also an assumption that fees and charges
will be raised by inflation and that any subsidy of services through under recovery of
fees will end. An increase by the level of inflation will be built into budgets. A review of
fees as part of the emerging income policy will need to be undertaken and future level
of fees and charges will be adjusted to ensure we eliminate any subsidies.

A star chamber process has been used to identify and challenge savings proposals and
service pressures, with four key aims:

To sign off savings brought forward previously as part of the 2009/10 budget setting as well
as those from the current challenge and review cycle 2010/11

To identify further cross cutting savings from the “Rising to the Challenge” transformation
programme and to challenge those savings identified to date from lead Directors and work
stream leads — these are primarily;

o Streamlining the Business (Shared Services, Organisational Redesign, Office
accommodation and Commercial strategy)

o People and Performance (Reducing the pay-bill, agency spend)

o Communities first (property review)

o Customer Focus (replacement CRM)

o Better Services
To challenge and review all submitted service pressures

To review proposals from each Directorate for further savings and service change based on
the application of the Core Principles and Priorities shown below:

Core principles for the future... the financial challenges ahead require us to set out clearly what the
Council stands for, what residents can expect of us and what we expect of them

PRINCIPLE IMPACT EXAMPLES

Valued » Focusing on what matters to people, core
Services business, stopping things we don’t need to do

Reducing leisure funding
More outsourcing

Cutting Red |+ Less regulation and bureaucracy, smaller local

Cutting back enforcement

Tape government » Abolishing old by-laws
Supporting » Targeting more resources on individuals, families, + 10 family intervention
the communities at risk or disadvantaged; early projects by 2014
Vulnerable intervention/prevention ¢ Reviewing eligibility criteria
Cutting Costs |+ Reducing the pay bill; third party spend savings; * 20% less managers by
smarter delivery 2012
* £4M less supplier spend by
2015

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Local Delivery |+ Devolution, role of parishes and the VCS; working * 25 local schemes parishes
through the nine localities by 2014

Personal « Self reliance, people and communities helping » Parish warden schemes

Responsibility themselves, behavioral change » Reduction in A&E visits

Our Priorities... Alongside our principles, we need to state the “must do’s” — the priorities to be

delivered in the next 2/3 years

L]

PRIORITY

IMPACT

A resilient Herefordshire

Preserving our environment and access to the countryside
Promoting access to services in rural areas
Strong voice in the region

Creating a strong
economy

Regeneration of Hereford; delivery of Hereford Futures
Delivery of key infrastructure for growth
Small business growth: jobs and wages; broadband

Raising Standards for
Children & Young people

An affordable education system
Meeting safeguarding standards
Increasing primary school and pupil performance

Improving Health Care and
Social Care

Reforming care for Older People
Creation of the ICO: April 2011
Planning for GP Consortium and Health Promotion changes

Promoting self reliant
local communities

A balanced housing market
Reducing fear of crime
Encourage community and parish planning

Commissioning the right
services

Streamlining working practices
High levels of customers and citizen satisfaction
A High quality workforce

Directorate Budgets

8.3.4

Explaining the settlement and financial consequences for Herefordshire have taken place

with town councils, business ratepayers and the public via presentations at Infoshops.

8.3.5

The Rising to the Challenge initiative is the HPS transformation programme. Its purpose is

to drive service improvement and deliver cost reduction proposals. The FRM highlights the
savings being proposed by the main initiatives are:

. Shared Services £2.5m - £1.8m of this target relates to the delivery of procurement
efficiencies, with other savings expected to arise from staff reductions.

o Organisational Design £3.1m - this will be delivered by a reduction in staff
management, and wider departmental restructures.

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

»
D




8.3.6 A breakdown of the directorate pressures in the FRM are shown below;

8.3.7

8.3.8

8.3.9

£000 2011-12 2012-13
CYPD 309 186
Adults 576 1430
Sustainable Communities 960 640
Resources 4 (20)
Deputy Chief Executive (40)
Total 1,809 2,236

Savings

These pressures relate to growth in demographics activity alongside specific contract
inflation obligations.

As has been explained earlier, 2011/12 presents Directorates with a series of financial
challenges and a requirement that they support the Council to deliver a balanced budget.

The savings by directorate are split over the following initiatives.

£000 Other Rising to the Total
Savings Challenge
Resources 0 544 544
Sustainable Communities 831 1,369 2,200
Deputy Chief Executive 282 751 1,033
Adult Social Care 2,451 198 2,649
CYPD 877 870 1,747
Public Health 153 144 297
Procurement and Central 1,832 1,832
Total 4,594 5,708 10,302

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




9. Statutory Statement by the Council’s Chief Finance Officer

9.1 The purpose of this statement is to comply with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2003 whereby the Chief Finance Officer, in the Council’'s case the Director of
Resources must report on the:

a) Robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations.
b)  Adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

9.2 Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Director of Resources to report
to the Council when it is setting the budget and precept (Council tax). The Council is
required to take this report into account when making its budget and precept decision. The
Director of Resources’ report must deal with the robustness of the estimates included in the
budget and the adequacy of reserves.

9.3 The Director of Resources states that to the best of his knowledge and belief these budget
calculations are robust and have full regard to:

. The Council’s corporate plans and strategies;
. The Council’s budget strategy;
. The need to protect the Council’s financial standing and manage corporate financial
risks;
. This year’s financial performance;
. The Government’s financial policies;
. The Council’s medium-term financial planning framework;
. Capital programme obligations;
. Treasury Management best practice;
. The strengths of the Council’s financial control procedures;
. The extent of the Council’s balances and reserves; and
. Prevailing economic climate and future prospects.
David Powell

Director of Resources

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Appendix A

Herefordshire Council

Treasury Management Strategy 2011/12

Contents

1. Background

2. Balance Sheet and Treasury Position
3. Borrowing and Rescheduling Strategy
4, Outlook for Interest Rates

5. Investment Policy and Strategy

6. Balanced Budget Requirement

7. 2011/12 MRP Statement

Appendices

1. Current and Projected Portfolio Position

2. Interest Rate Outlook

3. Specified Investments for use by the Council

4, Non- Specified Investments for use by the Council
5. Treasury Management Policy Statement

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in the Public Services (the “CIPFA TM Code”) and the Prudential Code require local
authorities to determine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Prudential
Indicators on an annual basis. The TMSS also incorporates the Investment Strategy as required
under Investment Guidance provided by Communities and Local Government (CLG).

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as:

“the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No treasury management
activity is without risk. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are
integral elements to treasury management activities and include credit and counterparty
risk, liquidity risk, market or interest rate risk, refinancing risk and legal and regulatory risk.

The strategy takes into account the impact of the council’s revenue budget and capital
programme on the Balance Sheet position, the current and projected treasury position
(Appendix 1), the Prudential Indicators and the outlook for interest rates (Appendix 2).

The purpose of this TMSS is to approve:

o Treasury Management Strategy for 2011-12 (Borrowing and Debt Rescheduling -
Section 3 and Investments - Section 4)

o Prudential Indicators (NB: the Authorised Limit is a statutory limit)
o MRP Statement — Section 7
o Use of Specified and Non-Specified Investments — Appendices 3 & 4

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




1.6 The council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at its Full
Council meeting on 4 March 2011. The council has incorporated the changes from the
revised CIPFA Code of Practice into its treasury policies, procedures and practices.’

1.7 All treasury activity will comply with relevant statutes, guidance and accounting standards.

Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, as measured by the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)? together with Balances and Reserves, are the core drivers of Treasury
Management Activity. The estimates, based on the current Revenue Budget and Capital
Programmes, are:

31/03/2011 | 31/03/2012 | 31/03/2013 | 31/03/2014
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £°000 £000 £000
Total CFR 209,407 209,550 206,602 196,275
Less:
Existing Profile of
Borrowing 135,102 129,766 126,932 124,085
Other Long Term Liabilities 28,888 27,982 27,018 25,952
Cumulative Maximum
External Borrowing 45,417 51,802 52,652 46,238
Requirement
Balances & Reserves 26,114 20,854 19,984 18,626
g“m“'a.“"e Net 19,303 30,948 32,668 27,612
orrowing Requirement

The council’s level of physical debt and investments is linked to these components of the Balance
Sheet. The current portfolio position is set out at Appendix 1. Market conditions, interest rate
expectations and credit risk considerations will influence the council’s strategy in determining the
borrowing and investment activity against the underlying Balance Sheet position. The council will
ensure that net physical external borrowing® (i.e. net of investments) will not exceed the CFR other
than for short term cash flow requirements.

Estimates of Capital Expenditure:

It is a requirement of the Prudential Code to ensure that capital expenditure remains within
sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on council tax.

Capital Expenditure 2010/11 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Total 77,904 74,656 55,477 27,645 14,788

! This Prudential Indicator demonstrates the Council has adopted the principles of best practice in terms of Treasury Management

2 The Capital Financing Requirement measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.
3 This is a key indicator of prudence and should not exceed the Capital Financing Requirement. As the CFR represents the level of borrowing for
capital purposes, and revenue expenditure cannot be financed from borrowing, net physical external borrowing. Should not exceed the CFR other

than for short term cash flow requirements.
Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -
12 January 2011




Capital expenditure is expected to be financed as follows *:

Capital Financing 2010/11 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Capital receipts 5,820 9,120 4,260 0 0
Government Grants 40,255 39,605 40,297 19,834 14,641
Revenue contributions 0 208 0 0 0
Total Financing 46,075 48,933 44,557 19,834 14,641
Supported borrowing 13,229 13,230 0 0 0
Unsupported borrowing 18,600 12,493 10,920 7,811 147
Total Funding 31,829 25,723 10,920 7,811 147
gora; Financing and 77,004 | 74656 | 55477 27,645| 14,788
undmg
Notes:

e The unsupported or prudential borrowing is to support ongoing capital schemes that
were approved in prior years. No new prudential schemes are included in the above
figures.

e As part of the Spending Review, the government made the decision not to make any
new supported borrowing allocations as part of the Formula Grant. Although the level
of existing supported borrowing will continue to be financed through Formula Grant, for

2011/12 onwards support for new capital expenditure will be provided in the form of a
capital grant.

Affordability of Capital Investment Decisions:

As an indicator of affordability, one of the Prudential indicators looks at the impact of capital
investment decisions on council tax levels. The incremental impact is calculated by comparing the
total revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital programme with an equivalent
calculation of the revenue budget requirement arising from the proposed capital programme.

However, whilst there has been slippage of the existing approved capital programme, no new
funding has been proposed.

The ratio of financing costs to the council’s net revenue stream® is another indicator of affordability
and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying

the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet borrowing costs. The ratio is based on costs
net of investment income.

Ratio of Financing 2010/11 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
Costs to Net Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Revenue Stream £m £m £m £m £m

Net Revenue Stream 142,844 | 146,130 | 152,761 | 152,460 | 154,751
Financing Costs 14,147 | 15,890 17,520 17,375 16,735
Percentage 9.90% | 11.12% | 11.47% | 11.40% | 10.81%

The above percentages have increased from last years Strategy Statement due to new accounting
arrangements for PFl schemes. The above figures now include interest payable on finance leases.

4 The element to be financed from borrowing impacts on the movement in the Capital Financing Requirement. An increase in the CFR in turn
produces an increased requirement to charge MRP in the Revenue Account.

5 The Capital Financing Requirement measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Borrowing and Rescheduling Strategy

The council’s forecast of actual gross borrowing plus other long-term liabilities is shown in
Appendix 1.

The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross basis (i.e. not net of

investments) and is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local Government Act
2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit).

Authorised Limit for 2010/11 2010/11 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
External Debt Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

£million | £million | £million | £million | £million
Borrowing 200 200 190 190 180
Other Long-term liabilities 30 30 40 40 40
Total 230 230 230 230 220

The Operational Boundary links directly to the council’s estimates of the CFR and estimates of
other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same estimates as the Authorised

Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario but without the additional
headroom included within the Authorised Limit.

Operational Boundary 2010/11 | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
for External Debt Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

£million | £million | £million | £million | £million
Borrowing 190 180 175 175 165
Other Long-term Liabilities 30 30 35 35 35
Total 220 210 210 210 200

The Director of Resources has delegated authority, within the total limit for any individual year, to
effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long-term liabilities.

Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and best value
considerations.

In conjunction with advice from its treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the council will keep under
review the following borrowing options®:
PWLB loans
e Borrowing from other local authorities

Borrowing from institutions such as the European Investment Bank and directly from
Commercial Banks

Borrowing from the Money Markets
Local authority stock issues

Local authority bills

Structured finance (such as leasing etc)

3.6 From 20" October 2010, as part of the government’'s Comprehensive Spending Review,

the margin that the council has to pay on new fixed rate loans from the PWLB, compared to
the governments own cost of borrowing, was increased from 0.25% to 1.00%. Despite this
increase to the cost of PWLB borrowing, the PWLB remains an attractive source of

® These sources of borrowing should also then be included in the Treasury Management Practices.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

»
~N




3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

borrowing given the transparency and control that its facilities continue to provide. The
types of PWLB borrowing that are considered appropriate for a low interest rate
environment are:

o Variable rate borrowing

o Medium-term Equal Instalments of Principal (EIP) or Annuity Loans

e Long-term Maturity loans, where affordable

Capital expenditure levels, market conditions and interest rate levels will be monitored
during the year in order to minimise borrowing costs over the medium to longer term and
maintain stability. The differential between debt costs and investment earnings, despite long
term borrowing rates being at low levels, remains acute and this is expected to remain a
feature during 2011/12. The “cost of carry” associated with medium- and long-term
borrowing compared to temporary investment returns means that new fixed rate borrowing
could entail additional short-term costs. Where affordable, the use of internal resources in
lieu of borrowing may again, in 2011/12, be the most cost effective means of financing
capital expenditure.

PWLB variable rates are expected to remain low as the Bank Rate is maintained at
historically low levels for an extended period. Whilst variable rate loans may be an
attractive option in 2011/12, exposure to variable interest rates will be kept under regular
review. In a climate of increasing medium to long-term rates, short-term savings from
variable rate loans need to be weighed up against additional costs in the future from not
fixing borrowing rates sooner rather than later.

As an alternative to PWLB variable borrowing, the council may consider using a
succession of short-term market loans arranged through the brokers. However, whilst this
is a cheaper source of finance it may only postpone PWLB borrowing if funds became
difficult to obtain.

The council has two bank loans of £6 million each which are LOBO loans (Lender’s Option
Borrower’s Option). Each year, on the anniversary of taking out the loan, the lender may
exercise their option to change the rate or terms of the loan. If this happens the council will
consider the terms being offered and also repayment of the loan without penalty. The
council may utilise cash resources for repayment or may consider replacing the loan.

Following the increase in PWLB rates, the interest rates payable on existing loans now
appear more attractive compared to the equivalent rates under the new regime. Therefore
opportunities for debt rescheduling are now more limited.

The rationale for debt rescheduling continues to be one or more of the following:
e Savings in interest costs with minimal risk
e Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate debt) of the debt
portfolio
¢ Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent refinancing risks.
As opportunities arise, they will be identified by Arlingclose and discussed with the council’s
officers.

Borrowing and rescheduling activity will be reported to both Cabinet and the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in bi-monthly reports.

The following Prudential Indicators allow the council to manage the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in interest rates. The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been
set to ensure that the council is not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely
impact on the revenue budget. The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset
exposure to changes in short-term rates on investments.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




Borrowing Limits 2010/11 2010/11 201112 | 2012/13 | 2013/14
Approved Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
% % % % %
Upper Limit for Fixed
Interest Rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Exposure
Upper Limit for
Variable Interest 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Rate Exposure
The council’s borrowing relates wholly to fixed interest rate loans. However, it is

recognised that it may be desirable to have a variable element in the loans portfolio over
the longer term (particularly when interest rates are high or falling) and so the council
continues to monitor rates and will take out variable borrowing when it is considered
advantageous to do so.

3.14  The council will also limit and monitor large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be
replaced.” Limits in the following table are intended to control excessive exposures to
volatility in interest rates when refinancing maturing debt.

. . s Lower Limit | Upper Limit
Maturlty structure of fixed rate EXIstlrLg levels for 2011/12 for 2011/12
borrowing %o b o

%o %o

under 12 months 12.83 0.00 25.00
12 months and within 24 210 0.00 20.00
months

24 months and within 5 years 9.47 0.00 30.00
5 years and within 10 years 12.81 0.00 40.00
10 years and within 20 years 19.86 0.00 40.00
20 years and within 30 years 14.80

30 years and within 40 years 9.62 25.00 100.00
40 years and within 50 years 18.51

3.15 In the maturity profile above the council’s two LOBO loans (referred to in section 3.9) are
included as being repayable within 12 months as this is the earliest time when the loans
could be repaid. However, if the lenders do not increase the interest rate being charged
these loans could remain outstanding until 2054.

4, Investment Policy and Strateqy

4.1. Guidance from CLG on Local Government Investments in England requires that an Annual
Investment Strategy (AlS) be set.

4.2. The council’s investment priorities are:

" This Prudential Indicator is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a percentage of total
projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can require
payment. The TM Code of Practice (Guidance Notes page 12) recommends that the Maturity Structure of fixed rate borrowing is to be broken
down into several ranges if significant debt is held in periods in excess of 10 years

The TM Code Guidance Notes encourage authorities to define their benchmark interest rate exposure and maturity profile position and then set
limits to logically relate to that benchmark.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




4.3.

4.4.

4.4

4.5

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

e security of the invested capital;
¢ liquidity of the invested capital,
¢ an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity.

Investments are categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ investments based on the

criteria in the CLG Guidance. A specified investment:

o Is sterling denominated

o Has a maximum maturity of 1 year

o Meets the “high” credit criteria as determined by the council or is made with the UK
government or is made with a local authority in England, Wales and Scotland.

e Is not defined as capital expenditure under section 25(1) (d) in SI 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the
investment is not loan capital or share capital in a body corporate).

Potential instruments for the council’s use within its investment strategy are contained in
Appendices 3 and 4. The Director of Resources, under delegated powers, will undertake
the most appropriate form of investments in keeping with the investment objectives, income
and risk management requirements and Prudential Indicators.

Changes to investment strategy for 2011/12 include:
¢ AAA-rate Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV) Money Market Funds
e Treasury Bills
e Term deposits in Sweden
¢ Maximum duration for new deposits of 2 years

The council’s current and projected level of investments is shown at Appendix 1.

The council’s in-house investments are made with reference to the outlook for the UK Bank
Rate and money market rates.

In any period of significant stress in the markets, the default position is for investments to
be made with the Debt Management Office or UK Treasury Bills. (The rates of interest from
the DMADEF are below equivalent money market rates, but the returns are an acceptable
trade-off for the guarantee that the council’s capital is secure.)

The council and its treasury advisors, Arlingclose, selects countries and the institutions
within them for the counterparty list after analysis and careful monitoring of:

= Credit Ratings (minimum long-term A+ for counterparties; AA+ for countries)

= Credit Default Swaps (where quoted)

= GDP; Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP

= Sovereign Support Mechanisms/potential support from a well-resourced  parent

institution

= Share Prices

= Macro-economic indicators

= Corporate developments, news and articles, market sentiment.

The council and its Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose, will continue to analyse and monitor
these indicators and credit developments on a regular basis and respond as necessary to
ensure security of the capital sums invested.

The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009, and is anticipated to
remain at low levels throughout 2011/12. Short-term money market rates are likely to

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

5.1

6.

remain at very low levels for an extended period which will have a significant impact on
investment income.

To avoid a cost of carry when comparing the rate earned on investments to the cost of
borrowing, the council may consider running its investments down and keeping its balances
relatively liquid.

Alternatively faced with increasing borrowing rates the council may take out fixed rate loans
and reduce the cost of carry by making longer-term investments. Two-year deposits and
longer-term secure investments will be considered within the limits the council has set for
Non-Specified Investments (see Appendix 4). The longer-term investments may include:
o Term Deposits with counterparties rated at least A+ (or equivalent)
e  Supranational Bonds (bonds issued by multilateral development banks): Even  at
the lower yields likely to be in force, the return on these bonds will provide certainty
of income against an outlook of low official interest rates.

The Prudential Code requires the setting of an upper limit for principal sums invested for
over 364 days. This limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise as a
result of the council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested.

. 2010/11 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 201213 | 2013/14
Approved | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Upper Limit for
total principal
sums invested 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
over 364 days ®

Collective Investment Schemes (Pooled Funds)

The council may evaluate the use of Pooled Funds (which are similar in nature to unit
trusts) to determine the appropriateness of their use within the investment portfolio. Pooled
funds may enable the council to diversify the assets and the underlying risk in the
investment portfolio and provide the potential for enhanced returns.

Investments in pooled funds will only be undertaken with advice from Arlingclose and their
performance and continued suitability in meeting the council’s investment objectives would
be regularly monitored.

Outlook for Interest Rates

The economic interest rate outlook provided by the council’s treasury advisor, Arlingclose
Ltd, is attached at Appendix 2. The treasury management strategy will be kept under
regular review and, if needs be, will be realigned with evolving market conditions and
expectations for future interest rates.

Balanced Budget Requirement

8 please make allowance within this Indicator for amounts invested for 1 year, i.e. 365/366 days.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

~N
4




6.1.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The council complies with the provisions of S32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
to set a balanced budget.

2011/12 MRP Statement®

Background:

For many years local authorities were required by Statute and associated Statutory
Instruments to charge to the Revenue Account an annual provision for the repayment of
debt associated with expenditure incurred on capital assets. This charge to the Revenue
Account was referred to as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). In practice MRP
represents the financing of capital expenditure from the revenue account that was initially
funded by borrowing.

In February 2008 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 [Statutory Instrument 2008/414] were approved by
Parliament and became effective on 31 March 2008. These regulations replaced the
formula based method for calculating MRP which existed under previous regulations under
the Local Government Act 2003. The new regulations require a local authority to determine
each financial year an amount of MRP which it considers to be prudent. Linked to this new
regulation, CLG produced Statutory Guidance which local authorities are required to follow,
setting out what constitutes a prudent provision.

The CLG Guidance recommends that before the start of the financial year, a statement of
MRP policy for the forthcoming financial year is approved by the Full council.

The broad aim of the policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a period that is
reasonably commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure (which gave
rise to the debt) provides benefits. In the case of borrowing supported by Revenue Support
Grant, the aim is that MRP is charged over a period reasonably commensurate with the
period implicit in the determination of that grant.

The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) means that Private
Finance Initiative (PFl) schemes and operating leases may be brought on Balance Sheet.
Where this is the case, such items are classed in accounting terms as a form of borrowing.
CLG has therefore proposed amending the Capital Finance Regulations to ensure that the
impact on the revenue account is neutral, with MRP for these items matching the principal
repayment embedded within the PFI| or lease agreement.

Options for making ‘Prudent Provision’
There are four options for Prudent Provision set out in the guidance:

Option 1 - Regulatory

For debt which is supported by the Government through Revenue Support Grant (RSG),
authorities may continue to use the formulae under the 2003 Regulations, as RSG debt
support is calculated in that way. This includes applying an adjustment (the Iltem A
adjustment), which reduces the charge back to the former credit ceiling accounting
methodology.

Option 2 - CFR method
This is similar to option 1, but just uses the CFR and doesn’t apply the full formula,
including the Item A adjustment. Under this option the annual repayment would be higher.

° The Annual MRP Statement is subject to Council approval and may therefore be reported separately to Council instead of being incorporated into

the TMSS.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

N
o




7.7

Option 3 - Asset Life Method

For new borrowing under the prudential system there are 2 options in the guidance. The
first is to make provision over the estimated life of the asset for which the borrowing is
undertaken. This can either be on an equal instalment method or an annuity basis.

Option 4 - Depreciation method
An alternative to Option 3 is to make provision in line with depreciation accounting.
Although this would follow standard rules for depreciation accounting there would have to
be some exceptions, for example, that MRP would continue until the provision is equal to
the original debt and then cease.

MRP Policy 2010-11
In line with the guidance produced by the Secretary of State, the proposed policy for the
2010-11 calculation of MRP is as follows:

e Borrowing supported through the RSG grant system will be repaid in accordance with
the 2003 Regulations.

e Prudential borrowing will be repaid over the life of the asset on an equal instalment
basis commencing in the year following the year in which the asset first becomes
operational.

e For expenditure under Regulation 25(1) (b), loans and grants towards capital
expenditure by third parties, prudential borrowing will be repaid over the life of the
asset in relation to which the third party expenditure is incurred.

e MRP in respect of PFl and leases brought on Balance Sheet, under the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2009 and IFRS, will
match the annual principal repayment for the associated deferred liability.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

N
do




APPENDIX 1

EXISTING PORTFOLIO PROJECTED FORWARD

Current | % ]| 31 Mar11 | 31 Mar12 | 31 Mar 13 | 31 Mar 14
Portfolio Estimate Estimate | Estimate Estimate
at
31.12.10
£m £m £m £m £m

DEBT:
Total External Borrowing 135 145 147 146 143
Other long-term liabilities 29 29 28 27 26
Total Gross External 164 174 175 173 169
Debt
INVESTMENTS:
Fixed rate deposits for
364 days 5 9 12 12 12
Other shor_ter-term fixed 9 0 0 0 0
rate deposits
Variable rate instant
access and notice 27 16 11 11 11
accounts
Total Investments 41 25 23 23 23
L2 oo 123 149 152 150 146

POSITION

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




APPENDIX 2

ARLINGCLOSE’S ECONOMIC AND INTEREST RATE FORECAST

Dec- | Mar- | Jun- | Sep- | Dec- | Mar- | Jun- | Sep- | Dec- | Mar- | Jun-
10 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 13 13

Bank

o 0.50 | 0.50 | 0.50 | 0.75 | 1.00 | 1.25 | 1.50 | 2.00 | 2.50 | 2.75 | 2.75
rate (%)

PWLB rates (%):

5 years 3.00 | 3.25 | 3.75 | 4.25 | 4.50 | 4.75 | 5.00 | 5.00 | 5.00 | 5.00 | 5.00

10 years | 4.50 | 4.75 | 475 | 5.00 | 5.25 | 5,50 | 576 | 5.75 | 5.75 | 5.75 | 5.75

20 years | 5.25 | 5.50 | 5.75 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00 | 6.00

50 years | 5.25 | 525 | 550 | 575 | 575 | 575 | 5.75 | 550 | 550 | 5.50 | 5.50

» The recovery in economic growth is likely to be slow and uneven.

» The initial market reaction to the government’s Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) is
positive, but implementation risks remain.

» The path of base rates reflects the fragility of the recovery and the significantly greater
fiscal tightening of the emergency budget. With growth and underlying inflation likely to
remain subdued, the Bank will stick to its lower for longer stance on policy rates.

» Uncertainty surrounding Eurozone sovereign debt and the risk of contagion remains a
cause for concern in the global credit market.

Underlying assumptions:

» The framework and targets announced in the CSR to reduce the budget deficit and
government debt are as announced in June and focuses on how the cuts are to be
distributed. The next fiscal milestone will be the Office Of Budget Responsibility’s
assessment of the CSR’s implications for growth, employment and inflation.

» The minutes of the Monetary Policy Committee’s December meeting suggested a
movement away from further Quantitative Easing. Despite Money Supply being weak and
growth prospects remaining subdued, the MPC have gravitated towards increasing rates in
the New Year as global inflation continues to rise along with household inflation.

» Consumer Price Inflation remains above 3% and is likely to spike above 4% in January as
VAT, utilities and rail fares increase.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




» Unemployment remains near a 16 year high, at just over 2.5 million, and is set to increase
as the Public Sector shrinks. Meanwhile employment is growing but this is mainly due to
part time work, leaving many with reduced income.

» Recently announced Basel Il capital/liquidity rules and extended timescales are positive for
banks. Restructuring of UK banks’ balance sheets is ongoing and expected to take a long
time to complete. This will be a pre-condition for normalisation of credit conditions and
bank lending.

» Mortgage repayment, a reduction in net consumer credit and weak consumer confidence
are consistent with lower consumption and therefore may limit future trend rates of growth,
despite Q3’s fairly strong performance.

» The US Federal Reserve downgraded its outlook for US growth; the Fed is concerned
enough to signal further QE through asset purchases. Industrial production and growth in
the Chinese economy are showing signs of slowing. Both have implications for the global
economy.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011




APPENDIX 3
Specified and Non Specified Investments

Specified Investments identified for use by the council
Specified Investments will be those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance, i.e. the investment

is sterling denominated

e has a maximum maturity of 1 year
meets the “high credit quality” as determined by the council or is made with the UK
government or is made with a local authority in England, Wales, Scotland or Northern Ireland
or a parish or community council.

¢ the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section 25(1)(d) in SI 2003 No
3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or share capital in a body corporate).

“Specified” Investments identified for the council’s use are:

° Deposits in the DMO’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility
. Deposits with UK local authorities

. Deposits with banks and building societies

. *Certificates of deposit with banks and building societies

° *Gilts: (bonds issued by the UK government)

° *Bonds issued by multilateral development banks

. Treasury Bills

o AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (CNAV)
o AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Variable Net Asset Value (VNAV)

. Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes— i.e. credit rated funds
which meet the definition of a collective investment scheme as defined in SI 2004 No 534
and S| 2007 No 573.

* Investments in these instruments will be on advice from the council’s treasury aadvisor.

For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the lowest equivalent short-term and
long-term ratings assigned by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (where assigned).

Long-term minimum: A+ (Fitch); A1 (Moody’s); A+ (S&P)
Short-term minimum: F1 (Fitch); P-1 (Moody’s); A-1 (S&P)

The council will also take into account information on corporate developments and market
sentiment towards investment counterparties.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

N
N




New specified investments will be made within the following limits:

Instrument Country/ Counterparty Maximum
Domicile Counter-party

Limits £m

Term Deposits UK DMADF, DMO No limit

Term Deposits/Call UK Other UK Local Authorities No limit

Accounts

Term Deposits/Call UK* Counterparties rated at least A+ Long £5 million

Accounts Term and F1 Short Term (or equivalent)

Term Deposits/Call Non-UK* Counterparties rated at least A+ Long £5 million

Accounts Term and F1 Short Term (or equivalent)

in select countries with a Sovereign
Rating of at least AA+

Gilts UK DMO No limit
Treasury Bills UK DMO No limit

Local Authority Bills | UK Other UK local authorities No limit
Bonds issued by (For example, European Investment £5 million
multilateral Bank/council of Europe, Inter American

development banks Development Bank)

AAA-rated Money UK/Ireland/ | CNAV MMFs £5 million per
Market Funds Luxembour | VNAV MMFs (where there is greater than | Fund

g domiciled | 12 month history of a consistent £1 Net
Asset Value)

Other MMFs and UK/Ireland/ | Pooled funds which meet the definition of | £5 million per
CIS Luxembour | a Collective Investment Scheme per S| Fund
g domiciled | 2004 No 534 and subsequent
amendments

(For example, Payden & Rygel, Investec
Short Bond Fund)

NB Any existing deposits outside of the current criteria will be reinvested with the above criteria on
maturity.

NB
Non-UK Banks - These will be restricted to a maximum exposure of 25-30% per country to limit the
risk of over-exposure to any one country.

MMFs — Arlingclose emphasise diversification for all investments including MMFs and so the
council will spread their investments in Money Market Funds between two or more Funds.

Group Limits - For institutions within a banking group, a limit of 1.5 times the individual limit of a
single bank within that group is used. For example, a single bank may have a limit of £5 million but
if it is part of a group an overall group limit of £7.5 million would be applied.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

N
do




Non-Specified Investments determined for use by the council

Having considered the rationale and risk associated with

following have been determined for the council’s use:

APPENDIX 4

Non-Specified Investments, the

In- Maximum | Max % of | Capital
house maturity | portfolio | expenditure?
use
* Deposits with banks and building v
societies over 1 year 5 vears 25% in No
= CDs with banks and building y aggregate
societies v
=Gilts
=Bonds issued by multilateral
development banks v (on
=Bonds issued by financial advice 20% in
institutions guaranteed by the from 10 years ° t No
UK government treasury aggregate
=Sterling denominated bonds by advisor)
non-UK sovereign governments
o |
Money Market Funds and advice th
Collective Investment Schemes, from nod f.avz 20% No
which are not credit rated treasury a detine
advisor) mgturlty
ate
Government guaranteed bonds
and debt instruments issued by v 10 years 20% Yes
corporate bodies
Collective Investment Schemes v (on N/a — No
(Pooled funds) which do not meet advice defined
the definition of collective from maturit £2million Yes
investment schemes in Sl 2004 treasury date y
No 534 or S| 2007 No 573 advisor)

In determining the period to maturity of an investment, the investment should be regarded as
commencing on the date of the commitment of the investment rather than the date on which funds

are paid over to the counterparty.

12 January 2011

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -




1.1

2.1

3.1

APPENDIX 5
Treasury Management Policy Statement

Statement of Purpose

Herefordshire council adopts the recommendations made in CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice, which was revised in 2009. In
particular, the council adopts the following key principles and clauses.

Key Principles

Herefordshire council adopts the following three key principles (identified in Section 4 of the
Code):

The council will put in place formal and comprehensive objectives, policies and
practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective management and
control of its treasury management activities.

The council will ensure that its policies and practices make clear that the effective
management and control of risk are prime objectives of its treasury management
activities and that responsibility for these lies clearly with the council. In addition, the
council’s appetite for risk will form part of its annual strategy and will ensure that priority
is given to security and liquidity when investing funds.

The council acknowledges that the pursuits of best value in treasury management, and
the use of suitable performance measures, are valid and important tools to employ in
support of business and service objectives, whilst recognising that in balancing risk
against return, the council is more concerned to avoid risks than to maximise returns.

Adopted Clauses

Herefordshire council adopts the following clauses (identified in Section 5 of the code):

The council will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective treasury
management:

» A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies, objectives and
approach to risk management of its treasury management activities;

» Suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in which
the organisation will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and prescribing
how it will manage and control those activities.

The content of the policy statement and TMPs will follow the recommendations
contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to amendment where
necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of the council. Such amendments will
not result in the organisation materially deviating from the Code’s key principles.

The responsibility for the implementation and regular monitoring of treasury
management policies and practices is delegated to Cabinet and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to the Director of Resources, who will
act in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs and, if he or she is
a CIPFA member, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

do
D




41

5.1

52

the treasury management strategy and policies.
Definition of Treasury Management
Herefordshire council defines its treasury management activities as: -

‘The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.’

Policy Objectives

Herefordshire council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to
be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be
measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will
focus on their risk implications for the council.

Herefordshire council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore
committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, and to
employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the
context of effective risk management.

Joint Medium Term Financial Strategy -

12 January 2011

do
e




Medium Term Financial Strategy 2010-13

MTFRM

Base Budget

Inflation - Pensions & NI
Inflation - Other costs
Inflation - Income

Total Inflation

Transfers to/from RSG

- Grants Rolled into Formula Grant (reduced

figure)
- Personal Social Services

MTFMS Changes

- Waste management - PF| Contract
- Whitecross PFI requirement

- Local Development Framework

Shared Services

- Revenue Costs

- Capital Financing

- Core team costs (rev)

- Core team costs (capital financing)
- Shared Services

Capital Financing Costs
- Cost of borrowing

- Cashflow management
- Investment Income

Emerging Pressures

- Student Finance

- Income shortfall

- Management change reserve
- Spend to save reserve

- Winter maintenance

- Social care

- Contingency

- Statutory changes creating pressures

- Base budget funding issues
- Other service pressures

- Academy schools

- West Midlands Councils

- Retail Quarter Timescales

Efficiencies & Savings

2011/2012 2012/2013

Budget
£'000

142,844
730
2,632
(400)
2,962

145,806

10,832
1,961

o

(275)

(204)
292

(6)
250

570

Budget
£'000

146,130

281
2,678
(408)
2,551

148,681

(932)
1,480

500
0
0

2013/2014
Budget
£'000

142,539
861
2,441
(416)
2,886

145,425

(187)
259

500
250

(100)

o

APPENDIX B




- Directorate reductions

Rising to the Challenge
- Delayering Savings

- Reducing the Pay Bill

- Shared Services

New Homes Bonus
Council Tax Freeze Grant

General reserves

Movement from Reserves
Capacity to achieve desired Tax increase

TOTAL BUDGET

(4,594) (6,121) 0
(3,148) 0 0
0 0 0
(2,560) (638) (626)
(660) (660) (660)
(2,150) 0 0
(1,000) 0 0
(1,000) 500 0
129 (2,441) (1,496)
146,130 142,539 143,713




84



AGENDA ITEM 5

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 20 JANUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | JOINT CORPORATE PLAN 2011-2014

PORTFOLIO AREA: | CORPORATE & CUSTOMER SERVICES AND
HUMAN RESOURCES

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose

To invite Cabinet to commend for Council’'s approval the Council and NHS Herefordshire
Joint Corporate Plan vision, priorities and long-term outcomes attached at appendix 1.

Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.
Recommendation

THAT Cabinet recommends to Council the approval of the Joint Corporate Plan
vision, priorities and long-term outcomes as set out at Appendix 1.

Key Points Summary

o The current Joint Corporate Plan (JCP) is out of date and a new one is required for
2011-2014

o The JCP between the Council and NHS Herefordshire (NHSH) has been thoroughly
reviewed in line with the timescales of the agreed planning cycle. It will specify what
Herefordshire Public Services intends to achieve over the next period.

. The plan has been prepared to be affordable within the medium term financial
strategies of the two organisations

Alternative Options

1 There are no Alternative Options. The Council’s constitution requires there to be an
up-to-date Corporate Plan and the joint plan with NHSH meets this need. The
revised JCP will provide a sound basis for the performance management of the joint

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Tony Geeson Head of Policy & Performance on (01432) 261855

$n0zchg2l.doc 26Nov08

85




vision, priorities and long term outcomes and forms part of the Council’s Budget and
Policy Framework.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

As for Alternative Options. The constitution requires that the corporate plan is
approved by full Council.

Introduction and Background

3

The Herefordshire Public Services planning cycle envisages a review of the JCP
each autumn with Council approval in February.

The current plan — Appendix 2 - was probably the first joint corporate plan in the
country but there have been fundamental changes, locally and nationally, in the last
12 months which the plan does not reflect.

The intention was to produce a more focussed plan that only contained key activities
and which reflected the reduced resources available in the period ahead. It needed
to make sense as a political & managerial framework, as the basis for demonstrating
performance and for public reporting.

The clear strategic framework of the JCP is the basis for robust operational plans for
teams, services and directorates and ultimately the personal objectives for
individuals. Like the JCP, this wider planning process is already being streamlined in
accordance with the commitment in Rising to the Challenge transformation
programme to reduce bureaucracy and critically examine all processes for added
value

Key Considerations

7

The JCP across HPS is now one year old and due for routine review. However, there
has been a substantial amount of change in the past 12 months to the extent that the
plan requires a more fundamental revision than usual if it is to continue as the prime
measure of HPS performance.

There has never been a more important time for a strategic plan which shows
precisely what HPS aims to achieve in the years ahead. Major organisational
changes have now been captured in the Rising to the Challenge and the NHS &
Social Care commissioning programmes. The external influences on Herefordshire
are becoming clearer with the announcements of the NHS operating framework and
the local government financial settlement. The Localisation and the Police Reform &
Social Responsibility bills have been published along with White Papers on the
importance of teaching, healthier lives & healthier people (public health) and the
vision for social care.

The revised plan is based on six priorities which Cabinet members and Non
Executive Directors of the NHSH Board have discussed during the current budget
making round. The initial long term outcomes also come from these discussions to
which have been added the challenges JMT identified during the ‘star chamber’
process. JMT has considered the plan on three occasions and individual directorate
management teams have also contributed to its evolution. During this time Directors
have consulted with appropriate Cabinet members and, where appropriate, relevant
partnerships. The framework, at Appendix 1, is shorter than the current JCP but,

86



more importantly, is fundamentally different. The draft now focuses on Herefordshire
issues rather than the national performance framework and should only contain key
activities. Given this clarity the new plan will provide the strategic direction and
prioritisation required for the future in a clearer way.

10 The draft framework for the JCP which the Council and the Board of NHSH will be
asked to approve is attached at Appendix1. All the key issues the public of
Herefordshire regard as important, drawn from various consultations, are capable of
being covered in the plan; either by the framework directly or within the supporting
projects or detailed measures.

11 The JCP’s broad intention is to show how the whole system of public services in
Herefordshire is being transformed and, in particular, how HPS is contributing.
Appendix 1 also includes the HPS vision and the shared values adopted for Council
and NHSH employees. The priorities and outcomes are intended to be strategic and
long term. Although there are clear connections between many of those listed in
Appendix 1, they are not repeated for reasons of presentation and clarity. As
previously mentioned, the outcomes will be supported by a range of individual
projects and detailed measures so that progress can be demonstrated and
achievement made clear. These more detailed measures and projects will be agreed
through JMT.

12  The draft JCP will be discussed by the Herefordshire Partnership Management Group
shortly and their comments will be reported at the meeting.

13 Following Cabinet’s decision the timetable is:
o NHS Herefordshire Board approves the JCP — January 26
¢ Council approves the JCP — February 4

Given the elections in May 2011 and the recently published NHS outcomes
framework, it is likely that a JCP “refresh” will be necessary in the early summer to
reflect any changes to priorities that may be required. This would also be an
appropriate point to consider any changes indicated by the Sustainable Community
Strategy. This is currently being reviewed by the Herefordshire Partnership but will
be finalised in the spring.

Community Impact
14  The proposed JCP framework will demonstrate the priorities for delivery across HPS

and their relevance to the communities of Herefordshire even more clearly than in
the past.

Financial Implications

15 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
programmes designed to deliver the priorities in the plan are all within the available
resources

Legal Implications

16 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report

87



Risk Management

17 There are risks in producing any strategic plan at a time of such great change.
However without clear intentions to guide activity there is a danger of duplication and
wasted effort on lower priority tasks. The potential for further changes has been
mitigated to some extent since much of the likely content has already received
separate Cabinet or Board endorsement

Consultees
18 The Joint Management Team, Cabinet Members and Non Executive Directors of
NHSH have all considered earlier drafts of the plan during the current budget making

process. All Directorates have considered and commented on earlier drafts of the
document

Appendices

19 Appendix 1 Joint Corporate Plan Framework 2011 - 2014. (proposed)
Appendix 2 Joint Corporate Plan Framework 2010 — 2013 (current and being
replaced)

Background Papers

None identified

88



68

Appendix 1

THE HEREFORDSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES VISION

Working together to deliver efficient, excellent services and improve outcomes for the people of Herefordshire
We aim to put PEOPLE at the heart of everything we do. Our shared values are
People — treating people fairly, with compassion, respect and dignity, Excellence — striving for excellence and the highest quality of service, care and life in Herefordshire, Openness — being open,
transparent and accountable for the decisions we make, Partnership — working together in partnership and with all our diverse communities, Listening — actively listening to, understanding and taking into

account people’s views and needs, Environment — protecting and promoting our outstanding natural environment and heritage for the benefit of all.

OUR PRIORITIES ARE TO

1. Creating a thriving economy
(People & Place combined)

2. Improving Health Care & Social
Care (People focus)

3. Raising standards for Children
and Young people (People focus).

4. Promoting self reliant local
communities (Locality focus)

5. Creating a resilient Herefordshire
(County focus)

6. Commission the right services (Public
service focus)

LONG TERM OUTCOMES

1.1 The regeneration of
Herefordshire

2.1 Improving intervention & support
for older people and keeping them
safe

3.1 Sustainable educational

provision throughout Herefordshire

4.1 Vibrant cultural opportunities

5.1 Preserving and enhancing our
environment.

6.1 High quality assessments of need

1.2 Delivering & maintaining key
infrastructure including actions
to reduce congestion.

2.2 A robust & healthy provider
market

3.2 Improving intervention and
support for children & young
people and keeping them safe

4.2 Safe places where people feel
secure

5.2 Accessible services and
countryside

6.2. Streamlined, working practices

1.3 Growing businesses, jobs &
wage levels.

2.3 Financial balance across
Herefordshire’s health & social care
economy

years and primary school pupils

to their peers

3.3 Improving performance by early

including vulnerable groups relative

4.3 Enhancing local democracy and
community engagement.

5.3 A strong regional and national
reputation

6.3. High levels of customer and citizen
satisfaction

1.4 Developing employment
skills, including access to Higher
Education

2.4 Developing of a new local
commissioning infrastructure

3.4 Reducing child poverty

4.4 Ways of working that reflect the
needs and priorities of people & place

5.4 Protecting people’s health &
wellbeing.

6.4. A high quality workforce

1.5 Reducing health inequalities
for the working population

2.5 Good quality corporate and clinical
governance standards are embedded
in all services provided

to support all children & young
people effectively

3.5 Families & communities are able

4.5 A balanced housing market to meet
residents needs

5.5 Increasing equality of
opportunity

2.6 Reducing health inequalities for
frail, elderly people

children & young people

3.6 Reducing health inequalities for

2.7 More people retaining their
independence through greater choice
and control

JCP2011 v0.7a.doc Thursday 6 January




APPENDIX 2

JOINT CORPORATE PLAN 2010-13 FOR HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL AND NHS HEREFORDSHIRE

OUR VISION

the county:

e Low pay, low skills and the need for better infrastructure
e Avoidable ill-health and accidents
e Safeguarding vulnerable children and adults, including the increasing number of people aged over 85
e Improving access to affordable housing and key services, especially for those living in rural areas

e Doing all we can to combat climate change locally and deal with its impact
e Reducing inequalities by improving people’s life-chances

e At a time of severe constraints on public spending and people’s incomes, and growing demand for public services, ensuring excellence and value for money

Herefordshire will be a place where people, organisations and businesses, working together within an outstanding natural environment, will bring about sustainable prosperity and well-being for all

The Council and NHS Herefordshire, working together to deliver efficient, excellent services and improved outcomes for the people of Herefordshire, will take action to tackle the following major challenges for

OUR PRIORITY THEMES

Economic development and
enterprise

Healthier communities and
older people

Children and young people

Safer communities

Stronger communities

The environment

Organisational improvement and
greater efficiency

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

1. Improve infrastructure and
learning and employment
opportunities, enabling
business growth and
sustainable prosperity for all

2. Improve people’s health
and well-being, and reduce
health inequalities, enabling
people to be independent and
active and to contribute to
their local communities

3. Maximise the health, safety,
education, economic well-being,
achievements and contribution
of every child.

4. Make Herefordshire an even
safer place to live, work and visit

5. Stronger, vibrant, more inclusive
communities in which people enjoy
a good quality of life and feel they
have influence over their lives and
decisions that affect them

6. The protection and
enhancement of
Herefordshire’s distinctive
environment, and tackling
climate change

7. Being recognised as top-performing
organisations that deliver value for money
and ensure excellent services

06

LONG TERM OUTCOMES

1.1. Higher quality, better paid
jobs and reduced unemployment

2.1. People have longer,
healthier lives, with reduced
inequalities between different
groups and localities

3.1. Children and young people are
healthy and have healthy life-
styles, with less obesity and
substance mis-use, and better
dental and sexual health

4.1. Reduced levels of crime

5.1. Cohesive communities in which
people feel accepted, confident and
empowered, regardless of race,
disability, gender, sexual orientation,
age, religion or belief

6.1. Reduced waste and
increased recycling

7.1. The highest standards of leadership,
governance and integrity

1.2. Increased participation in
learning and higher levels of
skills and achievement

2.2. Older people living fulfilled
lives as active members of their
communities

3.2. Children and young people are
safe, secure and have stability

4.2. Reduced levels of anti-social
behaviour

5.2. Communities and individuals
participating in local decisions and
influencing them

6.2. Reduced CO” emissions
and successful adaptation to
unavoidable impacts of climate
change

7.2. Demonstrable value for money

1.3. More and higher-spending
visitors to the county

2.3. Vulnerable people able to
live safely and independently in
their own homes

3.3. Children and young people
are enabled to develop personally,
socially and emotionally, and to
achieve high standards of
educational attainment

4.3. Reduced harm from drugs and
alcohol

5.3. Affordable housing appropriate to
people’s needs and less
homelessness, with support for
vulnerable people to live independently

6.3. Increased biodiversity

7.3. Streamlined, efficient operations,
including the integrated delivery of services
across the boundaries of different
organisations

1.4. Improved quality &
availability of business
accommodation and
employment land

2.4. Enhanced emotional well-
being, with fewer suicides

3.4. Children and young people
engage in further education,
employment or training on leaving
school

4.4. Communities to have enhanced
resilience and recovery from
emergencies through effective
partnership planning and co-
ordination

5.4. Fair access to the services
residents need, including high quality
sporting, cultural and recreational
facilities and activities

6.4. Natural resources are
conserved and landscape
character maintained, with
sustainable land management

7.4. High levels of customer and citizen
satisfaction

1.5. Better roads, reduced traffic
congestion, with more people
walking, cycling or using public
transport

2.5. Personalised health and
social care services, which offer
people much greater choice and
influence over their care

3.5. Children and young people
engage in positive behaviour inside
and out of school

4.5. Fewer accidents and injuries

5.5 People are able to participate in,
the life of their communities

6.5. Investment in high quality
streets, public spaces and the
built environment

7.5. A highly skilled, highly motivated
workforce that works in effective partnership
with other organisations

2.6. Improved dental health

3.6 Improved access to good
quality care and other services for
children, young people and their
families through the work of
Herefordshire’s Children’s Trust

4.6. People feel as safe as they
would like to be

7.6. Highly rated under Comprehensive Area
Assessment and World Class Commissioning,
and recognised as exemplars regionally and
nationally

JCP2011 v0.7a.doc Thursday 6 January




AGENDA ITEM 6

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 20 JANUARY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: | EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY

REVIEW OF HOME CARE IN HEREFORDSHIRE

PORTFOLIO AREA: | ApyLT SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To respond to the review of home care.

Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation

That the response be agreed.

Introduction and Background

1

At the meeting of the Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee on 24
September 2010 the Committee agreed the findings and recommendations to the Executive
arising from the review of home care services (Appendix A).

In developing its response the Executive has taken into consideration the emerging national
vision for Adult Social Care.

Key Considerations

3 The Government’s plans for Adult Social Care were published on 17th November: ‘A

Vision for Adult Social Care: Capable Communities and Active Citizen’s’. The vision sets
the context for the future development of social care services. It is the first step which will
be followed by the Law Commission’s work on reforming the legal framework next spring
and the Commission on Funding of Care and Support next summer culminating in a White
Paper on Care and Support at the end of 2011. This will set out plans to establish a
modern and financially sustainable framework for care and support, and the requirements
for new legislation. It is intended that this will culminate in the publication of the Social Care
Reform Bill in the spring of 2012.

$5dde1fjv.doc

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Jana Burton: Acting Director of Adult Social Care on (01432) 344344 ext 3877

91

22/02/10



4 The Government has identified three values that underpin the vision: Freedom, Fairness
and Responsibility. The values signal a major policy shit from state to people and
communities, so that services can be purchased from different providers and that there is
clarity about how we pay for social care. This envisages a shift away from provision by the
state to include greater support from local schemes and networks of support.

5 Frontline workers and carers will be given the freedom and responsibility to do this. There
will also be clear expectations for councils to redesign service to realise greater gains in
productivity.

6 The vision for social care and its values have been built around seven principles all
beginning with the letter p: prevention, personalisation, partnership, protection, productivity,
plurality and people. Most of these are familiar concepts which have had currency since
the last White Paper: ‘Our Health, Our Care, Our Say’. Two however, need to be
understood as they are not immediately obvious. ‘Plurality’ is described as matching the
variety of peoples’ needs with diverse service provision. ‘People’ includes the whole
workforce providing care from professionals to carers and people who use services.

7 The current financial climate and national policy proposals signal the need for a
transformation in approach. Given what we already know about funding for local authorities
over the next four years, it is important that preparation for this happens now so that the
authority has anticipated, and is working towards, changes in a planned and measured
way. The focus will be on prevention, early intervention and reablement, moving from the
old-style service entitlements to creating and embedding a system on needs and outcomes.
The significant increase in the take-up of Personal Budgets will inform the future shape of
the market as many people may use their personal health and social care budgets to
employ personal assistants; reablement should result in a decrease in numbers of people
requiring traditional long term home care, day care and meals on wheels. We will define
and describe what good care looks like, understand the outcomes it delivers and the
associated cost-benefits, working closely with providers over the coming year to change
and diversify. The partnership between health and social care will be further developed to
ensure a single, streamlined, more efficient approach to service delivery across
Herefordshire.

8 The proposed response to the 15 recommendations of the Scrutiny review takes account of
the changing agenda. Some of the recommendations will only remain valid whilst the
transition to new forms of care and support are being developed. It is anticipated that by

September 2011 work will have been completed to produce clear and cost effective and
sustainable proposal for care and support.

Financial Implications

9 All actions proposed will be met from within existing agreed budgets.
Legal Implications

10 There are no legal implications

Risk Management

11 The proposed actions must be considered alongside progress within other relevant service
areas to ensure a strategic and co-hesive approach to future market development.

92



Consultees

12 None identified

Appendices
(A) Report: Scrutiny Review of Home Care in Herefordshire

(B) Executive response and action plan

Background Papers

o None identified.

93



94



@

Herefordshire

Council

Appendix A

Scrutiny Review of
Home Care in
Herefordshire

Report by the Home Care Review
Group — 24 September 2010

Agreed by the Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing Scrutiny
Committee on 24 September 2010

People
Excellence
Openness
Partnership
Listening
Environment

95



At the meeting on 24 September the Committee approved the Scrutiny Review of Home
Care in Herefordshire and that it be forwarded to the Leader and the Cabinet Member (Adult
Social Care, Health and Wellbeing) for consideration.

96



Scrutiny Review of Home Care in Herefordshire

o 0 A~ WO DN

N

10

11
Appendices
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3

Contents

Introduction

Method of Gathering Information
Background to the Review

Future Service Demands

Current Home Care Provider Market

Supporting The Growth In The Numbers Who Could
Need Help

Demonstrate value for money in procured Services
Home Care Unit Costs

Maximising Independence Through Home Care
Services

Instant Care

Recommendations

Scoping Document

Interviewees

Home Care Unit Costs

97

Page

H A~ WO N D

(3}

10

14
18
20



98



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

Introduction

Members of the Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee agreed to
conduct a Review of Home Care in Herefordshire on 14th December 2009.

A scoping statement for the Scrutiny Review (Appendix 1), including the Terms of
Reference were approved at the meeting on the 14th December 2009. The projected
growth in the percentage of older people living in Herefordshire means that the County
would be supporting a larger number of frail older and vulnerable people to live in their
own homes with home care services. The quality and capacity of the home care market
is therefore of key importance.

It was agreed that the review Group would comprise Councillors PA Andrews, AE Gray
and KS Guthrie, and would be chaired by Councillor AE Gray.

The Review took place between 9 February and 15 July 2010. This report summaries its
findings concluding with its recommendations to the Adult Social Care and Strategic
Housing Scrutiny Committee.

The Review Group would like to express its thanks to all internal and external officers
and organisations who were interviewed at part of this review.

Next Steps

The Review Group anticipate that, when approved by the Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee, this report will be presented to Cabinet for
consideration.

The Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee would then expect
Cabinet within two months of receipt of the report to consider the report and
recommendations and respond to the Committee indicating what action the Cabinet
propose to take together with an action plan.

Method of Gathering Information

The main work of the sub-group was to conduct interviews, complemented by some
desk research.

The list of interviewees is contained in Appendix 2 and the Review Group would like to
convey it's thanks to those who gave up their time to help with the work of the Group.

Background

For the purpose of this Review, Home Care services includes domiciliary care provided
by registered providers and also other help and support delivered at home and intended
to enable individuals to maintain their independence and well-being at home rather than
being admitted to hospital or long-term care.

Home care offers support such as shopping, help with personal care, meal preparation,
medication checks, repositioning and other services. In order to receive a home care
service funded by Herefordshire Council, an individual must meet the FACS (Fair
Access to Care Services) criteria of ‘Substantial’ or ‘Critical’. Individuals should be
supported and assisted wherever possible to improve their confidence and skills in order
to enable them to regain independence and become less dependent on home care
services. Home care can also be offered to support carers in their caring role — to offer a
break or respite.

99



3.3

3.4

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Individuals need to be supported in order to recognise and manage risks in their own
homes and to have an inclusive role within their local community. Assistive technology
(telecare), which ranges from a variety of systems such as pull cords, epilepsy sensors,
Just Checking systems to Safe Walking GIS is a cost effective means of providing this
support with the minimum of intrusion.

The definition of personal care has changed and now includes “prompting” to carry out
personal care. The significance of this is that previously this was carried out by
agencies and staff not regulated by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). The impact
will be further demand on an already stretched market of registered service providers.

Service Demands

The estimate of the resident population of the County as of 2008 is 179,300 people, of
whom 37,800 (21%) are aged 65+. This is a higher proportion than the 16% in England
& Wales. Older people account for the large majority of home care service users and
hours of care delivered.

As at the 31st March 2009, 3,345 people aged 65+ were helped to live at home with
support and services provided by adult social care. This compares with a comparator
authority average of 3,715 and an all England average 3,330. Of the 3,345 older
people receiving services in Herefordshire, 685 were receiving 11,494 hours of home
care in an average week.

The County’s dispersed population presents particular challenges for effective and
efficient service delivery. No other English county-level authority has a greater proportion
of residents living in ‘very sparse’ area than Herefordshire does - 25% of the population.
A total of 54% of the county’s residents live in areas defined as rural.

Herefordshire has a relatively elderly population, and the proportion of older residents is
expected to increase as follows:

2010 = 37,800 (21% of total population)
2014 = 46,300 (25% of total population)
2026 = 61,000 (32% of total population)

The demand for home care services in the future is therefore also certain to increase.
Even under the optimistic forecasts of improved population health' from the national
Wanless Review?, the anticipated demographic changes in Herefordshire would result in
an increase of more than 55% in the number of older people with a substantial need for
social care to help with at least one of the core activities of daily living (washing;
dressing; eating; getting in & out of bed/chair; going to the toilet) between 2004 and
2020 — a total of 6,500 people with this level of need (Table 1 below). This is a faster
rate of growth than the national average.

Table 1: Expected numbers of older people with a social care dependency

. % change % change 2004-
Herefordshire 2004 2011 2004-11 2020 20
Number of older people with a
HIGH demand for social care 4,200 5,100 21% 6,500 55%
Number of older people with o o
SOME dependency 10,500 12,800 22% 16,200 54%

Data source: Council corporate Policy and Research Team

' l.e. individuals ‘take their health seriously and there is a decline in risk factors, particularly obesity and smoking'.
The health service is responsive with effective disease prevention and treatments.

2 Securing Good Care for Older People — Taking a Long-Term View (2006). Wanless Social Care Review King's
Fund Report.

3
100



4.5

5.1

6

There is also expected to be a disproportionate increase in the numbers of older people
with dementia: of some 69% between 2004 and 2010 (over 700 more people) in those
needing continuous support, rising to 97% by 2015 (over 1,000 more people) and likely
to carry on rising substantially to 2020.

Current Home Care Provider Market

Current capacity continually struggles to meet demand and time taken to travel between
visits in rural areas is a major issue. There are certain to be on-going issues in the
future in view of the increasing older population and the national and local priority to
keep people independent and supported at home rather than placing them in long-term
care. Any improvements planned or implemented must therefore endeavour to sustain
and grow the independent provider market, especially in rural locations, and increase
overall service capacity and provision. With no increase in funding and the need to
make efficiency savings but still ensure a high quality service, this will be a challenge.

Supporting the growth in the numbers of people who could need help

Care Agencies

6.1

6.2

6.3

There are currently 36 independent home care provider agencies of varying size. Four
internal teams provide a reablement-type service. The responsibility for quality
monitoring and contract management sits within the contracting team in Integrated
Commissioning. Information about each agency, the geographical area covered and the
type and quality of service offered is co-ordinated by the internal Home Care Brokerage
Team.

This team is also responsible for the allocation of care packages on the basis of quality
of care following agreement at the Adult Social Care Panel. The Brokerage system will
award packages by reference to quality, where more than one provider is able to provide
the service it will always be awarded to the provider with the highest quality rating.

The Brokerage team is currently carrying a vacant post and is therefore under-
resourced. As a result, the ability to keep information up-to-date and ensure that those
needing care are matched to the most appropriate care agency is adversely affected.

The quality of service varies across the service providers and the Group considered that
care should only be commissioned from Two and Three Star providers. Although this
may at times jeopardise the ability to provide a service, this is not a major issue.
Herefordshire currently has five One Star services providing 9% of the overall hours of
care (table 2). Monitoring and contract management will focus on these One Star
services in order to secure necessary improvements.

Table 2: Home Care Provider Agencies - Percentage of care provided by CQC Star
Ratings

Number of Total hours of care Percentage of total
CQC Quality Rating ; . hours of care
Agencies currently provided :
provided
1 Star - Adequate 5 921 9%
2 Star - Good 16 6174 60%
3 Star - Excellent 12 3127 30%
Welsh Providers 3 105 1%

101



6.5 It should also be noted that CQC will not re-inspect One Star rated services if there is no
particular ongoing concern about quality. As a result, these Star ratings could be
misleading where providers have implemented necessary improvements but do not have
the opportunity for their Star rating to be reviewed by CQC. Likewise Two and Three
Star services will only be monitored every three years unless there are particular
concerns. Therefore the CQC rating may not provide an up-to-date reflection of quality.

6.6 Currently there are block contract agreements with four care agencies. Under the terms
of these agreements a number of adult social care staff were seconded when internal
home care services were externalised. These contracts are fully utilised wherever
possible before care is spot purchased from other agencies. The plan is to end block
contracts on 30" October 2010.

The intention in the future is to spot purchase all care. This in line with the
personalisation agenda and the requirement to offer individuals greater choice and
control over who delivers their care. The availability and use of of personal budgets will
result in greater capacity in the market and encourage continual quality improvement.

Workforce

6.7 The average age of care workers appears to be 30-40. Recruitment and retention
appears to be a problem, especially for the smaller agencies. Standards of staff
management, benefits and training vary across the agencies.

6.8 There are concerns that younger people are not entering into the caring profession.
With the expected increase in demand for this type of service, every effort must be made
to encourage younger people to consider this as a career. The public image of this
profession needs to improve and a career pathway developed.

6.9 There is huge potential to encourage informal and family carers who are looking to get
back into the workforce to utilise their skills to provide both qualified and unqualified
care.

6.10 The Authority’s Workforce Development team are keen to develop a partnership
approach to workforce planning and have facilitated a number of events throughout 2010 to
encourage full ownership and engagement from all stakeholders including service providers.
Future planned events aim to further develop this partnership approach to ensure a market
place and workforce fit for the future changing demands.

Recommendation 1: The Group recommends that the Care Brokerage Team is fully
resourced as a matter of urgency.

Recommendation 2: The issue regarding the seconded staff should be addressed as a
matter of urgency in order to reach a satisfactory outcome for the staff involved.

Recommendation 3: The Group recommends that the Authority’s Workforce
Development and Training Teams should work in close partnership with service
providers to plan and develop career pathways and progression for carers. Caring
should be seen as a ‘valued’ career and one that will be in increasing demand in the
future. Every effort should be made to ensure that school leavers are fully informed and
encouraged to take work placements in the caring profession.

Recommendation 4: The Workforce Development Team should assist with and/or co-

ordinate group training to allow service providers to share the cost of training sessions
and to ensure consistent standards and quality.

102



7

Demonstrate value for money in procured Services?

Monitoring Service Delivery

7.1

7.2

7.3

Current systems and processes do not provide accurate breakdown of visits and hours
of care actually delivered therefore unit cost information is unreliable. The hours of care
and costs are submitted on provider agency invoices, there is no way of ensuring that
this care has actually been provided.

The introduction locally, of an Electronic Monitoring System (EMS) for home care
services will address a number of issues. The main benefit to the council will be to
provide much improved and more accurate information in relation to home care
provision. Other local authorities have reported savings of 5% - 8% on expenditure,
enabled by implementing policy to only pay for care actually delivered. In addition EMS
data if properly analysed can be used to shape and improve future service provision. A
more efficient brokerage function results in increased capacity to effectively implement
quality improvement systems. A minimum standard in terms of ways of working will
apply to all service providers.

Within Adult social Care Exchequer Services an automated interface between EMS and
the finance systems will replace all of the current administration required to process
paper invoices and deal with disputes. It is likely that EMS monitoring and validation will
sit within the Home Care Brokerage Team which will need to be fully resourced in order
to ensure a well-co-ordinated and effective monitoring, validation and reporting process.
There may be an opportunity to move resources from Exchequer services into the
Brokerage team.

Benefits for provider agencies include the introduction of electronic processing which will
mean savings in terms of time taken to process and submit paper invoices. Payments to
providers for commissioned services will also be quicker once new procedures are
established. EMS also provides evidence of staff reliability and real time verification of
‘critical’ visits.

The main issues highlighted at the Carers Forum which the Group attended were in
relation to the reliability and consistency of care workers, this can be closely monitored
using EMS and should therefore improve. EMS confirms the time care workers spend in
the home through a phone in/out connection. Care workers record their arrival and
departure time at service users home using a free-phone telephone number and service
users’ telephone. The free phone number ensures that there is no cost to the service
user. Other options are available if telephone can’t be used e.g. digital code boxes,
mobile telephones, remote logging from office / home. The hours of care delivered are
electronically matched to those commissioned.

Recommendation 5: The Group recommends that once EMS is fully implemented that
the Council should only pay for hours of care actually delivered according to the banding
rates agreed with the providers. Clear policy, procedure and guidelines should be
produced for internal staff as well as service providers.

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

Unit costs
The gross budget for 2010 is £5,833,387

The following information has been provided by the Council’s Finance section and is
based on the draft 2008-09 PSSEX1 (Personal Social Services Expenditure) data.

The average home care costs in Herefordshire are higher than those of comparator
authorities and All England (see Table 3, Appendix2). This is mainly due to the high cost

6
103



of the internal provision; however this refers to reablement services which are more
expensive. It is not clear whether reablement services are included by other Local
Authorities in their calculations. The social care Short Term Assessment, Reablement
and Review Service (STARRS) is now part of an integrated health team developed in
order to achieve efficiencies, improved capacity and easier access to care.

8.4 Previously there has been no standard pricing framework for home care across the
council, PCT and independent providers or across the various client groups (mental
health, older people, physical disability, and learning disability). This results in
complicated and inefficient administration and does not demonstrate value for money i.e.
better quality of service does not necessarily equate to higher costs.

8.5 Following intensive negotiations with the provider market’ a new home care pricing
framework has been agreed which is fair and transparent and less complicated and
confusing. This will lead to improved efficiency and will also enable all client groups and
funding streams to be dealt with consistently. Regular Home Care Provider Forums
facilitated by Adult Social Care allowed external service providers as well as internal
staff to be fully involved in all proposals and discussions. This process has resulted in
a strong and trusting partnership which will benefit future developments. The new
framework, to be implemented in 2010 introduces an inclusive hourly rate of £14.90p per
hour (pro rata) regardless of day of week or time of day that service is provided. The
standard rate will be enhanced to £17.13p per hour (pro rata) for service provided within
specific geographic areas identified as particularly rural.

8.6 The banding has still to be agreed, but it is likely to be based on 15 minute blocks, with a
seven minute threshold e.g 22 minutes of care delivered would be paid for 15 minutes,
23 minutes delivered would be paid half an hour. The seven minute threshold is aimed
at negating arguments over time taken to access the property / settle client etc.

8.7 Reported times and invoices can be examined by the minute, identifying any care
workers or agencies who constantly and consistently use this threshold to their
advantage.

8.8 There is no intention to offer any further enhancements at this time, however, the
framework will allow premiums to be awarded for recognised high standards of quality if
deemed appropriate in the future in order to encourage further improvement to services.

8.9 Regular and robust contract monitoring is essential to ensure that agreed standards are
being achieved and result in high quality and value for money services for both the
service users and the Council.

Recommendation 6: Any further premiums should only be awarded to drive up the
standard and quality of home care services for highly specialised needs.

Recommendation 7: The new standard price for home care services must be applied to
the proposed Rapid Response Emergency Care — there should be no supplement for
emergency care (although End of life Care may be more expensive if specialist care is
required).

9 Maximising Independence through Home Care Services

Telecare / Telehealth / Aids and Adaptation Services

3.4.1 To ensure this rapidly, developing technology is fully utilised and embedded in care
pathways plans are currently underway to re-brand this service locally under the name of
Tele-health Care. Individuals will be empowered to manage their health in the way that
they choose with the help of the technology available.

104



Providing simple aids and adaptations to people’s homes in a timely fashion can improve
their safety, help maximise their independence and delay or prevent the need for more
intensive care and/or admission to long-term care homes.

3.4.2 Ensuring that ths type of preventative support is considered as a first option within the
assessment process across health and social care will ensure that people receive
support at the earliest opportunity to prevent the need for higher dependency, ongoing
and long-term services. This work will involve considerable staff training as well as
changes to work-flow processes.

Recommendation 8: it is recommended that telecare and other aids and adaptations are
easily accessible and readily available to the user at the earliest opportunity in order to
maximise independence and prevent further decline and the need for more intensive
support. The Audit Commission report that spending between £2000 and £20,000 in one-
off adaptations to an older person’s home can have a payback period of between three
months and three years if it enables a person to remain in their own home®.

Recommendation 9: The Group recommends that the current small packages of care are
reviewed to see whether or not other support can be offered as an alternative to a visit
e.g. telecare / equipment service. New packages of care should follow a process of
considering these alternatives as a first option (in line with the proposal for an Instant
Care Service.

10 Instant Care

10.1 The Review Group considered the proposed Generic Rapid Response Service
Specification.  This service includes an Instant Care service to provide rapidly
responsive short term packages of care (up to 72 hours) for patients in their own homes,
preventing unnecessary A&E attendance or admission to hospital and delayed hospital
discharge.

10.2 The model includes 24 hour, seven day telephone access to Instant and Urgent Care
Service(s). Assistive technology (Telecare) and other equipment will be considered
initially before accessing qualified or unqualified staff.

10.3 Anecdotally, a few people have expressed concerns that elderly and frail people may
sometimes be discharged home from Herefordshire Hospital Trust without the
appropriate support package to ensure their safety. It is accepted that hospital
discharge needs to be part of a seamless pathway of care for individuals and that
clinical, nursing and social care staff need to be working together to make sure this
happens.

10.4 In the context of the Delayed Discharges Act which gives power to the health authority to
financially penalise social services, there is inevitably some tension around which
authority pays and which benefits from the same activities. An improved partnership
approach would see benefits for both organisations.

10.5 Whilst the Review Group agrees with the principle of the Instant Care service there are a
number of concerns over the practicalities.

. Instant Care is intended to be funded by GPs or the Integrated Care Organisation.
There is no available funding for this service from the Adult Social Care Budget

® Under Pressure — Tackling the financial challenge for councils of an ageing population. Audit
Commission Local Government Report, February 2010.

105



which is extremely overstretched with a projected overspend of £3.75m by March
2011.

« The Review Group would expect a clear commitment from the PCT to ensure that
savings made in acute care are invested in community care services to support the
increased demand.

« Where will the emergency cover come from? Capacity for Home Care services is
already limited with an ever increasing demand.

« Social Care legislation will prevent social care staff from providing the first 72 hours
of care without a full community care assessment being carried out.

« There will be further increase in the demand for high quality reablement services.

« Hospital discharge must be carefully managed to ensure people are appropriately
safeguarded.

« How will the 3 hour target assessment times be achieved?

Recommendation 10: The Group recommends that a clear overall strategy to support the
move from hospital based services to community based care be implemented. This
should include a robust framework explaining how funding will be allocated across the
services and how necessary changes to current staffing levels across the organisations
will be managed.

Reablement Service

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Home care reablement services provide personal care; help with activities of daily living
and other practical skills for a time-limited period, in such a way as to enable users to
develop both the confidence and practical skills to carry out these activities themselves.

Care should be arranged on the basis of a holistic assessment, in which the individual’s
wishes and those of their carers are fully considered. An initial period of care (up to six
weeks) is provided free of charge to the service user/patient.

All individual care plans for people receiving intermediate care should include a review at
regular intervals within the initial six weeks or less. If their care needs to last longer,
reviews should take place at regular intervals, such as every two weeks to ensure that
appropriate levels of care are delivered and that services are being used appropriately
and efficiently.

As the number of older people in Herefordshire increases, so will the need for effective
reablement services Currently reablement services are provided by four internal teams,
none is commissioned externally, however there is interest amongst independent
providers to develop in this area.

The reduction of Residential and Nursing placements, the proposed Instant Care service
and the intention to keep people independent at home for as long as possible will result
in an increasing demand for high quality and effective reablement services including
appropriately trained staff, in particularr, therapists.

CSED Best Practice guidance indicates that 50% of those receiving reablement can
return to full independence; however this is based on reablement being provided without
application of the FACS eligibility. For FACS eligible service users, an 8% return to full
independence is more usual. Therefore, whist reablement does result in a positive
outcome the government’s suggestion that almost every service user can benefit from
reablement may be unrealistic.

As part of the overall strategy to improve Intermediate Care and ensure a service that is
responsive, flexible and accessible to the people of Herefordshire, reablement services
funded by the council are undergoing a re-structure. The aim is to provide a 24 hour,

9
106



seven days a week, patient led service that enables people to regain and retain the skills
needed to live as independently as possible. The proposed new model will consist of a
centralised assessment/reablement team as well as three operational teams strategically
located across the county to ensure fast service delivery. The Roving Nights service
will continue to carry out their present role.

Recommendation 11: The need for long-term packages of care should be reduced by
providing a mixed economy of providers and effective reablement services.

Personalisation

10.13 Individuals should increasingly be encouraged and supported to commission their own
services in line with the personalisation agenda. This should help develop a more
competitive market with individuals having the opportunity to choose from a wide variety
of services and providers which will meet their individual needs. There should be more
flexibility around how and where care is delivered.

10.14 More services will be purchased via Individual Budgets with a target of 31% of users by
March 2011. This increase in take-up of personal budgets is expected to drive a big
increase in the demand for directly employed Personal Assistants (PAs). Improvement
and Efficiency West Midlands (IEWM) is co-ordinating a regional project aimed at
increasing the capacity and quality of PAs in the West Midlands so that there are enough
people, with the right skills, to meet this demand. Herefordshire is involved in this
project and should ensure that all staff and providers are kept informed and up-to-date
with this and other developments to ensure that the market develops accordingly.
Existing care workers could potentially become personal assistants and be employed
directly by the service user, rather than through an agency. This could result in reduced
staffing levels within provider agencies. Market stability will need to be carefully
monitored and managed. With the variety of choices likley in the future there may well
be a call-off from the current major contracts.

10.15 The public also need to be fully aware of developments and opportunities in relation to
personalisation and individual budgets and every effort must be taken to ensure that
individuals choosing an Individual Budget are fully aware of how to protect themselves
from all froms of abuse.

Recommendation 12: Appropriate checks must be in place in order to ensure that
anyone choosing an Individual Budget is fully informed, advised and understands how to
protect themselves from all forms of abuse, and that funds are spent in a manner
appropriate to the needs of the individual.

Safeguarding

10.16 The Adult Safeguarding training strategy is crucial to ensuring the workforce
development challenges are tackled in a systematic way, ensuring all staff in contact
with vulnerable adults have a clear understanding of their responsibility to safeguard
them effectively. There may be issues that are particular to those individuals choosing
an Individual Budget and these must be recognised and highlighted.

10.17 A comprehensive training programme will be in place throughout 2010/11. Partnership
competencies have been agreed and a training audit process will be ongoing to ensure
training resources are targeted as effectively as possible.

10.18 The group felt that in order to protect vulnerable people, anyone providing care should
feel able to raise concerns without fear of reprisal. Whistle Blowers should feel
supported and be encouraged to voice their worries. Concerns and complaints should
be dealt with in the appropriate way with clear policies and clear lines of communication.

10
107



Recommendation 13: Regular contract monitoring and review should be undertaken in
order to ensure that high standards are being achieved and that both staff and service
users are being treated according to the appropriate regulations.

Recommendation 14: The Council should continue to co-ordinate and/or provide
safeguarding training across all sectors and organisations as well as monitor attendance
and compliance.

Supported Living

10.19 Extra Care housing schemes provide an alternative to traditional home care.

10.20 Based on service user feedback from The Rose Gardens scheme in Herefordshire, the
group felt that these schemes are a very good way of maximising independence in a
safe environment. However, extra care housing set up on a principle of mixed need
communities are often reluctant to take tenants who can be demanding of staff and other
tenants so this option may not always be fair and equitable for all.

10.21 The Group expressed concerned that the Woodside Flats at Ross-on-Wye which were
intended to be used for re-habilitation and emergency care were still empty. The Shaw
contract is currently undergoing a corporate review.

Recommendation 15: That the number of supported housing schemes for older people
should be increased. Interested service providers and developers should be encouraged
to work in collaboration and partnership.

Recommendation 16: That the Council should ensure that there is a continuing focus on
joint strategies which cross all directorates and organisations including Housing, Social
Care, Regeneration and Health in order to plan, commission and provide for the
increasing ageing population in Herefordshire.

Free Home Care — April 2011

10.22 The Personal Care at home (PCaH) Bill included the offer of personal care at home free
to anyone who meets the Fair Access to Care (FACS) eligibility level of Critical AFTER a
period of up to six weeks reablement service. The Bill was enacted on 8 April 2010.

10.23 This Bill amends the Community Care (Delayed Discharges) Act 2003 which restricts the
power to provide free personal care for a maximum of six weeks and proposes instead,
free personal care for those who are eligible. It is this elder proportion of the population
that is likely to make up the majority of the demand for free personal care. Further
updates and decisions are awaited.

1. Recommendations

11.1  The following recommendations are made against a background of uncertainty and rapid
change both nationally and locally. Recent changes to government and the introduction
of the White Paper, Equity and Excellence create some uncertainty over future
structures and commissioning responsibility. Internal reorganisations and restructures,
including the Shared Services initiative will need to be considered when agreeing
actions and responsibility.

The Review Group recommends that:

1 the Care Brokerage Team is fully resourced as a matter of urgency,

2 the issue regarding the seconded staff should be addressed as a matter of
urgency in order to reach a satisfactory outcome for the staff involved.

3 the Authority’s Workforce Development and Training Teams should work in
close partnership with service providers to develop career pathways and

11
108



10

11

12

13

progression for carers. Caring should be seen as a ‘valued’ career and one
that will be in increasing demand in the future. Every effort should be made
to ensure that school leavers are fully informed and encouraged to take work
placements in the caring profession.

the Workforce Development Team should assist with and/or co-ordinate
group training to allow service providers to share the cost of training
sessions and to ensure consistent standards and quality.

once an Electronic Monitoring System (EMS) is fully implemented that the
Council should only pay for hours of care actually delivered according to the
banding rates agreed with the providers. Clear policy, procedure and
guidelines should be produced for internal staff as well as service providers.

any further premiums should only be awarded to drive up the standard and
quality of home care services for highly specialised needs.

the new standard price for home care services must be applied to the
proposed Rapid Response Emergency Care — there should be no supplement
for emergency care (although End of life Care may be more expensive if
specialist care is required).

telecare and other aids and adaptations are easily accessible and readily
available to the user at the earliest opportunity in order to maximise
independence and prevent further decline and the need for more intensive
support. The Audit Commission report that spending between £2000 and
£20k in one-off adaptations to an older person’s home can have a payback
period of between three months and three years if it enables a person to
remain in their own home*.

the current small packages of care are reviewed to see whether or not other
support can be offered as an alternative to a visit e.g. telecare / equipment
service. New packages of care should follow a process of considering these
alternatives as a first option (in line with the proposal for an Instant Care
Service).

a clear overall strategy to support the move from hospital based services to
community based care be implemented. This should include a robust
framework explaining how funding will be allocated across the services and
how necessary changes to current staffing levels across the organisations
will be managed.

the need for long-term packages of care should be reduced by providing a
mixed economy of providers and effective reablement services.

appropriate checks must be in place in order to ensure that anyone choosing
an Individual Budget is fully informed, advised and understands how to
protect themselves from all forms of abuse, and that funds are spent in a
manner appropriate to the needs of the individual.

regular contract monitoring and review should be undertaken in order to
ensure that high standards are being achieved and that both staff and
service users are being treated according to the appropriate regulations.

* Under Pressure — Tackling the financial challenge for councils of an ageing population. Audit
Commission Local Government Report, February 2010.

12
109



14

15

16

the Council should continue to co-ordinate and/or provide safeguarding
training across all sectors and organisations as well as monitor attendance
and compliance.

the number of supported housing schemes for older people should be
increased. Interested service providers and developers should be
encouraged to work in collaboration and partnership.

the Council should ensure that there is a continuing focus on joint strategies
which cross all directorates and organisations including Housing, Social
Care, Regeneration and Health in order to plan, commission and provide for
the increasing ageing population in Herefordshire.

13
110



Appendix 1

TITLE OF REVIEW: | Review of Home Care

Committee: Adult Social Care & Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee

SCOPING

Reason for Enquiry

The projected growth in the percentage of older people living in Herefordshire means that we will be
supporting a larger number of frail older people and vulnerable people to live in their own homes with home
care services.

The quality and capacity of the home care market (the Council only delivers re-ablement home care) is
therefore of key importance. A major review of contracted home care services has taken place over the last
year, and the Committee may wish to review progress and ‘future fit' of the proposals

Links to the Community Strategy

The review contributes to the following objectives contained in the Herefordshire Community Strategy,
including the Council’'s Corporate Plan and other key plans or strategies:

NI 136 people helped to live independently through social care
NI 142 supporting people services (housing related support)
NI 125 achieving independence through re-ablement and intermediate care

Summary of Review and Terms of Reference

Summary
Terms of Reference

e Comparison of value for money and unit costs based on the fair pricing tool and regional comparator
data

e Market analysis and capacity to deliver services for a growing population of people needing care at
home

e Quality of services commissioned and plans to improve quality
e Impact of personalisation, and how plans to commission will cope

e Development of re-ablement services, and impact on the number of people supported and the
increased quality of life that can be secured for them

What will NOT be included

In order to make the Review manageable it is proposed that Supporting People Services which are currently
undergoing a major review and restructuring, and hospital based, and residential based intermediate care
are NOT considered.

Potential outcomes

o Evaluation of the robustness of the strategy in delivering the desired outcomes for vulnerable people at
best value;

o Recommendations with respect to development of reablement services.

14
111




Key questions

How can sufficient market capacity be secured to support the projected growth in the numbers of
vulnerable people who could need support;

How do we maximise independence through home care services to ensure a wider number of people are
able to receive a service;

How do we demonstrate value for money in the service that we have procured.

Cabinet Member (s)

Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing

Key Stakeholders/Consultees

Carers representatives

Home care providers forum

Older people’s reference group- incl Age Concern advocacy
Valuing People partnership board

SIL

Mental Health reference group

Potential Witnesses

From the consultation groups above

Research Required

Benchmark data across rural counties and West Midlands
Regional project to develop reablement services

Potential Visits

Home care
Telecare
Reablement services

Publicity Requirements

Notification of review
Publication of the Review and its recommendations
Herefordshire Matters

15
112




Timetable

Activity

Timescale

Confirm approach, programme of
consultation/research/provisional
witnesses/meeting dates (and proposed topic

First meeting of the Review Group.
January 2010

Collect current available data February 2010
Collect outstanding data February 2010
Analysis of data March 2010

Final confirmation of interviews of witnesses February 2010

Carry out programme of interviews

Early March 2010

Agree programme of site visits February 2010
Undertake site visits as appropriate February 2010
Final analysis of data and witness evidence April 2010

Prepare options/recommendations April 2010

Present Final report to Relevant Scrutiny April 2010
Committee

Implementation of agreed recommendations July 2010
Members Support Officers

Councillor AE Gray
(Chairman of Review Group)

Additional members of the Review Group
Councillor PA Andrews

Councillor KG Guthrie

Lead Support Officer
Sharon Pugh, Service Redesign Officer

Democratic Services Representative
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer

113

16




Scrutiny Review on Home Care in Herefordshire - Interviewees

Care Providers

Angela Gilchrist
Surecare Services
26-28 Aubrey Street
Hereford HR4 OBU

Helen Rooke

Absolute Care Services
6B High Street
Leominster
Herefordshire HR6 8LZ
Ron Turner

Managing Director
Surecare Services

26-28 Aubrey Street
Hereford HR4 0BU

Carers
Michael Ashton
Alan Russell
Sue Pope
Elaine Angel

Jeanette Ralls

114

Appendix 2

17



Gl

Appendix 3

2008/9

2008/9

Herefordshire UA

| | Unit cost
. . Units of
Client group and service _—
indicator All Own Provision
provision | provision | by others
ADULTS (AGED 18-64) AND OLDER PEOPLE (AGED 65+)
Adults and older people recv home care (sample week activity) | Per hour £18.2 £70.0 £17.4
Adults and older people recv home care (actual annual activity) | Per hour £18.2 £70.0 £17.4
Per person per
Adults and older people receiving home care week £197
Per person per
Older people receiving home care week £176
Per person per
Adults with learning disabilities receiving home care week £491
Per person per
Adults with mental illness receiving home care week £317
Per person per
Adults with physical disabilities receiving home care week £183
Table 3: PSS EX1 Return for 2008-9 Unit cost summary sheet
[NB.DraftFigues | 200819

PSS EX1 Return for 2008-9 Unit cost summary sheet

Herefordshire UA

Unit cost

Units of
Client group and service indicator All LA | Other
ADULTS (AGED 18-64) AND OLDER PEOPLE (AGED 65+)
Home care
Adults & OP recv home care (sample week activity) | Per hour £18.2 | £70.0 | £17.4
Adults & OP recv home care (actual annual activity) | Per hour £18.2 | £70.0 | £17.4
Adults & OP recv home care PP per wk £197
OP receiving home care PP per wk £176
Adults with LD receiving home care PP per wk £491
Adults with MH receiving home care PP per wk £317
Adults with PD receiving home care PP per wk £183

2007/8

All England
Unit cost
All Own Provision
provision provision | by others
£14.4 £22.3 £12.3
£15.2 £23.4 £13.0
£151
£135
£352
£78
£156




116



6 10 | abed

(dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

9S00 Ul }Jom pjnoys swes | Bujuiel| pue juswdojaasg 82I0pHOAA S ALOUYINY 8Y) Jey) SpUsWWOoa) dnoJS MaIASY 8YL | uolepuaWWOIdY

‘uonjejuswa|dwi ||n} aAsIYOE

pes

"90IAIes abelayolq
papuaixa 1o} ue|d

0] Sa|easawl} pue suoloe pauyap Ales|D | L1/S0/L0 awuwelsbold 4dd uonjejuswaldwi dojens
"9]0J 8beISY0IQ 0} uone|as Ul suoneadxs pea ‘uoneoyynads abelayolq
pue spJepue)s ‘sawodjno pauyap AuealD | LL/€0/L0 swwelbold 4dd [oA9] ybiy dojanag
"2JIyspJojaiaH
Jo} paydepe pue sy
Jayjo ul sjppow 99130eud
poob uo paseq 1oddns
pajoalip-j|as uidiapun
‘paulap Ales|o pea 0} suoldo abeliayolq
sajoJ abesayo.q pue Buiuueld poddng | L1L/20/vL swwelbold 4dd aulep pue dojaaag
) 's1obue) 1114 ojdoad
OL/cl/ee sjeble) suojse|iu Bumngd ay) Bunsaw spiemo)
pajuiodde Aouabe |eula)x] 4dd @Aa1yoe 0} ueld uonoe paalby | QL/ZL/LE peo | sseiboid ajese00e O] piall
awuwelboid 4dd | @yl ul sisijeroads Yyim JIoAN
ssalboid el1a)Id ssaoongeblie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
‘g|qe|ieAe pue 9|qissadde Ajisea si Loddns ajelidoidde ‘ejenbape jey) ainsua 0y dn-aye) paseasoul siyl Yiim
aul| ulI padojansp pue paulep AlJes|o ate uonouny abelaxolq pue Buiuueld poddns sy} yioq jey; sadinbad €10z Aq 1e6png
[euoslad e Jo 1diaoal ul 8q 0} sjual|d DSV JO %001 Jo 106.1e) 1su14 8jdoad Bumind ay| 'ssedoe Asy) Sa901AI8s Jo abuel
ay) pue abeiayoiq dojaasp pue uspim 0} | L0z ul sdnolb juaijo ||e ssoloe siepinoid pue s1asn 82IAI8S Ylm Buiyiom aq
[IIM [IOUNOD By} ‘}Jo)JewW paxiw B SPJemo}] JUSLUBAOW aJow aonpoJjul 0} 9ARoalip Ad1jod Juswulanos) ayy Jjo bl uj “siepiroid asuodsay
90IAJBS PaJOEBIUOD [10UNOYD Yim sabexoed aied swoy abuele 0} s jiwal Jualnd s,wea | abeiayolg ale) [eussju| ay | S,8AIIN09X]
‘Aouabuin Jo Jajjew e se padinosal l 'ON
AlIny s1 @jel0j0aa1g Buluoissiwwo) pajelbsiu] ay) ulyym weas | abelayolg alel ay) ey} Spuswwodal dnols) Malney 8y | UOIBPUSIWIWOIDY

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

117



6 10 z ebed

(dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

pue ainpadsoud ‘Aoljod Jes|) ‘siapinoid ay) yum paalbe sajel Buipueq ay) 0} Buipiodoe palaAliep Ajlenjoe aleo Jo sinoy 1oy
Aed Ajuo o0y pajuswsajdwi Ajjny s1 wa)sAs Buriojuow 21U0J308]8 ue aouo Adijod ul 86ueyd e spuswwooal dnols) MaIASY 8y |

¥ ON
uolEPUSWIWIOIY

‘'sSpJemuo
1 10z Buudsg wou) sispus) a)IAu|

‘uolsinoid Jo
SWI0} puB Saljljud Mau 8)eald 0} siapinoid
Mmau [eljuajod pue Buisixa yym MoAA

pea swwelbold
aouapuadepu
Buisiwixep

"obJowa 0] asudis)ua
[BID0S Se yons aled Jo
siopinoid mau pue syebpnq
10 Buljood [eoo| ajqeus

0] 19)Jew 8y} alejnwis

01 Juenoduwi si 1 sy1ebpng
yyesay |euosiad pue
|ENPIAIPUI Ul 9SBIOUI pUuB
aled |elo0s }npe 10} UOISIA

"L Loz Aleniga4 Joj pauueld juang Buiobup Buibiawa ay] yum aui| uj
Juswabebus pue juswdojarap ‘awwelbold ,2210I0NN
‘Buiuue|d aoJopiom aaoidwi 0} Awouoos ainin4 8y} JoJ 1i4 v, JnO
0102 12903100 aled |eIO0S pue yjjeay ay) ssoioe peaT juswdojarag ybnouyy siepinoid 82118
pue AInp — paJsAl|ap SJUSAS OM | Ajlenuue paiaaljap 8q 0] SJUSAD OM | BulobuQ 90JOPJIOAA 0] Woddns apinoud o
ssalboid el1a)Id ssaoongeblie | uaym Ag 1BUMQ uonoy

louno)

ay} yum Ajajos al| jJou saop siy} 1o} AJjigisuodsal ay) Ing abueyd 0} spasu uoissajold Buled ayj Jo uondaosad sajdoad

1ey) pa1dedoe S1)| "Spaau 9S0Uy] 198w UeD Jey] SadlAIas ubisap pue spaau |enplAlpul INOge Yuly) pue uolesijeuos.iad

uo SN20J S|oA9) [|e Je suonesiuebio djay |im suonesiueblio pa| Jaie) pue Jasn Buipnjoul siap|oy-axels [|e yim
uononpoud-0o Buibeinooug -abueyd [BOO| pea| pue aininy ay) JO 82J0JOM Y} UOISSILUWOD 0} suoljesiuebio pue s10109s asuodsay
[le ssoioe siakojdwa |eoo] yum Buiom ‘ajod juenodwi ue Aeid |im [1DUN0D By} ‘aled) |e1o0S }NPY 10} UOISIA Y} YIM aul| u| S,9AI}N09X]

‘Ajjenb
pue spJepue)s JuslsISuUOD 8INSUd 0} puUe SUOISSaS Buluiel) JO 1S02 8y} aleys 0} siapinoid a21A18s mojje o} Buluiely dnolb
9]eUIpJO-09 I0/pUE YlIIM ISISSE p|noys wea | juswdojaasq 92J0PHOAA S AJI0YINY 8y} Jeyl Spuswiwodal dnols) mainay ay |

€ 'ON
uolnepuUaWWO0I3Y

uoissajoud Buled ay} ul sjuswade|d yJom axe)} 0} pabeinodua pue pawloul A|In} 8le Sianes)
|[O0YDS Jey} 8JNSUS 0} dpew 8 PINOYS Moyd AISAT "aininy 8y} ul puewsp Buisealoul ul 84 ||IM Jey} SUO pue Jaaled panjeA, e
Se usas aq pj|noys Bulen -siaied pied 1o uoissaibold pue shkemyied Joaied dojaasp 03 siapirold adiAles ypm diysisuyped

¢ ON

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

118



6 10 ¢ abed (dDS) UOISIBA [BUI4 UB|J UONOY pue asuodsay aANdax3 — MoIASY AUNNIOS aieD) aWoH
8] eAoqe pue J1aAo pied aq |IM swiniwaid Jayun) ou 810jaJay) S}S0D 1IUN UMOP SALIP 0] 10JJe AlaAs ayew 0] SI uonualul ay | S,8AN08X]
"S90IAI8S 8Jed awoy Jo Ajijenb pue piepuejs ay) dn aALIp 01 papieme G 'ON

aq Ajuo pjnoys Ayjenb jo spiepuess ybiy asiubooal 0y papieme swniwaid Jayuny Aue jey) spuswiwodal dnois) mainay ay |

uolEPUSWIWIOIY

s)96png [enpiAIpUI

aie)
[BID0S }INPY/ 10} UOISIA MaU

JO 1IN0 904 YpIM Bul| Ul | 10z Joquiaydes L00Z | pee aouspuadapu ay] YlIM aul| Ul pajoeijuoo

Aq paaibe aq 0} uonejusws|dwi paseyd | Jaquaydeg Buisiwixe ale sadIAles uoddns

pue suoljuajul BUIUOISSILIWOD MBN pue aJed ||e MOy MaINDY

L Loz Alenuga4 aAl| Buiob weysAs Jo uonenjeas Jebeue ‘aouepinb

paonpoud aq 0} 8dueping MOJ|0} 0} Sa101j0d BAI}08Yd pue 1SNqoy 100loid 19| | Aolod juswajdwi pue ue|d

paalibe Aoljod JuswAhed ‘oedwl [|BIOAO

Jobeuely Amuspi 0} uonejuswe|dwi

L 1/010Z 4o} Jeak 18l01d 19| Jljuspl 0} uone} |awl

ul paJaAlap aq 0} sbuiaes Jo uoijoalold SIN3 SjenjeAs
Jeah

L LOZ Alenuer Jo pus Aq spoda) JusWIWWOD 196pNg 10 ANIGENIEAY [eloueuly Jebeuep ‘welsAs |eioueuly

8|ge|leAe 8q 0O} ejep s, Hjuow jsii mau s} Jo8foid 19| 0OSSIYOY Wwawsdw
ul Alleg

ssalboid el9)I0 ssadongeblie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy

‘lendsoy apisino uoddns
8Je9 JO 8INjN} Y} JO JXBJUOD JBPIM BY} Ul POMBIASI 8] 0} PadU ||IM SINT ZL/LL0Z U] SBWodno paulap Ajjenpiaipul }Joaw

0] ‘sjue)sisse |euostad Aojdwa 0} Jo 8180 UMO J1By} 8buedle 0} s}ebpng |euosiad Buisn sjenpialpul Jo Juswdojaaap salinbal
UOISIA MU 8y | "aJed |elo0s }NpPY JO} UOISIA Mau pue epuabe uonesijeuosiad ay} Yim ||am J1 Jou Saop juswainooid

aJed awoy 03} yoeoudde siy} ‘JoneamoH ‘|0Jjuod Aieyebpng }sngod 810w a|qeus [|Im Wa)sAs [eloueuly pajeonsiydos aiow

e Jo uonejuswajdwi ay} yum Jayabo JuswAed o} Joud sadloAul 8jepljeA 0} AJljige 8y "PasIWIXew awooul pue pasiwiuiw
aJe s)S09 jey) ainsua pue sbuines Aouaiolje Ajjuapl 0} J8pJo Ul Sa101j0d |ENJOBIIUOD JUSLIND ||B MBIASI 0} papudlul SI }|

asuodsey
S,9AI}N09X]

"S90IAI8S ABUoW 10} 8N|eA aInsus 0} JopJo Ul siepinoid 80IAISS SE |[am Se JJe}s |eula)ul Joy paonpold eq pinoys sauljapinb

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

119



6 10  abed (dDS) uoIsIBA |eulq ue|d UOOY pue asuodsay BAIINOaXT — MBIASY AuljNIOS 84D SWOoH
dy
@ouspuadapu| Sa)eJ pajoejuo? ||e oy
Auesio seiousiolye pue ssjel pajoesuod Buisiwixepy | swweltboid mainal dojpaa(g
"YUM S]OBJJUOD
sey |1ounod ay) 1ey)
uolneJsiuiwpe paonpay

L1 uer piw ul eoerd oxe) [ 5 wm_ocommsmhmo:mﬁ_oc _om:
Bunesw |eniul ay) pue pajquiasse uolsinoid ao1nIes _— oL ° mcmM_\,_ mcam%oMHMLMw%m_M _M o.w_c.cww

Bulaq si wes) 10sloid ay] "e1eo | Jo sadA) ||e ssouoe pailidde }1S09 Jus)sISuo) MMON mthmewL\ pEST _ olEo mEM H>>m_ﬁ>m
awoy 0} Uoin|os padueyus ue W d 4dd U MOINSY

JBAI|Op 0] UdNIIM Usag se
l]9p 0} uayl agseydidv BuiuEid eomios Joedwi/syjeusq
SBWO02IN0 / Sjiduaq Jo Buipueisiapun Jes|) -uQ op 1aun 1eni } oo
ssalboid elIa)I0 ssaoongeblie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy

'syjobpnq |euosiad Buipnjoul uoisinoid 82IA18S || ssoloe a|qelinba pue e} aJe S}S02 ey} pue paAalyoe osuodss

a.le sa1ouaIo1y)e 10esu0d pasodoud jey} ainsus 0} JapJo Ul pamalnal Ajueinbal aq ||Im Sajel pajoeluUOD ||B 1By} papualul Si )| s m>;:owxm

‘dojensp 0} sanuiuod pue L0z Isnbny Jo pua ay} je uonelado pasuawwod walsAs aie) Aousblowg asuodsay pidey ayl

‘(paainbau
s| aJed }s||e1oads JI aAlIsuadxa alow ag Aew ale) aJi| Jo pug ybnoyye) aied Aousbisws 1o Juswse|ddns ou aq pjnoys
alay} — a1e) Aouabiewg asuodsay pidey pasodolid ayj 0} paidde aq jsnw S821AI8S 8Jed awoy Joj 8o1d plepuels mau ay |

9 'ON
uoIEPUSWIWIOIY

sJoplrnoid ||e ssoloe

'S19SN 92IAISS
pue siapiroid Yjim paleys

LI uepr piw ul 9oe|d ayel [Im paJaAllap 82IAI8S JO Ajljenb juslsisuo) LLOZ pea swwelbold 00 01 AIOAIBD DOIAISS
Bunsaw |eniul ay) pue pajquiasse 29( oouspuadopu . o,m Hwtw m“_qvm UL
Buleqg sI wea) 1098loid ay| eied Buisiwixe 10 |spow palis) ied
awoy 0} UoiNjos padsueyus ue 1102 pea sawuwelbold .
JBAIOp 0] uailm usag sey qid VY 1oxiew [udy aouapuadepu| SjUSWSIE}S
|e20] 8y} Jo Buipueisiapun panoidw| BUISILIXE uonisod 19)4ew dojaaaq
ssalboid BLI9)IIO SS820Ng/1able | uaym Ag hwc\s.o. . uonoy
PaONPOUIUL SI Jo)JeW BSISAIP 8loWw B Se aonpal ||IM salouabe Japinoid a1ed swoy [BuIS)Xe pajoeljuod
JO Jaquinu able| ay) 1ey) papusiul Si}| "S}BUS(Q }SOO PAJeIDOSSE pue S|8W0dIN0 Jasn adiAas ‘Ajienb ybiy jo japow
pasiajald e sulep djay |m sjuswaiels uonisod 1axIeN 01 0Z JOqQUIBAON Ul padnpoJiul 8Jed awoy Joy ajel Ajlunoy plepue)s asuodsay

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

120



6 10 G abeyd (dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

"$904N0SaJ Ul YIys palinbal Aue pue

$80Jn0sal 8|qe|ieAe Jo Buipueisiepun Jes|) peo swweiBoly | Wes

puewsp

Buibeuew pue BuijiaAip
‘Buionpas uo snooj} jey)

1SHJ0M aouspuadapu|

“}IOMawel) paseq-awodjno pue 1102 oouspuadopu Buisiwixel J0} SUOIUBIU|
Hoddns 0} sassao0.d pue swa)sAs Jes|) [udy Buisiwixe Buluoissiwwon dojaasq
ssalboid BLI9)IIO SS820Ng/1able | uaym Ag JBUMQ uonoy
‘uoisinold 82IAIas BSIaAIp yim spaau gjdoad jo AlaueA ay) buiyolew ‘@ouspuadapul uiejal pue uiebal sidoad djay asuodsey
puE SaljluNWWOod UIBSNS |IM padinbal uaym poddns jey) 84nsusd ||IM SIBUOISSIWWOY “pa}dadoe Si uoljepuswiuwodal ay | S,9AIIN09X
‘pabeuew aq [IM suonesiuehlo ay) SSoJoe S|aAd| buiyels jualind 0} sebueys Aiessadoau moy
pue S82IAISS 8y} SSOJoB pajedo|e aq ||im Buipuny moy Buluie|dxa jyJomawely 1SNqod B apnjoul pjnoys siy | ‘psjusws|dwi aq 6 'ON
a1ed paseq AjJunwiwod 0} S82IAIBS paseq [eydsoy wouy aAow ay} Joddns 0} ABajed)s ||B1oAO Jes|o B Jey) papuswiwodal Sl )| | UOIEpUBWIWOIDY

L10C
yoJe — Uer aled ajeipawajul aoe|d Buye) ale Juswa|geal/aied olEdUjIESL-3I9) c>cm ©18099)
pue jJuswa|geal 0} SS829. dPIM ajeIpawIdlul IS|Iym o1 abeys cmmoﬁm%nﬁwwwﬂh mm\,/__“mwm_m“_ owm_owco_u_wmw
dojanap 03 0D mau ypm Bujiopp | AlJes ue je dn-axe) pasealoul pue pajabie | ﬂ_“%/w BUISILIXE oibojeNs & dopreg
ssalbold eLI9}110 ss80ong1abie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
*AB0jouUyD3) BAIISISSE SS820E 0} MOY UO UOIIBLIOJUI pUB 32IApE UBAID 8q
[I!M @40 [e1o0s wody Joddns Joj 9]qib1@ J0u SI OYM BUOAUE ‘Bie) |Bl100S JNPY JO} UOISIA S JUSWUIBA0L) 8} UIY)IM Pa}od|jal
uonuaalaul Aluea pue uonuaald Jo sanoud o168jels ay) Yim aull Ul [elUBISONS JO [BO1IID JO BLIBJIO SOV S,|Iounod) asuodsay
8y} 198w oym ajdoad 1oy ssao04d Juswabeuew aied pue JUsWSSasSe 8y} Jo Jed se paiapIsuod aq |Im ABojouyds) aAlSISSY S,0A1N09X3
‘(@21M18g B1e) Juelsu| ue Joj jesodoud ay) yum aui ul) uondo 1S B Se saAljeuls)e asay) bullapisuod
JO ss8204d B MO||0} piNoYs a1e9 Jo sabexoed maN "921AIas Juswdinba / 81e09|9) "6°0 JISIA B 0} SAIlBUIS)E UE SE PaIayo 8q 8 'ON
ued poddns Jayjo 10U JO JBYJaYM 83S 0} PaMaIABI ale a1ed Jo sabexoed ||ews Jualind jey) SpusWWOodal dnois) MaINSY 8Y] | UOIePUIWWOIY
‘Joddns aAIsuajul 810w 10} PaaU Y} pue auljoap Jayuny Juaaald pue souspuadapul asiwixew 0y Ajlunoddo . 'ON
1sol|1ea ay} Je Jasn 8y} 0} d|ge|ieAe Ajipeas pue 8|qIssadoe Ajises S| jJuswdinba Jayjo pue 81ed9|s} Jey} POpPUSWWOIAI S| }| | UOIEPUBWIWOIDY

alen

palnuapl 1102 pea swwelbo.id |BIDOS puUE yj|esH SsoJoe

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

(g) xipuaddy 0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

121



6 10 9 ebed

(dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

‘leydsoy

saAeg| Juaned e Jaye shep

0S 1841} 8Y} JO} SBOIAISS

PasiuIXeUI 5| SouBpUBdSpU S [ENpINPU| P uopusdopty | usuedes 10) suonmos

"9010U2 19SN 9JIAISS pasealou| Bulob-up Buisiwixe SAI}BAOUUI UOISSILIWOD

‘aJeoeljxg

pue BuisnoH pauoddng

ybnouyy uoisnjoul [BID0S

pea] swwelbold | pue @ouspuadapul syowo.id

'spaq aJed @ouapuadapu| 0} BuisnoH oibsieNS

papuny ajejs uo Aouspuadap paonpay Buiob-up Buisiwixen yum Buyiom diysisupied

‘shemyied aleo

pue sessaso.d jeuoneltado

auljweals pue swes)

‘1oddns wuis)-6uoj alinbal 1abuo) 210 |BIO0S pue y)jeay

paysijgelss Ou 99IAJ8s 8y} ybnouyy Buiwod sjualo Jabeuep ajelodiooul [Im weas |

wea| aJe) ajelpawlajul oL | |[e 1O %09 1Y) OS jJuswajgeal asealoul 0] | jeuoneladQ A)ljeo0] wueu| alen ajelpawialu| julop

ssalboid BLIB)ID SS900Nng1eble | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy

"S9OIAI9S ale) |e100g pue yjeaH Aiojnjels wouj Joddns buiobuo
uo aoueljal paonpal Yjm ajqissod se Buo| se 10} Sewoy UMO Jisy} Ul aduapuadapul ulejuiew 0} 80UapLuod pue sj|iys uiebal

0} 9|doad poddns 03 uondo jsiij B SB Udas a( ||IM Judswa|qeal pue aled ajelpawlialul 0} SSa20y “Aouspuadap pasealoul asuodsay

uey} Jayjes Alonodsal pue Bulaq jjlom poddns 0} pasiAiUaoUIl 8] |[IM SI8pIA0Id 80IAI8S pa}dadoe S| uolepuawwiodal ay | S,8AIIN09X]

"2Je9 Jo sabeyoed wus}-buo| 10} pasu a8y} aonpal pue 0l 'ON

aouapuadapul Jiay} uiebal 0} ajdoad a|geus 0} JopJOo Ul PasIWIXeW 8q P|NOYS SB2IAISS JudW|geal Jey) PapuUaWIWLOIal S1}| | uoiepUaWIWOIY

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

122



6 10 ; ebed (dDS) uoIsIBA |eulq ue|d UOOY pue asuodsay BAIINOaXT — MBIASY AuljNIOS 84D SWOoH
‘'sJopinoud ||e ssouoe siosh
aJaAI|op 921AI8S JO A ﬂum:c ,_L_o SISuo pea swwe.bo.d 9OIAISS pue sigpinold
P l1ep 89! 1O M JUSISISUOY 1102 aouspuadapu| yum paleys aq o1 AisAliop
29(Q Buisiwixe 92IAIBS JO |[9pOoW B aule(
BO0| 81 Jo Buipuejsiapun ow,w”mmc% pea swuleiboud

€901 943 4 Ipuejsiepun p _ 1102 aouspuadapu| "Sjuswialels
[udy Buisiwixe uonisod 19)4ew dojaaaq

ssalboid elI9)Id ssadongablie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
‘wid)sAs Buriojuow jsngo. e Jo JuawdojaAsp 8y} pue splepuels asuodsay
Ajjenb wuojul Im sjjUSQ }S0D PAJRIDOSSE PUB SBWO02)N0 Jash adIAIaS paalbe Jo jJos y "paidadde si uoijepuswiwodal ay | S,8AIIN09X]
‘suolje|nbas ajedosdde ayy 0} Buipiodoe pajeal) Buleq ae S1esn 82IAI8S pue Jels Yioq ey} pue paAaiyoe buleq ale Zl ON
spJepuejs ybiy 1ey} ainsua 0} JopJo Ul usyeuapun aq pjnoys maiAal pue Buliojiuow joeijuod Jejnbal jey) papuswiwodal Sl )| | UOIEPUBWIWOIDY

BlI9)110 Juswabeuew
196png Jobeuepy 196pnq spnjoul
|euoslad jJo asn pue buibieyd syeudoiddeul Janbayox3 pue $$820ns awo02}n0o
aoe|d ul ssa20.d mainay Jo subis Aue Ajiyuapl smainal |eloueuld | BulobuQ aleD |BIDOS | U0 SND0) SMaIABI [eloueUlH
‘paliuapl usaq sey asnge |enuajod L10¢ pea sawwelbold ‘|]aued
9JoUyM SBSED JO UOIJBISPISUOD IO} WNIOH [udy uonesijeuosiad | juswsajgeus ysil e dojoas
ssalboid BLI9)IIO SS820Ng/1able | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
"Juswabeuew ysii pue Juswabeuew Asuow ‘sjobpng jeuosiad Buipnjoul uonesijeuos.iad asuodsay
JO sjoadse ||e 0} yoeoidde pajeuiplo-00 pue pabeuew-||om B aInNsusd 0} S| Wie ay| °paydadde si uoilepuawwodal ay | S,9AIIN09XT
‘[enplAIpuUl 8y} JO spaau ayj 0} ajelidoidde Jsuuew e uj Juads aie spuny jey} pue ‘esnge Jo SWJo} [|e wod) payosjoid Ll 'ON
s| 196png |enpiAipu] ue Buisooyd auoAue jey) ainsus 0} ade|d ul 8q ishw syo8yo ajeldoidde ey papuswiwodal Si )| | UOBPUSWIWOIDY

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

123



6 J0 g ebed

(dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

$8SIN09 ||e Je a)el souepus)e aroidu|
‘Alesso08u se ssalppe pue

1eak siyy 20UBpUS)IE-UOU 1O} SUOSEaI pue)SIapu WEes) UILUPY XOM
Buiuiely Joy payebie) pue paijuapi bush ) pugjsispun 1102 10} S|INS /Jaulel | sainbly eouepuaje
01-60 Ul Seapuaje-uou Jeinbay "soapua)e-uou Jejnbal Ayuap| [udy Buipsenbojes MB3IABJ puUB J0}IUOIN
5 palaAlep/a|ge|iene (BuipJenbajes
ulules) o} JuswaAoidwi [enunuo .
3oeqpas) HIEA O ' [enuate JNpY) 4800
pue malAal Jo }nsal e se paroiduwl Jow 1102 S|IINS /Jaulel | awweJsboud Buluiesy
u@aq aAey sasinod Buluiel| | Buleq pue payiauapl spasu Buluiely Jayung [udy Buipsenbojes a]en|eAs pue Malnay
suoIssas
1204 BUIBIENBAIES 1IN Buiuiesy a109 ui buiuied |
BIA UEo MOE.M " w mwm__qh_wow“«\ uonesiueblo ay} Ul S|aA9| synpy bBuipienbajeg
I\ paloy al d [le 1e seakojdwa QQG JO SS9IX8 Ul uled) 1102 (Buipasenbejes apnjoul 0} | HH
PaX)00Q SaWl} PUB SNUBA/SUOISSOS | 0} PaJOAI[Sp SUOISSSS [9A9] JISB] IN0OY § X € 29Q UNPY)J9oO | yum diysiauped ul Buiyiopn
SIS AI0M 104
sHnpy SIS -juswdojaneqg
a|getau|nA yum Buyiom sioiny oy sbuijes 9 Buiuies |
uoneonp3 Jayund ul buiuiesy pauoddng ‘Buiultea/isuiel |
JAQUINU JUI0g Buipsenbojes
pieog BuipJenBales JINpY $$900Y 9|6UIS JO SSBUaIEME Pasealou| ABajeng Buluies] ayy
BIA paJo}iuow aq [|Im ssalbol Buiuiel; jo ayeydn pasealou uiLpim posibe se buiures
IA palo)l ql d luleJ} JO a)eldn p _ Bulob 10 8BUEI BpIM B JanIjap
aoe|d ul swweliboid Buluiel | "paJaAljep suolissas Buluiel) pauueld |1y -uQ 0} swwelboud Bulurel |
ssalboid el1o)I0 ssaoongablie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
‘o|doad s|gelau|na Jo Ajajes ayy 0} asuodsay
puodsal pue j08j04d ‘Ajuapl 0} pauayjbuais Jayuny aq |im sainpasoid Buipienbajeg “pajdadoe s| uonepuswwodal siy | S,8AIIN09X]

"9oue|dwoo pue aouepus}je I0JIUOW SE [[9M
se suonesiueblo pue si0}oas ||e ssosoe Buluiel) BuipienBbajes apiroid Jo/pue 81eulpio-00 0} BNUIRUOD PINOYS [IDUN0Y 8Y |

€l 'ON
uonEPUSWIWOIDY

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

124



6 10 6 abed

(dDS) UoISIBA |BUIH UB|d UONOY pue asuodsay BAlINdaXT — MaIASY AunnNIog aie) awoH

10100211 1998l01d

pue sejelojoalip ||e SS0J0 yoiym saibejens juiol uo snooy Buinunuod e Si aiey) 1Byl Spuswiwodsl dnols) MaIAey 8y

L10g 1102 wusjul/SSYad ABajeng Buiuoissiwwo)
puey u| Jo} paulep aq 0} saiuoud oibajens Jea|) yolep wie| s,9|/doad Jap|O dojers
IYEYVIEYe
pasijeul} 0L0Z pue $92In0SaYy ABajens Buluoissiwwo)
3oely uQ Buiaq pue pajenalio Absyens yeiq | Atenuer JO Jojoaug palelboju| dojons
ssaiboid elIo)Id ssaoongeble | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy
‘g|doad
Jap|0 Joj Bulal| yuspuadapul |je woddns 0} sI Buluoissiwwo) pajeldbajul ulyym weadisylom aouspuadapu| Buisiwixep ay) 4oy} asuodsey
Aoud vy "yoeoudde jus)sisuod pue juiol e ainsua 0} salbajel)s ||e wuoul |IM YNSI 8yl "paidadoe si uoiepuswwodal Siy | S,9AI}N09X]
‘aJlysplojaiaH ui uonendod buiebe Buisealoul
8y} Joy apinoid pue uoissiwwod ‘ueld O} Joplo Ul Y)eaH pue uoljessuabay ‘aie) |e1oog ‘BuisnoH Buipnjoul suonesiuebio Gl 'ON

uoIEPUSWIWIOIY

Jabeuejy buisnoH
pauoddng/iabeue

pPasUBWIWOD 1102 wswdojaraqg ue|d BuisnoH

pue PauoISSIWWOD YJOAA sanuoLd d1bajens Jea|n yolep Q spasN BuISNOH | S,u0SsI8d Jop|O UOISSILUWOD
ssalboid el1o)I0 ssaoongablie | uaym Ag JaumQ uonoy

‘o|doad Jap|o 10} AbBajesis BuIUOISSILILIOD MBU 3y} WIOUI [|IM SIY | asuodsay

"ue|d BuisnoH sa1doad Jap|O ue Buidojansp ale sajelojoaliq Buluoissiwwo) pajelbaju] pue sailuNWWO) d|qeule}sng S,8AIIN09X]

pue siapiroid 80IAIS8S pa)salslu|

"diysiaupied pue uoneloge|jod ui }40Mm 0] pabeinooua aq pjnoys siadojansp
‘pasealoul aq pjnoys sjdoad Japjo Joj sawayds bBuisnoy pspoddns Jaquinu ay |

71 'ON
uonEPUSWIWOIDY

(g) xipuaddy

L 1L0Z Arenuep — suoijepuswiwiodady 0} asuodsay aAlIN2axX3 Jeiq

0102 8J1IyspJolaiaH SS0Joy S82IAI8S 818D SWOH JO MaIAaY Aunniog

125



126



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 20 JANUARY 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
PORTFOLIO AREA: | ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES
CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected
County-wide
Purpose

To be advised of the outcome of a joint review of third sector support and development services; to
approve the principles for future delivery and delegate authority to officers to deliver the proposal, in
conjunction with relevant voluntary and community organisations.

Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendations

THAT :

(a) the outcome of the review be noted;

(b) the principle of a single local solution to deliver support services to front
line community & voluntary organisations, together with a shared
services approach to back office functions, be approved; and

(c) authority be delegated to the Director of Resources, in consultation with
the Director of Sustainable Communities, to negotiate and implement a
single delivery arrangement in accordance with the agreed principle.

Key Points Summary

. A joint review between Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) and the Third Sector has been
undertaken to consider future provision of support services to front line voluntary and
community organisations across Herefordshire.

. The review has examined the needs of front line organisations, and taken account of the views

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
David Powell, Director of Resources on (01432) 383518

Third Sector cabinet report 21 01 11 (2).doc 22/02/10

127



of key stakeholders, the changing national picture and the financial constraints placed on HPS.

A number of options for the future structure for the commissioning and delivery of support
services have been developed, with a preferred option of a single local solution, with a shared
services approach to back office functions, together with a balance of central and local support
to front line voluntary and community organisations.

Alternative Options

1

The review report (Appendix 1) provides further detail of alternative delivery options, together
with a rationale for opting for the single entity.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

HPS proposes to use the results of the Third Sector Support Services Review as a basis for
future commissioning, both of services funded and those directly delivered by HPS. A decision
on future delivery arrangements is needed at this point, with transitional arrangements in place
by the end of September 2011, to enable continuity of service during the recommissioning.

Introduction and Background

3

HPS recognises that voluntary and community organisations, as part of the wider civil society,
provide a vital role in supporting communities across our county. Services provided to support
these organisations are crucial in ensuring that those at the front line have the skills, knowledge
and resources to, in turn, support individuals and communities to make a difference, giving
voice and support to a wide variety of interests and opinions as well as shaping and delivering
services which reflect local needs. HPS provides a significant financial contribution to the
delivery of these services, both through direct delivery as well as funding to the voluntary and
community sector for delivery of such services.

A joint review by HPS and the voluntary and community sector has been undertaken to inform
future commissioning by HPS to ensure a coherent and cost-effective form of delivery, in order
to sustain a thriving, diverse, independent and respected voluntary and community sector in
Herefordshire. Implementation of the key principles outlined in the recommendations
represents a substantial change to existing practice, but will deliver comprehensive, high quality
support services, which are inclusive and flexible, as well as being sustainable, eliminating
duplication and providing overall value for money.

Key Considerations

There are a number of trends in policy at both and local and national level, that have influenced
the need to review how best to support the community and voluntary sector in Herefordshire.
Key factors include:

. Total Place - already embraced in Herefordshire, with a move towards more locally
focussed provision;

. HPS adopting a commissioning rather than a provider focus;
. adoption of Compact Principles;
. significant resource pressures on local public services;

. the ‘Big Society’ approach and the importance placed on solutions delivered through the
Civil Society; and

128



10.

11.

12.

. the Decentralisation and Localism Bill.

The review is also timely given the end of Capacity Builders funding in March 2011. This is ata
time when the Government is consulting on future national support services. The “Supporting
Stronger Civil Society” consultation document was issued in October 2010 and includes the
rationalisation of infrastructure provision. The review process may mean that Herefordshire is
well placed to access national funding to support the implementation stage.

A cross-sector group (the Third Sector Support Services Review Group) was established under
the chairmanship of the Council’s Director of Resources, to review support services provided to
the voluntary and community sector in Herefordshire (also known as the third sector).

There is a detailed definition of the support services covered by the Review in the Terms of
Reference for the Review Group (Appendix 2). It is summarised here as the range of
organisations which occupy the intermediary space between the State and the private sector,
including voluntary and community organisations, charities, not for profit groups and social
enterprises. In Herefordshire, they range from small local volunteer led community groups to
large, countywide organisations.

The scope of the review covered the support function within HPS, six third sector organisations
currently funded by HPS to provide support services (Herefordshire Voluntary Action,
Community Voluntary Action Ledbury and District, Community First, Herefordshire Council for
Voluntary Youth Services, The Alliance and Age Concern Hereford and Worcester) as well as
those services delivered within HPS to support the third sector. The majority of core funding to
support these services is provided by HPS.

The overall objective of the review was to achieve a consensus on the future provision of
services, resources and delivery which would lead to:

. Comprehensive, high quality support services that meet the identified and anticipated
needs of front line third sector organisations.

. Inclusive and flexible support services that are available, accessible and affordable to all
front line third sector organisations across the county, and meet the varying support needs
of different organisations.

. Sustainable and effective delivery of support services that reflects good practice,
eliminates duplication, fills gaps and provides value for money.

The work of the Review Group has included

. a survey of those third sector organisations which receive support services from either
the third sector or HPS;

. a mapping exercise of the scope of support services currently provided by the six third
sector organisations and HPS;

. the development of principal options for the future shape and resourcing of support and
development services to the third sector. Grant Thornton were commissioned to do this
work and their report is attached as Appendix 1.

The findings of the review were shared with the Third Sector Interim Board, consisting of
representatives of the Third Sector Forum in Herefordshire, and trustees of the six organisations
affected. In addition, the Third Sector Interim Board commissioned an external challenge,
testing the proposals with Board members and front line organisations. This approach was
agreed in order to provide broader engagement in the process.

129



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

20.

21.

22.

The Review Group reached a consensus on the general direction of travel, to respond to the
future needs of front line third sector organisations, with the need to develop new delivery
mechanisms and new commissioning arrangements, with a number of options under
consideration.

The review concluded that the current approach to Third Sector Support Services lacks co-
ordination. Furthermore, in some instances services are duplicated meaning value for money
cannot be demonstrated and a lack of clarity exists about which organisation delivers what
services. One of the agreed principles of the review was that it is a priority for HPS to deploy
funding and staff resource in the most efficient way whilst providing the most effective service. A
new commissioning arrangement for these services is therefore needed to ensure this priority is
met, especially as the third sector will need to ensure even greater co-ordination of support to
enable it to continue to meet the aspirations of the ‘Big Society’, within existing and future
funding constraints.

The options outlined in the Grant Thornton Report also reference a need for shared ‘back office’
functions for the services which will provide greater collaboration and value for money. This is
particularly relevant given the opportunity afforded by the HPS Shared Services programme. If
not implemented, the danger is that of continued duplication, siloed working and under-utilised
resources.

Analysis of the survey and mapping data conducted by Grant Thornton shaped the findings
presented to the review group. The data suggested that those who use the services are broadly
happy but the relevance to the wider community of front line organisations is unclear. Even so
the majority of perceived needs appear to be met. However, the wider issue is whether this
would remain the case in the future.

Grant Thornton concluded “that the level of unmet need will grow, and if it does, dissatisfaction
with provision can be expected to grow with it, if the way third sector support services are
provided does not change”. The implication of this conclusion is there would be an impact on all
organisations either receiving or delivering third sector support services. A wider impact was
felt to be a limitation of the extent to which civil society organisations are able to respond to the
emerging developments evident in government policy aimed at support the Big Society agenda.

The Review Group agreed a short list of options, as detailed in the Grant Thornton report
(appendix 1). The Review Group reached a consensus on a localities focus as being the
preferred direction of travel; which is consistent with likely developments in the county (and
nationally). However there were some concerns about the feasibility of implementing local
'spokes' in terms of implementation complexity and potential cost.

Feedback from the challenge process conducted by the Interim Third Sector Board (Appendix
3) provided useful comment on the strengths and weaknesses of the options under
consideration. This included the need to ensure that support services were promoted more
effectively, targeted to meet the needs of a diverse sector, ensuring quality of service, as well as
ensuring that expressed needs were met. Whilst face to face engagement could be important, it
was felt that a local “fixed” provision was not necessarily required. There were also areas of
support identified which were thought not to be currently provided. A key overall message was
“Be brave — make a change for the better”. There are therefore some clear recommendations
for better communication and marketing of services, as well as flexibility in terms of service
delivery, driven by the needs of the sector.

The views of the Community Services Scrutiny Committee were also sought and the following
issues raised:

. Whilst it was clear there was commitment to the process by those involved, it was
important that specific skills offered by individual organisations should not be lost

130



23.

24.

25.

26.

. Consideration should be given to how the existing system had evolved

. If all organisations were merged, there may be a danger that volunteers would be
lost

The Review Group met to consider these responses on 9" December. Key principles were
agreed:

. one single, local solution for Herefordshire
° shared services, to deliver back office functions, to deliver efficiencies

. flexibility about delivering in localities, looking at smart technology / outreach
provision

. firm up the role of the Third Sector Board, in representing and supporting the
sector

It should be noted that some of the third sector organisations in the Group deliver both front line
and support services and will therefore need to understand and assess the implications of the
development of a single delivery mechanism for support services on the future of their
organisation.

Whilst it is entirely appropriate for HPS to clearly set out its commissioning intentions, it is a
matter for the third sector organisations, as independent bodies, to determine how they will
structure themselves to deliver the commissioned service.

To enable negotiations to take place regarding the more detailed arrangements to deliver this
change the funding and staff resource available from HPS and a commissioning plan will be
agreed over the forthcoming months with the date to commence transition agreed for 1 April
2011.

The Third Sector organisations involved in the Review have been advised that reductions in
funding will need to be implemented next year. However, to provide continuity of service
delivery during the transition period, it is proposed that existing service level agreements will be
extended for a further 6 month period, until 30" September 2011.

Community Impact

27.

The review has been a collaborative piece of work involving the relevant third sector
organisations in the entire process, as it is important that consensus is reached. The resulting
decision from this review will have an indirect impact on communities as community groups
benefit from the support services commissioned and delivered. It is therefore important that this
service to them is of the highest quality whilst being cost-effective.

Financial Implications

28.

29.

Financial support from HPS for those organisations providing support services to the third
sector will not be immune from the effects of CSR10 and the subsequent local government
settlement. Whilst this is not the prime driver for the Review, the emphasis has been on
effective support to front line third sector organisations, and reducing management and
overhead costs at a time of budgetary constraint would be an advantage.

The funding envelope for Third Sector Support Organisation forms part of the overall approach

to the 2011/12 budget. It is has been confirmed to third sector organisations involved that
overall funding will need to reduce over future years.

131



30. The total Third Sector Support Services spend is £1.925m of which £1.134m is funded by HPS.
The HPS direct spend is £674k but this will be affected by a reduction in spend within Children
and Young People as a result of the restructure of Early Years and extended services.

Legal Implications

31. At the end of the 2010/11 financial year all current contracts with third sector organisations
providing support services end. There are therefore no legal implications in relation to
contractual arrangements other than the need to reach a decision swiftly for clarity to be given
on financial arrangements post March 2011.

32. Any transfer of directly provided service from HPS to a new arrangement will be carried out in
line with existing policies.

Risk Management

33. If approval is given to the report, there is a risk that existing support to front line organisations
will be compromised, whilst new structures and ways of working are set up. It is proposed that
the third sector organisations affected are given a six month extension to their existing service
level agreements to support service delivery during the transition period, to avoid a hiatus in
support to front line organisations.

34. If agreement is not reached, HPS will not be able to secure a way of ensuring co-ordination and
increased value for money in commissioning. This has been mitigated by the joint nature of the
review.

Consultees

35. Consultation with key stakeholders, including commissioners, providers, and third sector front
line organisations was undertaken as part of the work conducted by Grant Thornton. The HPS
Research Team also supported a postal survey of third sector frontline organisations. The 320
survey responses informed the Grant Thornton report.

36. Community Services Scrutiny Committee were consulted on 6 December and their views have
been taken into consideration by the Review Group and in developing the recommendations of
this report.

37. All Members have had the opportunity to attend a briefing on the findings of the review.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Review of Third Sector Support and Development Services — Grant Thornton (November
2010)

Appendix 2 - Terms of Reference of the Third Sector Support Services Review Group

Appendix 3 - Review of Third Sector Support Services — Scrutiny of Options — Interim Third Sector
Strategic Board.

Background Papers

None

132



Review of Third Sector Support
Services

Scrutiny of Options — Interim
Third Sector Strategic Board
(ITSSB)

Scrutiny Panel Final Report

November 29" 2010

133



1. Purpose of the Scrutiny

The purpose of the scrutiny was to gather evidence about the
relative strengths and weaknesses of the proposed options from the
perspective of voluntary and community organisations in
Herefordshire (i.e. the users or potential users of support services).

A scrutiny panel of six undertook the review!, supported by an
independent consultant, Alison McLean. The role of the panel was to
agree the mechanisms for gathering the evidence, consider the
results and feed back to the ITSSB and, on behalf of the ITSSB, to
the Third Sector Support Review Group. This report is that
feedback. It provides headline messages for the Review Group.
More detailed points are contained in Appendixes as appropriate.

2. Methodology

The scrutiny panel did not attempt a full consultation with the
sector, nor did it seek to ‘vote’ on the options. Given the resources
available and the timescales for the review, a ‘market testing’
approach was adopted. A note with more details of the
methodology used for the scrutiny is attached (Appendix 1). In
essence, the evidence base consisted of:

o Written evidence from the review group (including user survey,
service mapping documents and Grant Thornton report).

o Views of users and potential users of support services gathered
via a series of telephone interviews (18) and a focus group (7
participants).

This evidence was collated and examined against a set of five
criteria agreed by the panel (Quality, Access, Equity, Scope and
Value for Money). These were not the same as the criteria used by
the review panel, but designed specifically to test out the
perspectives of the users of the services in line with the purpose of
the panel. Draft conclusions were arrived at and tested with the
providers of services. Following amendments our final comments
and recommendations are detailed in the rest of this report.

1 Members of the panel are those members of the ITSSB that do not have a
personal nor organisational interest in the outcome of the review -see Appendix 1

2
134



3. Strengths and Weaknesses of evidence base and review
approach.

Strengths

e The return rate of the user survey provides a statistically strong
evidence base.

« The user survey provides important data on patterns of current
use, market penetration and satisfaction.

o The qualitative information (from stakeholders) is powerful, but
tends to get lost in the analysis

« The mapping information provides a baseline of current services
delivered and current and projected funding for services.

o The characteristics of high quality support services are defined.

« (Mostly) the framework for assessment of options is clear?

o Providers of services are working together to arrive at an agreed
way forward for re-shaping delivery. Particular strengths are the
fact that HPS resources are included in the review and trustees
of local support organisations are working together to map the
way forward.

Weaknesses

e The review started before CSR + other government
developments (e.g. council staff co-operatives/mutuals). The
external context continues to change quickly and prudence
suggests a re-reference of it before any final decisions are taken,
to ensure that all relevant issues to-date have been taken into
account.

o The cost analysis is missing. The budget from HPS is unclear as
are the costs of each option - what can we afford?

e Survey responders were self-selected (current users) and very
few FLOs were consulted in the Grant Thornton stakeholder
engagement. The survey cannot tell the whole story.

« There are important gaps in the evidence base and its analysis -
what are the key changes needed to improve support services?
Which are the priority services? Which can be cut? What can be
provided from elsewhere? Will the projection for future need
turn into actual demand for services?

« The leap to ‘models’ appears to have been taken before the
necessary work on the types of services needed is complete.

« How the short list of options was arrived at is unclear - there are
other options that do not appear to have been considered.

« When those with vested interests try to arrive at consensus,
there may be a tendency to avoid more radical solutions.

« The Scrutiny Process itself has been working under significant
constraints, particularly in terms of timescale. Grant Thornton
final report was not available in time to be thoroughly
considered.

2 With the exception of ‘strategic fit’ which the Scrutiny Panel feel is rather ill-
defined

135



3. Evidence from Scrutiny Panel ‘testing’ FLOs

Below are the highlights of what people told us when we asked
them about the key five criteria that we used to consider the
options. More detail of the responses can be found in Appendix 2
and 3)

Quality

o Clarity and visibility of support services needs to be improved-
organisations do not know what is available or where to go.

o Well targeted, filtered information for a differentiated market is
needed to meet the needs of a hugely diverse sector.

e Quality advice and information (professional and knowledgeable)
is needed rather than trying to cover all aspects less well.

« National and regional support and private sector services should
be well tied in (sign-posted). FLOs use these sources of support
regularly.

e Organisations want a service that supports groups/communities
to do what they want to do (driven from the front line).

Access

o Local ‘fixed’ provision of support services is not as important as
the review papers suggest - although face to face engagement
should be an option for some services.

o Exclusive dependence on electronic services (internet/email) may
mean very small, community based organisations miss out.

o Good access depends on excellent and integrated info/marketing
tailored to the different needs of different types of organisations.

Equity

o Equity is about communication tailored to different needs

o« The world of infrastructure organisations feels remote to many
organisations (e.g. a perception that many did not understand
what the user survey questionnaire was about).

Scope

e Support requirements are very broad, as are types of ‘users’

e Support services should include - advice, information, support

(as listed in review papers). Also confirmed as important:

Brokering with public sector/private sector
Managing grant programmes
Brokering and networking between Third Sector Orgs
Providing a voice and raising the profile of the sector
Providing, promoting and enabling Community Development
(which is a different activity to generic advice)

136



Value for Money

« Most would have no objection to membership fee - geared to
level of income. But with clarity about what it buys.

« Many expect to pay for some services.

o There are opportunities to reduce duplication.

« FLOs can share resources and facilities (bartering/mentoring),
support services could facilitate this exchange.

e The aim should be to maximise money to FLOs delivering
services.

4. Scrutiny Panel key points on Options®

Option 1

This option has the potential to provide a single access point and
more coherent delivery and so address issues of clarity, visibility
and co-ordination of provision BUT

e The creation of a monopoly may mean that the central
organisation dictates the shape of services (rather than be
responsive to needs). How would it be accountable?

o The single entity could just be another layer.

o« The scrutiny panel expressed concerns about the joint venture
model. It is difficult to see how it will deliver support services
effectively and efficiently.

o Reduction in cost and duplication is not guaranteed - it will
depend on how the entity is set up.

Option 2

This option will have less transitional cost and would be easier to
implement. Also commissioning services provides more flexibility to
meet the changing needs of the sector BUT

« Who is going to be on commissioning board?

« How would it operate? There is an assumed cost to the
independent board, it will need an officer base to support it to
research sector needs, let contracts and monitor services.

« This option does not really change the current pattern of delivery
(and so does not address issues of fragmentation/coherence).

e It is unclear how cost will be taken out of the provision of
services (review papers suggest that this is a pre-condition.

Option 5

The positives and negatives of the ‘hub’ are the same as in Option
one. In terms of the locality spokes, community development
resources are important. Localities could be a vehicle for supporting
communities to become self-supporting and this option responds to
the current government’s focus on local delivery BUT

? Given the decision by the Review Group to put aside Options 3a, 3b and 4 the
Scrutiny Panel confined its deliberations to Options 1, 2 and 5

137



6.

This could be an expensive option for little benefit, especially it
involves accommodation and permanent staff as papers suggest.
The evidence for what services should be included in the local
spokes is not clear.*

The range of support services that could be delivered in each
location is limited. Would this be able to serve the diverse needs
of third sector organisations? How will the right balance between
what is co-ordinated at the centre and what is delivered in the
spokes be judged?

Key Messages for the Review Group

The Scrutiny Panel would like the Review Group to consider the
following key messages when taking the next steps in the Review.

Be brave - Make a change for the better.

There is a need to make a radical change to reduce costs and
increase effectiveness - the services should be seen to be
different and better. Grasp this unique opportunity to make the
changes needed for the longer term. Take a ‘staged’ approach,
with a clearer vision of the outcomes sought and with timetabled
steps along the way. Avoid a ‘phased’ approach that seeks to
evolve the service, but with unclear final outcomes.

There is a need to prioritise - it is not possible to be all things to
all organisations. Be clear what is and is not going to be
delivered. Focus on delivering services in response to evidenced
need.

A centralised and simplified initial access point appears to be a
priority, as is much improved marketing and communications.
Community development resources are important at a local level,
but not necessarily a general, ‘fixed”” access point for support.
Different solutions for different localities will be needed.

Be clearer what is within the range of the 'possible’

The review appears too based on the past. The world has moved
on rapidly and there is a need to look to the future. The service
needs to have the capacity to continuously reinvent itself.

Clarify the scale of budget available from HPS and HPS
commissioning intentions.

Avoid adding an additional ‘layer’.

Actively manage the transition. Avoid a hiatus in service
delivery, losing the value of volunteers or of successful specialist
services, in the push to re-configure delivery.

* Evidence in user survey and in Scrutiny Panel discussions with FLOs
> The Option suggests for example, accommodation costs. A permanent physical
presence may not be the best solution.

138



Refine the options taking into account the following issues

Refinements to the options could include:

- other geographical models (sharing functions across LA
boundaries)

- a model that combines a central hub (services that need to be
co-ordinated at the centre) with commissioned (specialist)
services (that need to be flexible) - something between
Options 1 and 2

Governance and accountability arrangements are critical — where
exactly will the leadership lie? How will those strategically
responsible for shaping/commissioning services be accountable
to users/potential users of services? What could/should be the
role of the Third Sector Board in representing FLO interests in
the commissioning process and elsewhere®?

It would be useful to also consider a more integrated role for

other local (funding) agencies (such as Herefordshire Community

Foundation, the trusts administered by the Council and faith

communities) in the new landscape.”’

Step up communications with Front Line Organisations

Excellent communications and marketing are critical to reaching
out across the diversity of the sector and responding to the
changing needs of the sector.

Communications and feedback to FLOs on the review itself are
needed - the changes that are proposed/decided upon, transition
arrangements, implications for local organisations should be
promptly and clearly communicated.

November 29" 2010

Members of the Scrutiny Panel

Margaret Andrews — Campaign for the Protection of Rural England
Rob Garner — Family Drug Support and Bulmer Foundation

Claire Keetch - Citizen’s Advice Bureau

Dave Marshall - Bulmer Foundation

Penny Southwood - HALO Leisure Services

Julie Wilson Thomas - HELP

Declaration of interests:

David Marshall - Independent Examiner of the Alliance's accounts

Rob Garner - Bulmer Foundation has submitted funding bid to LEADER -
Community First would be delivery partner.

6 Assuming that the TSB becomes the acknowledged focal point for the voice of the sector
in the County (not just in relation to support services, but more widely).

7 Herefordshire Community Foundation made a request to be more closely involved in the
next stage of the review.

139



140



Herefordshire Third Sector Support Services

Review
Terms of Reference

Aim

To review current support services for front line third sector organisations, (FLOs)
and make recommendations for future services and their resourcing for
Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) to commission or provide, alongside a coherent
and cost-effective form of delivery, in order to sustain a thriving, diverse,
independent and respected third sector in Herefordshire.

Rationale

During 2009 three reports’ were produced on aspects of the third sector in
Herefordshire. The findings of these reports, together with the discussions on their
implementation at a time of financial constraint has led to the current Review, which
will examine current support services for front line third sector organisations in
Herefordshire and to identify future priorities.

It is intended that the review will cover all support services provided to front line
third sector organisations across the Herefordshire Partnership, although it is
recognised that Herefordshire Public Services, (HPS), is a major funder of some of
these services within the county.

HPS has confirmed that it will use the results of the Review as a basis for future
commissioning as well as provision of these services from within its own teams. The
Review will also assist third sector infrastructure organisations in their future
development and structure. It is also expected to inform the support services that
other members of Herefordshire Partnership commission.

Desired Outcomes
A consensus over future services, resources and delivery

= Comprehensive, high quality support services that meet the identified and
anticipated needs of front line third sector organisations

» Inclusive and flexible support services that are available, accessible and
affordable to all front line third sector organisations across the county, and
meet the varying support needs of different organisations.

» Sustainable and effective delivery of support services that reflects good
practice, eliminates duplication, fills gaps and provides value for money.

Scope

The review will cover all support services provided to FLOs by HPS and by the
following six third sector organisations: Age Concern, Herefordshire and
Worcestershire; The Alliance; Community First; Community and Voluntary Action,

1 '‘Review of The Herefordshire Alliance’ Richard Gutch May 2009
'Review of Third Sector Engagement with the Herefordshire Partnership’ Hasnah
Sheriff June 2009
'Review of Herefordshire’s Funding and Procurement Code’ Ros Cassy May 2009

141



Ledbury; Herefordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services and Herefordshire
Voluntary Action.

The review will also be informed by other organisations which provide resources to
support such services, including members of the Herefordshire Partnership. It is also
recognised that there may be a number of other organisations, both public and third
sector, including those which are primarily delivery organisations, which also deliver
support services to FLOs. The review will not, however, encompass these
investments or services in detail, although they could be the subject of second
phase work at a later date, should that be considered desirable.

While the Review will, therefore, aim to include all organisations which provide
resources for, and support services to FLOs in Herefordshire to inform a future
framework for commissioning these services, it will remain tightly focussed in order
to deliver the desired outcomes in a timely fashion.

The working group will compile and monitor a Risk register.

Accountability and Decision making

The Review will be conducted by a Working Group which will make
recommendations. The recommendations of the Review will be subject to the
approval by the relevant decision-making mechanisms of each participating
organisation. This will be the Chief Executive of Herefordshire Council and
Herefordshire Primary Care Trust, for HPS, and the Boards of Trustees of third sector
support organisations.

Timescale
The review will be conducted to inform commissioning for the financial year 2011/12.

Operating Procedures and Administration - These are attached at Appendix B.
Review Group Membership

Core membership:
Chair - David Powell — Director of Resources — Herefordshire Council

Nina Bridges, Community Regeneration Manager — Herefordshire Council

Alex Fitzpatrick, Third Sector Liaison Officer- Herefordshire Council

Richard Betterton, Herefordshire Council for Voluntary Youth Services

Tess Brooks-Sheppard, Community Voluntary Action, Ledbury and District
Helen Horton, The Alliance

Will Lindesay, Herefordshire Voluntary Action

Richard Quallington, Community First

Philip Talbot, Age Concern Herefordshire and Worcestershire

Wendy Fabbro, Associate Director, Integrated Commissioning Directorate, HPS
Philippa Granthier, Head of Children’s Trust Development, Children and Young
People’s Directorate, HPS

To attend as appropriate:

Richard Gabb, Assistant director, Homes and Communities, HPS
Robert Blower, Communications, HPS

Julie Gethin, Head of Partnership Support, Herefordshire Partnership

142



Secretariat: Carrie Wright, PA to David Powell.
A list of principal interested parties to be consulted/ included at key stages is
attached at Appendix C.

Key areas of activity
1. Agree definitions and categories of support services; see Appendix A
2. Map all support services provided to FLOs, using the agreed definitions and

categories.

3. Conduct a sample survey of third sector organisations which receive support
services.

4. Each provider of support services to provide further details of services,
including current and future costs and funding sources.

5. Each funder of support services to provide further details of funding
arrangements, including current and future funding, in kind resources and
priority areas for funding.

6. Identify differences, complementary services, duplication, gaps and
added value.

7. Understand the priorities and drivers for those organisations that fund

support services.

Examine examples of current good practice in effective delivery.

Identify opportunities and mechanisms for more effective and efficient

delivery.

10. Based on the review findings, put forward recommendations on the support
services required and the necessary infrastructure to deliver them, in order to
inform the commissioning strategy for HPS and other Herefordshire
Partnership members.

0 o0

Strategic Framework
The review will take account of Total Place and the locality work being led by Geoff
Hughes, (Director of Regeneration, HPS).

The key strategic documents that provide the framework for, and will inform the
review, are listed in Appendix D.

Review

These Terms of Reference will be open to review at any time, but any proposed
changes will require the agreement of the majority of the membership and must be
clearly recorded.

143



Appendix A
Definitions and Categories

Third sector

The range of organisations which occupy the intermediary space between the State
and the private sector, where private energy can be deployed for the public good. It
is an umbrella term that embraces a number in common use which define parts of
the sector, including voluntary and community, charity, not for profit and social
enterprise, which together form the backbone of civil society.

The sector consists of a diversity of organisations which vary in size, income, activity
and the way in which they are constituted. This includes community, voluntary and
faith groups, registered charities, foundations and trusts, housing associations and
the growing number of social enterprises and cooperatives. They range from small
local volunteer led community groups to large, national  organisations with
turnover in excess £100m.

Third sector support and development organisations

Services provided by any organisation that plays a role in supporting, co-ordinating,
representing, policymaking and/or development in relation to local voluntary and
community organisations.

Third sector support and development organisations provide the infrastructure in the
sector that ensures that front line third sector organisations, (FLOs), have the skills,
knowledge, structures and resources to realise their full potential.

The provision of support and development services through infrastructure
organisations is second tier activity that supports front-line delivery, supporting
organisations, not individuals.

The role of third sector support and development organisations is to provide
leadership for the sector and support for third sector organisations in their area,
responding to needs identified and expressed by local FLOs, and also bringing to
their attention new issues and policies that will have an impact on the sector,
offering guidance and support in how to address them.

Support and development services are provided within the sector nationally,
regionally and locally.

There are support and development organisations which offer:

o generalist support within a geographical area, such
as Councils for Voluntary Service (CVS); and those which
offer

. specialist sub-sectoral support to specific communities or client

groups, such as Rural Community Councils (RCC) or Volunteer
Bureaux (VB), or in health and social care or child care.

Such support can also come from organisations outside the third sector, such as local

authorities and other public sector organisations, Business Link, funders, private
sector training.

144



Third Sector Support and Development Services

Services designed to build the capacity and capability of individual front-line
organisations and groups and of the sector as a whole, and also to release and
realise their potential for contributing to the public good.

For the purpose of this Review, key services provided by third sector infrastructure
organisations cover the following activities:

1. Development support:

Pro-actively identifying needs in the local community and facilitating and
supporting responses to meet those needs and /or plug gaps in provision.
This includes:

Community development, community involvement and
action;

Start-up; ‘promote and float”: incubating new
organisations, relinquishing others that can stand alone;
Initiation, growth and contraction of groups, projects and
services.

2. Legal and technical information, advice and guidance:

Ensure that organisations are fit for purpose, legally compliant and operating
to high standards, using a variety of means to promote services and
encourage take-up.

Governance: Advice on choosing the right legal form; legal status,
governing documents, constitutional, and access to legal advice;
Board development and support for Directors/Trustees.
Organisational development including strategic and business
planning; HR and workforce development; equalities, health and
safety, safeguarding and other organisational policies and
procedures.

Financial advice, including financial management; costing and
pricing; fund raising; income generation; and investment advice
on alternative forms of finance , including repayable loan finance,
patient capital etc. from high street and specialist lenders.
Business support for organisations wishing to become more
sustainable through trading;

Advice and support for individual entrepreneurs; and support for
public sector workers wishing to transition to social enterprise
models;

Skills for winning and delivering contracts: Designing services for
the market place; contract readiness’ for tendering and
procurement; negotiation; project and service management; data
collection; monitoring and reporting; and calculating and reporting
on Social Return on Investment, (SROI);

Marketing, communications, customer care;
consultation/feedback; service user engagement.

Performance improvement and management, including: quality
assurance and standards; accreditation service and regulation —
advice and/or an accreditation service; evaluation.

145



These services can be provided at different levels, from information giving and

signposting,

through support, including training, to specialist advice to

organisations on a one-to-one basis, including good practice, and to national
standards where they apply.

3. Practical assistance and resources:

Buildings,

premises and facilities: (e.g. Community Resource Centres;

Volunteer Bureaux; Community Transport, where used by organisations and
groups, not individuals.)

Premises management

Office services, including ICT

Grant -giving mechanism; access to funding opportunities
Volunteering: Promotion; Brokerage service with a single point of
access; accessible Volunteer Centres; employee Volunteering;
developing volunteering opportunities

4. Learning and Development

Encourage and co-ordinate the take-up of training and learning opportunities
across the sector

Regular training needs analysis and identification of priorities

A structured programme for the delivery of learning and
development opportunities through a variety of media, including
access to accredited training

Encouragement of innovation and creativity

Facilitation of support mechanisms, e.g. mentoring, (especially for
lone workers), learning sets and skills sharing

5. Strengthening voice:

Provide a representative and accountable voice for third sector organisations
to policy makers, service planners and funders.

Raise the profile of the sector through promoting its capability
and value;

Provide a communications and co-ordination hub

Channel information between national, regional and local bodies,
including promoting national/regional campaigns to front-line
organisations

Encourage the voices of the sector to be heard through advocacy,
liaison and representations.

Promote networking, (including FLO forums), knowledge sharing,
collaboration and partnerships internally within the sector to
maximise resources

Scrutinise and challenge policies and practices.

Pursue Compact compliance

Promote Gift Aid and Payroll giving

Assist the Third Sector Strategic Board/Forum to achieve its goals

6. Strategic partnership building and brokerage:

Bringing together FLOs with external public and private sector organisations
for joint/cooperative policy making, planning and service delivery.

Provide and support formal representation

146



Engage with policy makers, service planners and funders with and
on behalf of FLOs

Be the ‘public face’ of the third sector

Represent the interests of the sector in partnerships and networks
Encourage community engagement

Manage third sector consultation networks

Conduct consultations

Act as a ‘bridge’ between FLOs and commissioners of services,
facilitating  working  relationships and  contributing to
commissioning and service development for the benefit of service
users.

Facilitate participation in shaping and delivering CAA/LAA and
delivery of NIs by FLOs

7. Research and Policy Development:

Collect and provide evidence on the needs, role and developments within the
third sector, in order to influence policy, planning and service delivery.

Data bank

Disseminate information on national, regional and local policy
initiatives

Develop policy responses and proposals

Commission research

Produce and circulate policy papers, guidance and information

147



Appendix B
Operating Procedures and Administration

Review Group
The Review Group is a task and finish group. The Review Group will be chaired by

David Powell, Director of Resources, Herefordshire Council.
The Chair is appointed for the Group, from inception to completion of the task.

Decision making

It is expected that the Group will achieve consensus through full and open
discussion. Any differences of opinion potentially leading to conflict, should be
resolved at an early stage, via the Chair if required.

If there are objections to decisions, these must be noted in the minutes of the
meetings.

Meetings
The Group will meet at least monthly. A programme of actions will be agreed at the

first meeting and reviewed at each subsequent meeting.

A schedule of meetings will be agreed at the first meeting.

If required the Chair will be able to call additional meetings.

Administration

The Secretariat for the Group will be provided by Carrie Wright, Personal Assistant to

the Chair.

Agendas and papers will be circulated a week prior to the meeting. Every effort will
be made to avoid tabling of papers.

Minutes will be kept to record decisions made by the Review Group.

Attendance
Review Group members unable to attend a particular meeting may arrange for a
substitute from the group / organisation they represent, to attend in their place.

If a representative leaves their represented organisation or group, the organisation
or group shall appoint a new representative.

Quorum

The Review Group will be quorate when five members are present including the
Chair, with two representatives each from the public and third sectors required at
each meeting.

148



Declarations of Interest
Declarations of interest should be declared and will be recorded.

Appendix C
Principal Interested Parties

HP public sector organisations: Police/Probation/Fire Service
Diocese of Hereford

Parish Councils

Chamber of Commerce

Business Link

Appendix D
Relevant Strategic Documents
The following documents will provide the framework for and inform the Review:
e Local Compact and Codes of Good Practice
e Joint Strategic Needs Analysis

e Community Strategy

e World Class Commissioning Strategy

e Children’s Trust Commissioning Framework

e Director of Public Health’s Report

e Review of The Herefordshire Alliance

e Review of Third Sector Engagement with Herefordshire Partnership

Review of the Herefordshire Compact Funding and Procurement Code

Adopted 8™ July 2010

149



150



‘uosiad iayjo Aue Aq jJ1o0day ay} ul pauiejuod uoijewriojul uo asueljal 1o Joday ayj} jJo asn ayj Jo }oadsau ul
uosiad J1ayjo Aue spiemo} 4711 MN uojuioy] juels) Aq pajdasoe si Ajjiqel) 10 AJjiqisuodsal ou pue [1I9Uno?) aJlysp.ao}aiaH
JO Jyauaq ay} 1oy Aj9jos pasedaid sem uoday ayl ‘wayl yym paaibe aiam uoday ayjy jo adoos pue uoneiredasd ayj 1oy
SWLI9) 9y} pue |I9uUN0Y aIIYSPI0JaIaH JO }sanbai ayj je 411 MN uojuioy] juels) Aq pasedasd sem (, Juoday,, ay}) podaa siyl

jeiq jeuld
010¢ 19qUWSAON G¢

S9JIAIBS
Juswdojana pue uoddng 101085 pJlIY| JO MBIASY

IDUNOY) aliyspJlojalaH

uojuloy| e §




19 suondo 1s17 Buo payunoosiq :G
09 s92IAI9S 1oddng 10108g paiy] Jo sauobale)
6S swJa] jo Auessolo ‘¢
8SG pa}INSuU0) sjUBwWNI0(J JO i1 :2
9G $99)|NSU0Y) S|enpIAIpU| JO 1SIT ;|
Sa0Ipuaddy

[4°] suonelapisuo) uonejusws|dw| 9
0S SuUOISNOUOY) :G
A% uonenjea suondo
8z Juswdojansg suondQ pue ylomawel4 uonenjeas ¢
6 uolnIsod juaing ay} jo sishjeuy :g
€ Alewiwins aAljNoax3 :|
obed uol}o9g

Sjusju0)

152



(0102 4290300 ‘9210 J8uIqeD) A1a100S 211D Jabuosls e Bulp|ing -

. SYJomiau poddns [eoo| asoy) abeinoous pue |elded |e1oos
1eyl p|ing 0} Juem am uaym awij e je isnl Aja100s ul ajdoad sjgetau|nA }sow ay) Jo swos uoddns pue
|eydeo |e1oos ainunu 0} 10}0as ay) Jo Ajjige ay) Jsje Apjuediiubis pjnod sinod J03oss olignd psjpuey
Alpeg -suonesiuebio AiejunjoA Jayjo pue saslidiajud [eloos ‘saljueyo 1oy awi) buibus|ieyo Auenoiued
B S| SIY} ey} sesiubooal juswuionob ay| -jealb 0s SI JIoysp |euoleu a8y} aonpal 0} abus|ieyo
ay] JO 9|eds 8y} asneoaq alnjpuadxa olgnd ul suolonNpal WOoJ) dunwwil 8qg Jouued 10}os8s ay|

‘'soAl| s,8|doad Buinosdwi pue
K18100s Jo asuas Jabuouis e Buideys ul ol |enuanjjul alow uaAs ue Aejd 0} ‘Jauped juspuadspul pue
Jual|ISal B se ‘10}08s 8y} Jo} SI UOISIA IJNQO “swa|qoid |el1oos Jno 0} SuUoIlN|os Jayeq puly 0} Jamod J1ay)
sSsauley 0} Juem S\ "92I0A B pulj 0} 816bnss sawnawos oym asoyy Aenoiued ‘sjdoad poddns pue
asl|iqgow 0} suonesiuebio Ajunwwod pue Asejunjoa Jo Ajjige [eloads ay) anjeA pue asiubooas ap\,

Alewwing aAI)lNoaXx | UOI08S

uojuloy| e §




'SSS 1 opinoad 01 S4H Ag pauoissiwwod (sQAST) suonesiuebiQ juswdojaaaq pue uwoddng |eooT xis ay) Aq pue

(SdH) se21n18S 211gnd aJiyspaojaiaH Aq papinoid usaq sey adoos InQ -Jlidy wol) uoneyuswajdwi 10} SNSUSSUOD B aulWLIg}ap
0] ‘mainal 0} dnoib Bupjiom YSSS I Byl 40} “10108S pJIYl 8y} 0) S82IAIas Juawdojanap pue poddns jo Buioinosal pue adeys
ainyny ay} Joy suondo jediouud ay) Buidojenap Aq ‘aanoalqo sy buisijeal ul YSSS | @yl Woddns o) pebebua usaq aney apn

9|0y INQO

‘Aauow 1o} anjeA sepinoid

pue sdeb s|ji} ‘uoneoidnp sajeulwid ‘eonoeld poob s1o9|jal 1ey) sadiaIas poddns Jo AlBAlBp dAI108Y8 pue 9|geuIBISNS.
‘suonesiuebio jualayip Jo spasau uoddns Buikiea ay) 198w pue ‘AJunod ayj ssooe

suonesiueb.o 10}08s pJiy} Sul| JUOU4 ||B 0} |qeploye pue 3|qISSadoe ‘g|ge|ieAe ale ey} saoIAIas Joddns a|qIxal) pue SAISN|OU|e
‘suonesiuebio

J0J03S pJIYy} aul| JUol} JO spaau pajedionue pue paliuapl ay) }J@aw jeyy sadiaias uoddns Ayjenb ybiy ‘eaisusyaidwo).

-0} pe?| [|IM YydIiym

‘AIBAIjBp pue S824N0Sal ‘SBJIAISS JO UOISIA0Id 8injn) 8y} UO SNSUSSUOD B 9ASIYOE 0} S| 9A1303[qO ||BIBAO S)| "aIySpIOjalaH

ul uoisinold (SSS ) seoiAeg woddng 10j0ag pliy] JO mainal ay) abeuew 0] paysijgelse usaq sey dnols) Buiop) YSSSI 9yl

dnoug) Bujiop (HMSSS1) MIIADY S821AI9S uoddng 1030998 paiyl 9yl

"aJlyspJlojalaH Jo} sawooino Buisnlioud pue Buisnooy Aq

Buiuayybny jeasyy Jo 10edwi ay) Buisiwiuiw je pawie si pJemio) Buiob epuabe ay| -aulj Juol) 8y} Jo uonosjoid ayl yum Buiusiybny
[BOSI) 80ueleq 0} 8JISap S,JUBWUIBAOSL) 8y} pue Aja100g Big, 8y} ssedwoous pue a)ela|adoe 0} A|9YI| 8ie spuaJ} Juslind ay |
s92IAI8S 21|gnd |Bo0] uo sainssald saoinosal JUedlIubIS «

so|diould 10edwo)) jo uondope .

uolsinoid passnooy A||eo0] 810w SpJemo} pue snooy Japinoid e uey) Jayiel BuluoISSILIWOD B O} YIYS B «

SdH Jo uonealo ayl ybnouy) ‘6-e alysplojaioH ul paoseiquia Apeale - ade|d [el0] .

:9pN|oul s10}oe} A8y "U0ISIA0Id 82IAISS JO UOIIDBIIP JUSLIND BY} Ul PaJOajjal ik |9A3] |euoljeu ay) Je sYIyS “aliysplojaiay
uiyym Bunesado Jayo ao1AIas 21ignd auljjuody 8y} Jo Jed |[esbajul ue sawod9q sey uoisinoid saoiAIas Juoddns 10308s paiy |

JX9j3U09

1X8JU0)

154



‘¢ Xipuaddy 1B papnjoul SI SWJd}
10 Auesso|b y "malAal SIy] JO 1X81U00 ay}] ul pasn
ale swua) JBY)0 pue swAuosoe Jo Jaquinu vy

¥6-26 dd) suonesepisuo?) uonejuswsa|du)

(16-05 dd) suoisnjouo?

(67-g¥ dd) uonenjeag suondo

(1-82 dd)
Juswidojerag suondQ/yiomawel uoljen|eas

(22-6dd) uomisod jualing jo sishjeuy

(- ¢ dd) Arewwng aAnNoEX3

abed siy} Jo 1ybu ayy uo 1no 18s SI ainonas Jodal JnQ

Hoday JnQ Jo ainjonuis

‘suondo ayj Jo Bunjuel s,dnoib Buiom YSSS] Yl pawlojul
yoiym ‘suondo asay) psjenjeaa usyj uojuioy | juels) -dnoib
Buyiom YSSS | ayy Aq pealbe atam suondo Jo 1si| Loys e pue
}lomawel} uoljenjeAs ay] "pasiesdde aq pjnom suondo ay} yoiym
Aq yJomawely uoienjeAs ue pue uoisinoid SSS | ainyny Joj suondo
0 19s e padojansp pue paijjuapl am abels sisAjeue siy) buimojjo4

'Z Xipuaddyy 1e papnjoul SI pa}NSuod

SJUBWINOOP JO 1SI| Y "Siapjoyayels Aq papinoid sjuswndoop

Aoy paposse Jo malnal doj-ysap e Jo ped se SdH Aq uayeuapun
sAanins spaau pue Buiddew ay) uo umelp os|e aAey S\

"} Xipuaddy e papnjoul SI pa}NSU02 8soy} JO 1S Y

"S90UBIBJU028|8) pue ‘sdoysyiom ‘smalAislul Yidap-ul :swisiueyosw

JO Jaquinu e eIA mainal 8y} 1noybnoay) pabebus alem sispjoyayels

"alIyspJojaloH
ul siapinold SSS | XIS 8y} woly seAlejuasaldal suiejuod
UoIym pue ‘[Iouno?) aliysplojaiaH Jo ||lomod pireq Aq palieyd
sI yoiym ‘dnolsy Bunjlopy YSSSL 2yl Aq pealbe sem Jallq JnQ

yoeouddy unQ

yoeouddy JnQ

155



"aWl} JOAO paonpal 8q aiojeliay) Aew AlAOe SSS] JO 1S0D |BJO) Y}
‘PajiLII sw
A|Buisealoul aq ||Im s8ainosal Bunisixa jey) pue ‘spuny jeuonippe abelaas| 03 Ajljige paoanpal 8q |Im
alay) Jey} swnsse 0} 9|qeuoseal a10ja1ay) SI }| “SJUIBJISUOD 821N0Sal Buisealoul Japun SaA|9SWay)
ale YdoIym sa24nos Buipuny woulj sajeulblio pue pajiwi-awl} si buipuny pabeiaAs| ayj Jo yonw .
uonesduad 19)1ew ul sdeb Jusnbasuoo pue ‘uoisinoid ul sdeb ajgissod
Hoddns jsijeioads JO UOlJBUIPIO-00 OU S| 818y}
uonesduad
19yJew Jo oe| Juanbasuoo pue Bulpuelq Jood ‘uonieslidnp 03 Spes| Uolijeulplo-09 JO Yoe| SIY}
Hoddns jsijeiauab JO uoieuIpIo-09 ||BJOAOC OU S| 818y}
SdH pue sOS 9y} ssouoe papiaodd st pyoddns siyy .
Hoddns jsieioads pue jsijesauab JO Xiw e S| 848y}
seale Je|nolued
uo Joddns Jo joedwi 8y} pasealoul sey uoisinoid Jo Ajoloads Jejealb pue uoneosidiinw ayy .

"'sabueyo Buiwooyuoy ayj Jo 1oeduwl 8y} Jo ‘S8oIAIBS
JUS.IND By} JO 8OUBAS|B] BY} pue)SIapun 0} }18A aAeY SOT4 Se paau Jawun aq Aew alay) pue ‘Mo|
s| abesn Jng ‘way} asn jey} asoy) Jo spaau ay) bunesw Ajjelssuab aie sOQST 1ey) sisebbns ejep ayy .
‘(Aenuns ay) ul papnjoul
JOU SEeM W} J8BJUN|OA JO anjeA ay}) AeAIng spasN 8y} 0} papuodsal oym (sQT14) suonesiuebio
3UIT JUOJ4 BY} JO JaAouUIN] [B]0]} BU] JO 9%0Z Inoge sjuasaidal uoisinoid SSS] JO 1S00 JUalIND 8y}
:paljiuspI [9powW Jualind ay} Jo sisAjeue JnQ

MBIAISAO JuswAojdep SSS | JuaLINg

156



" UOIJ08S Ul UOIIBN|BA® 8Y) UO pue ‘S Uoloasg ul papn|oul
SI }JOMalBl) Uoljen|eAs ay) Uo [Iejap Jayun4 "Mojad 1no }as si paalbe Bujuel ay) Jo Alewwns y

€ g 9 14 A ONIMNVA

(Ajuo
¥ pue ayodg 09g) 924nos 92IN0S pleog Japinoid
| J0 pUgAH ® anH ino g u ino g u SSS1 a|buis
G uondo ¥ uondo gg uondo e¢ uondo Z uondo | uondo suonsanb uonenjeas Aay| elsyu)

‘MO|3q
1IN0 18s sI yoiym ‘dnoub Buiom ay) Agq suondo sy jo Bupuel paaibe ue 0} po| pue ‘suondo ayj Jo
uoIsSsnosIp s,dnolg) BuOA) ¥SSSL Ul pawdojul yoiym ‘suondo asay) pajenjeAs uayj uojuloy| juels

‘palidde aq 03 yJomawely uoien|eas

3y} pue ‘uoljen|eAa 1o} 1si| oys 0} pajuem Asayj suondo sy} paaibe pue papuswe ‘pamalrsl usy}
dnolus Buiop) ¥SSSL 9y “epuabe Adjjod s juswuisnob uoneod ay) Jo Buipuelsispun JapIM JnoO pue
UOIIB}INSUOD J8p|0ydxe)s SIY) Uo paseq ‘suoido JO Sa1as pue yJomauwel) uoienjeAas ue padojonsp ap\

"UOOS 8pew aq p|noys abueyo 1ey) SNSUSSU0D B AJuo ‘eye) pjnoys SIYy) WJoj ayj Jou 1ng ‘ebueyd 1oy
paau ay) Jo Juswaaibe peaidsapim pawilljuo9 ‘sisA[eue siy) pPaMO||o} 18y UOIJB)NSUO0D Japjoyayels ay |

uolne)nsuod dnolb Buijiom pue Japjoyayels

157



"SI9P|OYSXE)S SWOS JO JUSW}IWWOD 8y} 8Indas 0} Ajday|

alow aq Aew } jey) Buysabbns pue ‘Ajjiqixays Joyealb palayo 3 buleasy ‘g uondQ 03 aiow papud} dnoub ayj uo Ajuouiw v
‘pawlu0D Ajljigepioye pue padojanap

sI yoeoludde Ayjjeooj Japim ay) ‘sainjew Ajjus ay) se pajuswajduwil

Kjaaissaabouad aq pjnoo asay) - 1509 [enuajod pue Auxajdwoo

USRS uoneuswsa|dwi Jo swid) ul sayods, |eoo] Bunuawajdwi Jo Ajljigises)

e 1 K e 3y} 1n0ge SUJBdU0D BWOoS alam aiay) JoaAamoH “(Ajjeuoneu pue) Ajunod
e 1 ~ == () oo ay} ul sjuswdojaaap Ajo)I| Ylim JUd)SISUOD SI YdIym ‘|[9ABI] JO UOIIOBIIP
S e = E PN paliajaid 8y} Se SN0} SaI}I|EJ0| B U0 SNSUSSU0D sem a1ay) Ajlenbg

® 201770 ¥orq pue SSSI IsTeads .
(&= @ Awug s3ury ‘seIpoq Bunixa uodn joedwi Jo

N ayodg dNH E o
N sy ° soalbap Bulhien yum uonelbajul jo sadA) Juaiayip 109|181 Aew ey sjgpow
e Iv\\:j_l o0 7 [euoneisuebio SNOLIBA 8Je 8lay| °"S92Jn0Sal [euolippe pue Buipuny JaAd) 0}

. s - g

L |ennuajod ay) sesiWIXew jey) Aem e ui jI 81njonJ)s 0} pasu 8y} pue (paAowal

ale sjuswals Jopinoid SSS | allyspiojaisH JI) suonesiueBio Josseospald

% ay) Jo AJjIgeIA 8Y) pepnjoul 8say| ‘passalppe aq 0} sanssi jueoyiubis
aloM a1ay) Jey) pasiubooas sem )| "dnols) BupIop) 8Y) JO Siequisw ||e jou

INg ‘1sow 0] ajqessjaid sem g uondQ jey) sem Bunesw ay) Jo asuss ay |

"(MaIA 10}08S pue SJH djeledas e jJou Sem a1ay}) Saul| Jey} J0}0aS UO SPIAIP JOU PIP UOISSNISIP Pajou 8q pinoys i

ybnoyjje ‘snsussuod Jeajd e yoeal jou pip dnolg) Bunpiop) 8yl (g pue g) suondo om) uo snooy 0} papual dnois) BuiyIop) 8y L
"4}0q Jo syyduaq ay) Buiuiquiod o} anp ‘¢ pue | suondQ 0} ajqelsseld

paJapisuod sem siy] ‘(enoge g uondQ a98s) aouasaid |B20] swos yum Alius ajbuls e Buluiquiod ‘paijjuapl Sem uoijdo mau Ye
"pPaJaAlap 8q p|Nom anjeA eJixa a3l ey} pasiubooal

sem Jl pue ‘sQ14 [le Aq pawodjam aq pjnom yoeolidde ay) Jey} Jesjoun Sem Ji ‘ISASMOH "SadIAles paleys ybnouy) sbuines
1S0D 0S puE ‘9[BIS JO SBILOU0Id SWOS J9JJO PINOM 8say} Jey} pasiubodal Sem )| "pajunoosip aq pinoys g¢ pue e ¢ suondQe

:Jey) pealbe sem )l malnal 1si) ay) Buimojjo4 “suondo sy patepisuod dnolo) Buop) YSSSI 9yl

MBIAIBAQ :SUOISN[OUO)

158



UOINISOd JudJin) 8y} JO SISAjeuy :Z uoIj08S

uojuioy] ey @




01

(200z Atenuep ‘Aoue)nsuo) uieisng) ,8JIYSIS)Sa2I0 NN PUB 1IYSPIOJaIaH Ul 10308s Alunwiwiod pue AlejunjoA ay) Buinjep,, .

"9} J88JUN|OA
JO anjeA ay} sapn|oxa SIYy] “uoljjiw
| L3 uo uolbal ayy ui si paljdal

OYM 8S0U} 10} J8A0UIN] BY] ‘suln)al
Aanins spaoau ay) bunejodenx]

'/00Z Ul ,Uol|iw G683 Jo uoiBai auy)
ul sem AJunod ayj Ul JoAouIn} 0.

‘oz 1.2 Ai@lewixoidde

Jo aziIs s|dwes e pajesouab
AaAins spasau ay) sajealpul

SIY] ‘JUBISUOD paulewal aAey
sioqwinu 014 bulwnssy *,./002

ul AjJunod ay) ul bunelado sO74
00G‘| 10 uoibal ay] ul o1om 1oy .

'}J9| 8y} 0} d|qe} ay) Jad se
pasliobaleo Jjos ‘AaAins spasu ay)
0] sjuapuodsal | Z$ alom alay] e

:SUoIeAIasSqQO

-ordrourxd awres ay) SMO[[OJ UWN[OD 9, Y, "SALI0393eD JO s9dA) JUaIdIJIp

Jo 18101 9y Judsaxdar Jou seop pue ‘syudpuodsal Jo JoquInu [8)0} AY) 03 SAIB[I 9[qE) dA0qE
o} Ul [€30) 9} 0S ‘A1039380 JO 9dA) oUO UBY) 2I10W PIJBIIPUL SJUIPUOASaT AOAINS SWIOS :9JON

(0107 Toquaydog ‘SdH) AoAIng SpaaN S91AIAS oddng 10309G paIy ], :99IM0S

TCE syuapuodsas Adains |ejo]

ST paJamsue J0N

90¢€ |e30 L
14 (47 19410
TT 15 dnou3d Aqqoy/|e1dos
T Z uoI1eID0SSY 3UISNOH
ST LY 840 diyssaquiain
L (44 P3l 495N
rd 9 uoilesiuedio diysisulied
1 ¥ 340 jJuswdo|anap/dnoJs ejjaiquin
9 LT 9s1udualua |e1nos
9 0T asludualua/ssaulsng Aylunwwo)
T € aAneladn-0)
€€ 10T uonesiuedio Allunwwo)
9¢ ITT uoilesiuediQ Asejun|op
S G9T Avieyd

% ‘ON

aJlyspJojaleH ul sO14

160



) ‘alnjn} 8y} Ul 8q 0} paau Aay} alaym pue ‘mou
ale Aay} alaym Jnoge suoisnjouoo yoeal pue ‘SSS | osAjeue 0} a|gejieAe si se siseq e poob se sapinoud
alojalay) )| "euldseq a|qejieAe bunsixa-ald Aue uey) Jayou ase yydap pue adoos s)l Inqg ‘8}9|dwod jou SI

aseq 9ouapIAS 8y ‘papuni si Siy} moy pue ‘woym Aq papiroid Ajjualind si jeym Jo 8ouUspiAse sajelodiooul
alojalay) pue ‘uoisinoid SSS ] JO JuswAojdap pue [8A8] JualINd By} S}O9|al OSs|e AjlIesSSadau aouUspIAS ay |

‘aA0Qe
pajou saliobajes uaaas ||n} ay) Jdope jou pip sisAjeue buiddew ayj jey) pajou aq p|noys i Ing ‘saliobajed
9soy) ssotoe SSS| ‘Jo Alddns pue ‘1o puewap ay) Je SH00| 810ja1ay} pue ‘pa| Spasu S| 9seq a0UspIAe ay |

‘(f xipuaddy o9s)
S90IAIBS paleys :Alobajed Jayuny e 0} paalbe dnois Bupop) ¥SSSL 8yl MaIAaI INOo JO 8SIn02 8y} buung
uswdojansp Aoljod pue yoseasal .
pue abelayo.iq pue buipjing diysiouped .
a2I0A Buluayjbuans .
juswdojensp pue buluies| .
aouejsisse |eonoeld .
|eaiuyoa) pue |eba| .
uoddns juswdojaAsp .
:SMO||0} SBe SSS] SoslI0ba)ed 8ouapIAs JO SWId) JINO

"SPaduU SSS | aininy JO MaIASI J18Y} JO s)nsal ayj Jno Buipas ‘1aded sjesedss e papinoid osje sOQST XIS YL
"SSS1 Uo SdH Aq pue sOS XIs a8y} Aq 1no palues Aaains Buiddew aoinles B .

pue ‘syuspuodsal |ZE a1am alay] Yolym 0} ‘SdH AQ pe1onpuod ‘sOT4 JO ASAINS Spesu SadIAeS B«
:9]OM 9S8 | "USYBUSPUN 8JoM SBSIDIaxXe YoJeasal OM] ‘MaIAaJ SIY) J0) 8Seq aouspIAe ue apiaoid o]

yoleasay

161



4! (0107 Toquaydog ‘SdH) AoAIng SpaaN S91AIAS oddng 10309G paIy ], :99IM0S

Aaljogd Auipng an0n wawdojasag AIUBISISEY [ERIPIRETN yoddng
puE Ylleasay diysiauped Auuayifuans B BUlUlEa |eanaeld pue |efia] wawdojasag

swapuodsal Jo o,

uonaejsnes O

dn-axe] m

uonaeisnes pue dn-ayey 221138

"ybiy
S| Wayj Yum uonoejsiies Ing ‘moj st SO714 Aq seoialas jo dn ayel ay|

S|oA8T uonoejsnes pue SSS | Jo dn eye|

162



€l

(0107 Toquaydog ‘SdH) AoAIng SpaaN S91AIAS oddng 10309G paIy ], :99IM0S
sasuosidal Jo BguInN

09 0t 0z 0 0z- Or- na-

0s- nat-

PN oM

ipapasau a3lalas 3yl 5|

'sO714 Aq papasu buiaq

Se U9aSs JOU aJe Sa2IAIas ay)] ‘Juswow ay) Je ‘esneoaq Ajab.e| sieadde siy |

S92IAISS 10} pasu ay |

163



y1 (0107 Toquaydog ‘SdH) AoAIng SpaaN S91AIAS oddng 10309G paIy ], :99IM0S

m\mmmg ®>OO sasuodsas jo %
_NO_C_QNL @O@@ %0¥ %0€ %0C %0T %0
__3“_. mL@F\_H. w_ ° Jej 001 S} pue mLme>“tho_w_ 3|ge|leAe 10U si ]
N.\®>_H.O®t® So)ey } sawn ayl pJojje 1 ue)
HC@Ewwmwwm W—Ummc w_ * SI vcmwm“um;au:uwommrwhwow_MM_H__m%umM“uo:tm 1,ue)
0—U®>OLQE_ mﬁ_ Spaau 1no suj 1eyl Suiylhue puiy i,ued
Aew uoneoiuNWwo? « SIGEieNE 1 1M MOLY 30
.wCO_HmEQwQO m.toa_n_:m w_h_ﬁmw ul mL_m_n_o:_ ho.ﬂm_tma ulew ayj aJe ley M\

‘9AI]08jeul Buleg puewap 0} Bulpes| ‘ew} pue Asuow
‘AlljIgelins ‘uonewJlojul JO ¥oe| Jo asnedaq aq Med ul Aew sIy] ‘JoASMOH

puewsap 0} sialleg

164



Sl (0107 quardag ‘SdH) A9AIng SPAIN S99TAIOG oddng 10109G PaIy [, 19910

.&N_\/
4 &>
4 &vév .@%u,umu &&0/ ey A%u) &
2® oF & & & & .mmwmm-
& @ o & & & &
o @ o & o o8 &
W & & < & e of
_ - 0
- 0Z
- 0t
paaulaiun g
pasulaiym
- 09
- 08
- 0ol
Zlaw Bulaq paau ay) s| sasuodsal Jo 5,

JueoIIUBIS [|11S SI puBwWASp }JBwun jo AjJoulw
ay) Ing ‘18w sI puewsp Jo Auolew ay) ‘dn-ae) JO |9A8] SIY) e ‘alojalay |

slaw bulaq puewap S|

165



91

(0107 Toquaydog ‘SdH) AoAIng SpaaN S91AIAS oddng 10309G paIy ], :99IM0S

sasuodsal Jo o,
na 0z ] ns OF 0E 0z 0l ]

BIUEISISSY [BIIEld

yoddns awdoaaag

Aa1104 puUE Yueasay

[ealuyaa) pue [efaT

alop Buinagibuans

awdojasa] g AuiLiea™

p=22U J2uun 21nin4d
‘M0Jb 0] S04 Jo Aloeded ayj bBuljers
‘lewun aq p|nod puewap Jo Alliolew ay) swi) sieaAk om) ul pue ‘ainin)
Ay} ul asealoul 0] pajedioljue S puewap JBwun JO |9A3] SIY] ‘JOASMOH

puewap jawun ainyn4

166



L1
BuluolSSIWWOD

pPassSno0) awo9)no ‘eleuoiuodold pue Bululjwealls ybnoayl buyiom juiol 1apedge.
1X8]U09
Aoljod Buibueyo e 0] Buipuodsal pue ‘snooj Ajljeoo| e punode Buideysal ul Ajjibe buisealoul.

‘S1S00 921JJ0 Yoeq pue peaylano bulsiwiuiw Aq Aouaidljd wnwixeuw.
:o)]eJISUOWap 0} 9ARY [|IM suolesiueblo 10)0as pliy) pue ajeaud

‘01lgnd "uolisinod passnooy) Ajjeoo) ‘Auiouooa paxiw ul 8|0l Buisealoul ue yym ‘suolesiueblo
aslidiajua |e1oos pue Ajlunwwod ‘Aiejun|oA 1oj) 8|0l Aay e 1sabbns Aoljod |euonjeu pue |eo07

‘epuabe Aja100g Big ay)
0] pue uoisinoid ao1Al8s a1jgnd ul sebueyo sy} 0} puodsal 0] a|ge ale suolesiueblo A}a100s
IAID YdIym 0} Jusixa 8y} jiwi| Aew )i ‘Ajopim 810 "SO14 pue sOdST ‘SdH uo yoedw [im siyL

‘obueyd jou saop paplrold sI SSS|

Aem ay) I ‘U yum moub 0] pejoadxa 8q Ued UOISIAOId YjIM UOljoB)SIIBSSIP ‘S0P )l JI pue ‘Molb
|IM PBaU jaWun JO [9A8] 8} 1By} S8]e2Ipul SIY] ‘dwli} sieak om] ul aAey |Im Aay) jey) 10adxs
A8y} 1ng mou spaau jueoliubis aAey jou Aew sQOT4 ‘84niny 8y} Ul 0S 8q p|nod } Ingq — JdW
Bulaq ale spaau paAlgdlad Jo Aluolew ay) — wsjqo.id juedliubis e Jou SI SIy) Juswow ay) Iy

*Jeajoun sI S04 O AluNwIwoD JapIMm a8y} 0] 9dUBA9|al
J1ay) 1nq ‘Addey Ajpeouq ale sadlAIas ay) asn oym asoy) 1ey) sisebbns ejep AaAins spasu ay |

Spaau ainin4

167



3 (0107 Toquandog ‘SdH) A9AINg SpaaN S991AIAS Joddng 10309G paIy ] :99IN0S

e
R g
o & P &
&@m. oy n,wv =y i
i o S N & W S nnu@
7 &
£ & & F F o F @ &
TH TN ] - _ B
-0l
- 0Z
- 0g -
=1
- 0F M
2
- 0% W
- 2
b
- 09
uonaelsies 0O L
- — H - 02
uogenauadm — - - 08

uonILJSIIES pUE UonellBUSd

"'SO74 Paljsiies uou Jo palsies 0] Jayjaym ‘uoisinoid ay) jo Asuow oy

an|eA aAle|al Jo swud) ul sisAjeue Jiwiad Jou S8op ABAIns 8y "uonoejsnessip Jueolubls ns
s1 8lay) Ing ‘poob sI uonoejsines "AsAins ay) o) paljdal oym asoy) uo paseq ‘Ajopim saliea
puewsap Bunesw 0) Yyoes Jo UoNNQLIUOD 8y | "SY00|d ulew us) ul pakojdep Apualind si SSS|

uoisinodd SSS | YlIM Uoioejsijes pue Jo uoleliausd

168



61 (0107 12q0300 pue 1queldog ‘SIH) soo1a10g oddng 10300g pary [, Jo Surddeyy :001nog

"9|eoas Jable| e uo way)

ayeusapun 0} SSew |eo10 J0 Ayoedeo si a1ay) ey} Jeajd Jou SI )l ‘SaljIAIo. JuBAd|al JO UolINguISIp ay}
SMOYS aA0qge 9|gel 8yl a|IyM "%0¢ pue G| Ajejewixoidde usamiaq sl SSSI Jo ayeldn ay) pue ‘moj
s| dn aye) siyj abelaAe uo Ing ‘salleA SSS | Jo dn aye) ay; ‘sepls buipadalid ayy Agq paisabbns sy

"2U09 aouel||y

aby divAD ayl SAADH 40 VAH Kanoy

‘MOJ8( ]NO }8S SE Sal}IAljoe
JO uonnguisip ay} paynuapl Asains buiddew ay | "maiaal siy) Jo adoos ayy uil siapinold Aq uayeuspun
ale YoIym JO Jsow ‘sallinljoe Jo abuel peouq e BIA SI }aw Ajjualind ale spaau asay) Yoiym ul Aem ay] .

Spaau }98W 0] AJIANOY

169



(0107 1290300 sOAST) 1oded

0¢ ASSSSL 2 (010Z 1290300 pue 1oquaideg ‘SdH) s991a410G 3oddng 10309Q pary 1, Jo Surddeyy :s90mog
‘Aanins
Sspaau ayj ul payiuapl uoisinoid SSS ] Jo sauobaies ay) 01 subie Buipuny ayy moy jielep Aue ul Ajyuapl Jouued app (o
AdAD UIYypm sadINBS
papualx3g pue siea A Alle3 Jo ainjoniisal oy} Buimoj|o) ¥8zZ3F 1O uononpal e adey ||IM SSS | paJaalap Ajpoalip SdH (9
‘1yo ubis ainbal

sainBly QTVAD ey SJoN ‘puads SSS1 WSZ6' L3 10} dU) Jo wipe| L3 Ajejewixoidde puny aiojelayl SdH 7293 s! puads
1991Ip SAH 0913 S[e10) Bulpuny SdH U2IUM JO ‘WILGZ L3 SI LL/0L0Z Ul SOQST XIS 8U} JO SWoouUl SSS| 1Se0a10) [ejo] (e
ouno ”wwﬂoz
ussouo) aby awAD souel|y SMOH 1sd14 Apunwwon VAH Q:__.meemm_._

T — D . . -0

r 000'00}

r 000°002

r 000'00€

r 000°00%

r 000°'00S

uonnquiuoy SdH @
r 000°009

Joy0 0
r 000°00L

- 000°008

‘SdH S! Jepuny pue Japiaoid uiew ay) ‘1ansmoH “a)eiausb o) a|qe ale adoos ul asoy)
yolym abeians| ay) seop Se ‘Ajopim SalieA SalliAloe 8say) Jo Buipunj JO 821N0S pue 1S00 8y |

Buipun4 JO S82JN0S

170



Ic

alWlI} JOAO paonpal aq alojalay) Aew AJAnoe SSS| JO 1SOD [B)0) BY)
‘PajiLII sw
A|Buisealoul aq ||Im s8ainosal Bunisixa jey) pue ‘spuny jeuonippe abelaas| 03 Ajljige paoanpal 8q |Im
alay) Jey} swnsse 0} 9|qeuoseal a10ja1ay) SI }| “SJUIBJISUOD 821N0Sal Buisealoul Japun SaA|9SWay)
ale YdoIym sa24nos Buipuny woulj sajeulblio pue pajiwi-awl} si buipuny pabeiaAs| ayj Jo yonw .
uonessuad 19)ew ul sdeb Jusnbasuod pue ‘uoisinoid ul sdeb ajgissod ale alay) .
uonesduad
19yJew Jo oe| Juanbasuoo pue Bulpuelq Jood ‘uonieslidnp 03 Spes| Uolijeulplo-09 JO Yoe| SIY}
Hoddns jsieioads 10 }sijesauab JO UOIBUIPIO-0D ||BJSBAO OU S| 848y}
SdH pue sOS 9y} ssouoe papiaodd st pyoddns siyy .
Hoddns jsieioads pue jsijesauab JO Xiw e S| 848y}
seale Je|nolued
uo Joddns Jo joedwi 8y} pasealoul sey uoisinoid Jo Ajoloads Jejealb pue uoneosidiinw ayy .

"'sabueyo Buiwooyuoy ayj Jo 1oedwl 8y} Jo ‘S82IAISS JUBLIND
3] JO 8duUBA8|al BY) pueisiapun 0} }oA aney SOT4 Se paau jawun aq Aew alay} pue ‘moj siI abesn
INg ‘wWay} asn jey} asoy) Jo spasu ay) bunsaw Ajjessusb aie sOQST pue SdH eyl sisebbns ejep ayy .
"(AeAins 8y} Ul papn|oul JoU SEM BWi} J83JUN|OA JO anjeA ay}) AeAIng spasaN 8y} 0} papuodsal
oym sO714 8y} JO JeAoulny [B10}) 8Y) JO 9% 0Z Inoge sjuasaldal uoisinoid SSS ] JO 1S0D Jualind 8y} e
Jey] ale asay| ‘JuswAojdep
S} JO SONISIIa}oBIBYD UIBLSD SUIWIB}ap 0] S MOj|e ‘JaAamoy ‘saop 3| "AlIAoe SSS| JO Seale ulew UBASS
3y} 0} }S02 8)nqLiIe 0} SN MOj|e Jou saop Ajjeloueul) ajelado sOQST 9yl pue SdH yaiym ul Aem ayy ybnoyyy

JuswAo|dep SSS | JuaLIND JO SonsLB)oeIRY)

171



72 (010T 990100 ‘SOAST) 10ded YSSSS.L 190108

Jeaj

v1-€102 €1-¢102 ¢l-1102 L1-01L0¢

0

000°00S

000°000°}

pr]

000°00G°}

000°000°C

000°006°'C

'SOAST @Y} Aq pasanaijep Buleq
asoy} 1o SdH Aq papinoad Ajjoalip Jaylide saoIAIas 10} Bulpuny SSS 1 UMOUY [|e S108)j8] Mojaq 8|ge)} 8y

"umouyun Ajjualing si buipunj sy Jo
S|9A8| 8Y} INg ‘S82IN0S JBY)0 WO} SOAST Aq painoas Buipuny ul uononpal e aq 0} A|9yI| 0s|e sI a1ay ]

"MaINSY Buipuadg juswuianob Jusoal ay) Buimo|o) ‘v 1-€102 Aq %z Aq @onpad |[Im 11 1ey)
pajedionue sijl ‘pawIU0D Uda( Jou sey Buipunj S4H 81NNy JO [9A3] BUY ISIIUM ¥ L/€1L0Z 03} ybnouy)
Ajdseys 10e13u00 03 A|y1| sI JuswAoldap jJualind ayj jey) sisebbns ajyjold Buloinosal Juadnd ay |

SMO[} Buipunj ainin4

172



£€C

'€1/210z 40} papes aq Bujjjeystew Jidy) Jo [1ejap ay} pue ‘Zl/| 10z 40} 9oe|d ul 8q
p|noys juswAo|dap ay} 01 sabueyo |aAs| 01698]el}S WNWIUIW 3y} 1Y "1oW aq 0} S| puewap aininj
JI ‘pojusws|dwl 8Qq UOOS }SNW alojalay) pue Juedliubls aq 0} Aj@y| SI pepaau abueyod Jo a|eos
ay] -abueyo 0] paau |Im palojdep s SSS I yoiym ybnoayy suonesiuebio ayp jeyl salidwi siy|
paJaAljap pue padojaAap aq 0} o|ge aJe poddns Jo S[opowl }S0O JOMO| ‘Mau  —
molb pue abueyo spasu se aAlsuodsal-}oyiew alow apew si JuswAhojdep ayy —
alelidosdde se pasiubooal sI AlaAllBp 92IAI8S
JOo uonnjoAap ey buisiuboosal is|iym quawAojdap ay) Jo 1no uaye) st uoneoldnp —
panoidwi si JuswAojdep ayi jo Alanonposd —
uaAlp-Aluoud si JuswAojdep ay) BulAjlapun sjeuonel oibajes)s ayy —
‘1eYy) os abueyo 0] paau ||Im JuswAhojdep Bunsixe
ay) peailsu| ‘a|qissod aq ||IM puewap Buisealoul }Joaw 0} JuswAojdap SSS | Bunsixa moub
0] $824N0Sal JO |9A8] 8y} Buisealoul jey) Aj@yIjun si 1l ‘SjuleliSuod 821nosal Buisealoul USAID
‘uolonpal 11o1ap pue A18100g Big ay) Jo sabua|eyo uim] ay) 19aw
0] Auessaoau wioje|d ay) apiaoid Jou Aew S82IAI8S 9S8y | "ulenaoun S| Alljigeule}sns W)
Jabuo| s}l pue spaau ainjn} 0} puodsal 0] 8|ge aq jou Aew SSS| 1Byl PapNOUOD PINOM SAN

Spaau ainjnj bunas|y

173



(010Z 1290100 ‘@210 18UIge)) ,suonesiuebio A}a100s [IAID 8Uljjuol) J0}
yz  Moddns Buinoidwi uo uoneyNsuod A38100S [IAID 10} 8210 Uy :A181008 |IA1D Jabuosig e buioddng,, ,

"suoljesiueblo Jo Jabiaw 10 uoneloqge||oo BuiajoAul 8bueyd poddns 0} Bulpuny ¥o0jun pjNo2 ‘paplosp
uondo ay) uo Buipuadep pue ‘)i 1ey| ‘MaIA3J SIY] JO SWUS) 8Y) YIM BUI| Ul SI ‘J8qWIBAON dje| ul payslignd
aQ 0} J/Ig WSI|ed07] pue uonesIejjusd9 8y} Jo Juajuod pajedidljue ay) sapnjoul Yoiym ‘ainioid jeuoneu ay |
"S$82IAI8S 2lignd Bulpinold suonesiueblio

J0)08s pJiy} Joddns 0} pajeald aq |IM pun4 uonisuel] wOQL3 e pue ‘Bulpjing Ayoededs Jojoss pJiyj woddns
0] a|ge|leAe apew aq ||IM pollad MalAal 8y} JOA0 W(/yF PaWIJU0D 18qo100 OZ JO Malnay bBulpuadg ay |

"sdnoJb auljjuol) poddns 0} 10 suUIjjUOI) BY} 0} SBOIAISS
Jo Ayijenb paaoidwi Bunebuey 1o poddns Ajuoyine [Boo] panuiuod yym sueld Jo uoneinbijuooas ayj 4o sueld
paalbe A||eoo) Jo Jed si uonoe ay) aiaym - uoleloge||oo jenueisqns Jo Jabisw juswa|dwi 0} ainjonJiseljul
a|geus 03 sjuelb uonepIjoSuUod pajiwij-awI} 8q P|N0I alay), 1ey} s|eubls 0s|e Juswnoop Uolje}NSuU0d ay |
‘Adoayiue|iyd pue Bussjunjoa Buljgeus pue buibeinoous :uoijoe je1vos Buijowold .
"s92IAJIBS 211gnd Ayienb ybiy Jayo 03 8yodwod
0] S8Ip0( 10}J08s d)eAld pue J0}0ss PJIy} 8|geus |[IM SwJoal Juswulanob :saaiaias alignd dn Bujuadp .

‘eale Jlay] adeys pue
suolsIoap aye) 0} Jamod alow Buiaey spooytnoqybiau pue sjiounod |Boo| :saijlunwwod butamodwg .

-epuabe Aoljod A1e100g Big ayj Jo sjusuodwod sauy) Buimo||o) 8y} JN0 S}8S 0S|e Juswnoop ay |

abueyo poddns 03 suonesiuebio suljjuol) 0} Joddns j084Iq .

2INjoNnJjSeljul JO UOISIACId pasijeuoney e

S10}J08s Sso.oe

pue suonesiuebio usamiaq poddns Buuojusw pue ouoq oud ‘18ad 0} Jead Jo abelsyoiq |Bo0| Japag .

A181208 |IA1D 10} 9210 8y} Aq pajeyjioey Ajgissod ‘Woddns auljuo jo uoisianoid dn paulol 1o
:9pN[OUl JUBWNJOP 83U} Ul JNO }8S SaIIIOLI "S82IAI8S O[T 40} Woddns [euoijeu
ainjnj uo ,BulyNSuOd S| JUBWUIBAOS) UOII[BOD) BY) pUB | LOZ YdJelN ul pus |im Buipuny siapjingAyioede)

a.njoid jeuoneu buibuey)n

174



Y4

'0710C 100300 pue Ioqurajdeg ‘UoTE)NSUOD JOP[OYNLIS 190IN0S

< Wkusyo
9y} Je Sajiq alow, dABY OM - PaSSad0e
aq ueod Buipunj Jo $82IN0S JuBJBKIP ",

. 'sbuipiing Anunwwod se yans ‘Aieniep

paseys Jo sejdwexa poob ale alay} -, . Ur-Ang Ayunwwiod Buouis sey

11 0s ‘Ajeaiueblo padojensp sey [opow 8y},

—

."slopinoid SSS1 Jaylo pue S4H Usamiaq
Bunyiom diysieured poob s aiayl

. "8lIYSpIojaIeH Ul
Buneajunjoa Joy Aysuadoid ybiy e si asayy -,

N~

« "S|qe|ieAe
Hoddns Jsieioeds pajferep sl 8iauy . "suolesiueBIo aul| Juos ajesedsip
puR 8SI9AIp Loddns 0} aJIsap B Sl alay) ",

“*syibualls S)i sey [opow Jualind ay |

175



9¢

'0710C 100300 pue Ioqurajdeg ‘UoTE)NSUOD JOP[OYNLIS 190IN0S

. "slepinoad Juasayip
9y} UaM]eq SeIBLBIUI PUB SBlIBpuUnoq
ay) Buibeurw 011500 B Sl BIBY) ",

. uoisinoid

90IM8s Ul sdeb aq 0} Wwass alay} . "parealdwod Apano swess dn

18S JUaLIND 8y} OS :|[ews S| 8JIYsplojeiaH ",

—

. *Way Jo Aue peas 0} auil) 8y} 8ARY
1,UOp pue siens|smau ajdninw sAigd8l |,

N~

«"dn pauiol
9I0W 8 0} Pa8U SIBPIACID JuBLNd By} ™,

. 'siapinoid
Juaayip Aq papinoid si 80IAISS BUIES BU) ",

. Iajo
uo aJe s8dIAIes Joddns Jeym mouy J,uop |,

abueyo o} pasu sbuiy) Aym jJo ssjdwexs swos Inq"

176



LT

"UOIJ08S ]X8U 8y} Ul }n0 18s SI siy| ‘|esieldde siyj 10} siseq ay} se
ylomawel} uonenjeAs ue paalbe pue ‘asieidde 0} suondo Jo sallas e paalbe dnois) BuIop) ¥SSSL 9yl

"ybu 11106 0] peau am Ing ‘Allunuoddo ue S| MaIABI SIY} .

ley)
pue:*-AjljIgeuleisns sjl JOAO SUI82UO0D ale a1y} Ing ‘Bullaajun|oA Jo plooal yoel) poob sey allysplojoloH
Buipuny Buunoas / Ajljiqeulelsns st sO14 40} Ajuoud .
so|diound saljieaso] mau sy} 0} ubie 0} spaau [apow ainjny ay} .

"}l uieysns 0} sAem Buipuly 0} ajqelsjaid aq Aew
uapJng SIYyj 8anpal 0] 1oYd pauaouod \y “A[jnjsseaonsun uayo ‘spuny oy Bulppig st sO14 404 Ajuoud e .
BuIsSnjuoo SUOEJIUNWWOD pue SallIAoe JO uoneoldnp ay) puly SQ14d -«
pauoddns ale saiunwwod 8SIBAIp ainsus pue ,pajoold [eins, 8q 0} SPaauU |9pow ainjny ay} .
pBuiyewosg Jo LUog auQ, 99 0} spaau aioy} 9albe sOQS] -

(939 ‘uoneoldnp jo
|[BAOWSJ ‘UOIJEPOLILLIOIJ. ‘9210 Yoeq paJeys) bujiom paroidwl BIA apew 8 O} SaIdUaIdIYd aJe alay] .
panolJdwi 8q p|nOYs pue ued [9pOoW JuUalind 8y} .
121y} punoy Yolym uoieynsuod Japjoyayels Jno ul paoyos usaq sey abueyo 1o) pasau Siy|

saway) Ay - UoII_)INSUOD Jap|oyayels

177



Juswdo|ana(
suondp pue yiomaweld uoljen|eAs ay| € uoljoas

uojuioy] ey @




6T

"$8JNJoNJIS 8S8y) Uo pajuasaldal Jou ale 8say) INg ‘SMBIA 10)J08S pue 92I0A J0)08s a|buls e
se yons ‘suonouny juepodwi Jaylo ale alay) ey} asiubooal ap) sdiysuone|al BuiuoissILWwoo
a1eolpul uondo yoes Joj SUBYD 8I1N10NJ)S 8] U0 papnjoul SMoLJe ay) Jey) 8)ou ases|d

"SapI|S BUIMO||0] 8Y) UO INO 18S aJe suoldo pue yJomawel) uonenjeas paaibe ay|

‘sdoysyiom abuajjeyo om] ein dnolo Buiylop) 8yl Agq paalbe
sem ‘suondo mau om] Buipnjoul ‘suondo JO 1s1| Woys e pue ‘uojuioy| juels) Aq padojorsp sem
1s1] Buo| 8y -eienjeaa 0} suondo Jo 1sl| Buo| e passnasip os|e dnold BuJopl ¥YSSSL dyl

"SJUSWILLIOD JIBY) 108|1al 0) pajepdn
SEM ]I pue ‘jJomauwel) SIY) U0 PaYNSU02 aiam sOST 8y} Jo sliey) 891/ pue sliey) syl

‘Buli0os 0] yoeoludde ayy .
pue ‘els}ld uonenjeas .

1IN0 18S Jey) paalbe sem yIomawel) uolen|eAs
uy ‘AJeAljep SSS | a4ning Jo) suondo ay) a1enjeAs 0] paalbe dnols Buiydop) ¥YSSS] 9yl

uoIoNPOIU]

179



"opl|s Buimojjo) @as - (suonsanb el Jayjo Aq palanod jou ataym) sajdioulid anjea pappe sOdST @y sejetodiooul uonsanb siy]

guonejuswadwi poddns 0y isixe Ajjiqeded
pue Ayoeded ay) seop pue ‘ebueyod ay) si 9|qISea) MOH

Anqisesd

(stesn pus pue sO74 'sOAST ‘SdH)

;sloploysyels Aey yum 8|qipao uondo sy S| slapjoyaels Aay uo joedw) ysiy
£selousIole
aseajal pue Asuow Jo} anjeA Japaq Jaalsp uondo ay) seoq
¢algepJioye Asyy aie pue ‘uondo

ay] yim pajeioosse safbueyo Jo 1500 paljdwl ay) a1e Jeypn ¢, Kanljep aininy pue ‘eBueyo ; uonejusws|dul Jo 150D 180D

&A1uno9d ay) ssoloe 92IAI8S JO |[9A9] 9|geyinba ue apinoid
pue ‘10308s pJiy} 8y} Jo Alsianip ay) Joddns uondo ay) uen

2JIyspJojaloH Ul J0j08s pJiy) 8y} Jo AJsionp pue Ajjenbg

£J0J08S pJIy} 8y} Jo spasu ay} BuliaAldp uo snooy
pue ‘suone}oadxe ‘spasu ayj abeuew uondo ay} seoq

suonesiueblo 10j08s pJiy} JO suoiejoadxas pue spesu Sjes|

Ayjenb aoinleg

. ¢senuoud Buibueyo 1eaw 0} ybnouas s|qixa|}

S| pue quawdojanap s)i 0} 9)NqLIIUOD ‘A1BI00S |INID pue
saoIAIas 21ignd jo epuabe Buibiaws ayj jsuiebe JoAlap 0}
suonesiuebio 10)09s paiyy Joj yoddns snooy uondo syl seoq

*AJUnod 8y} ssouoe A)8100S [IAID pue
sa2IAJ8s 21|gnd Jo uonoauip d1bajel)s ay) suoddns pue siepisuo)

¢,s91diouud saeoo| Buipnjoul
‘S82IAIBS Joddns 10}08s Uiy} JO J8|geus pue Japuny
Jolew e se g4H Jo sanuoud ay) 198w uondo ay} seoQ

|opow AJoAlBp SdH UM Juswubily

¢ POAJOAUI
sa1poq ay) Jo aouspuadapul ay} sjosjjal Ajojeridoidde
pue sanued ||e Ag paumo si yoiym uonnjos e buipinoid
‘10j08s 8y} Jo suonuajul dibsiens ay) J@aw uoido ay} s8oQ

suonsanb pajeloossy

BIIBJIID UOISIDa(] MJOMBWEeld uonen|eAns

‘slop|oysyels AJunwiwod Jayjo pue 10joes
pJIy) 8J1ysp.ojeiaH Jo senjeA pue saibajels ay) Yum Juswubiy

Sjus WS BLIBJID

1 o1bejens

BlaD

180



e (0107 19903100 sOAST) #oded YSSSS.L 90108

10)08s 8y) Jo} dn yeads ued pue ‘0} payIWWOod aJe ‘puejsiapun

OUM S8]BO0APE pue siapes| Buipnjoul ‘diysiapes| Aunwiwiod BuIpIACide
Spaau J0)08s Buissalppe 1o} S82IAI8S ]sijelausb pue isijeoadg.

BuoO| pJemio) pue aAjoe-oid ‘@AlleAOUU]s

10108S 8U]) J0J S82IAISS JO AJljIgeuleisnS.

10108S 8y} YIIM UYono) Ul ‘Jels [NyIMs pue ajqesbpajmouy ‘|euoissajolds

Alunoo ay) ssouoe Aj1jeoao|
pue paau Ji1ay)] 0] buipiodoe suonesiueblo buiyoeal — a|gelinba pue aAISN[OU|e

9|qISSeooe AjISea pue 8|qixa|} ‘OAISuodsay s

:sa|diourid BuIMmOo||0) BY] YIIM JUB]ISISUOD

ale jey) ‘s82Jnosal g|gejieAe ay) 1o} sadiAlas poddns wnwiydo sy aoe|d

ul Ind 0] syeas Jey] sseoo.id abueyo e Jo Leay ayj e aq p|noys ,anjeA pappe,
1ey] Ajbuois analjeq sOST 9Ul ‘MalAal 8y} J0) 80UBI8)9Y JO Swid | ay) puokag

sa|dioulid anjeA psppy OdST

181



[43

"S9100S 9say) 0] paljdde aiem sbunybiom ou
0s ‘aouelodwi [enbs Jo aiam eLIB)LID uoljen|eAs |je eyl 384 dnoub Buiyiom ay |

Aljigeidaooe mo| Alea = |

Aljigeldeosoe mo| = ¢

Aljigeldaooe wnipaw = €

Ajigeydsooe yby = ¢

eL9)l0 ay) 0 Alljigerdasoe ybiy AleA sey uondo = G

:suoindo ay)
JO uonen|eAa |eniul a8y} ayeuapun 0} uojuioy| juels) Ag paesn sem yoiym ‘suondo
ay) buioos 0] yoeoudde Buimojjo) ay) pealbe dnoub Buijlop) ¥SSS] du L

yoeo.uddy Bulioog - yJomaweld uonen|eAnl

182



‘pajen|eAs aq pjnom suondo pajs||
-Joys 8y} yolym jsuiebe auljgseq sy} se pasn aq pjnoys onp) snjeig ay 1ey) ‘paalbe Jayun) Sem ji ‘JoASMOH ‘pajen|eAs
8 10U p|NoOYs 1l 1ey) yons sem ‘ebueyd Joj pasu ay) pue ‘[@pow Jualind 8yl U0 82UBPIAS 8U] ey }|8) Sem JI :810N

‘Aunnoe ssg ) Aue Buipuny sdoys SdH

Buipun4 sesea) SdH '/

"seale uoisinoid 82IAI8S 6 8U) JO yoes SSoJoe uolsiAoLd JO [aA8] awes ay) JoAlle(

|[apow sailjeoso| pasiadsiq-9

"S91}I|e20] UoIsinoid 82IAI8S Ul paseq saxods |[ews BIA qny 8y}
0] ssao2e Bulpinoid - poddns jsijeloads 0] ssaooe yum (siapinolad jualind Ag uoisinoid Jo
s|ang| Buibiaw) gny ajbuls e eIA |aA8] AJunod e e SSS | J0)08S SS04O dlIauab/al09 e JaAljeQg

|opow s81}i[e00
/ ®jods pue qnH ‘g

‘slapinoid Jo abuel e eia poddns isieioads uoISSIWWOD pue
‘81]ud0 B2IAIBS paleys SJH Ojul uoisinold SSS | Isiiesauab pue 8210 Myoeq ajelbajul SdH

uoisirold SSS | P82INoSINO
pue paoInos-ul paxip ‘¢

"8snoy-ul SdH Aq papuny Ajjuaind SSS || JaAlIdp 0} SdH Ulyim Ayoedeo pjing

SdH Aq paJsaijep
SSS1 padlnos-uj "¢

"sJapinoid [euoneu pue [euoibal ‘|eoo)
apn[oul ued siy] "SSS1 JeAlep 0} suonesiuebio Jojoes ajeAlld Buipnjoul sjueluS JayJew
MBU 8JIAUI pue SSS] Buipiaoid Joy uoniledwoo ajenNwis pue s}oeljuod SSS] ||e Jepusl-ay

pJeogq
SS1 9jbuis e el siapinoid
8|diyinw uoIssIWWo) ‘g

‘Anus o|buis e wo.y
‘SdH Aq pauoissiwwod 10 S4H Aq Apoalip papinoid YSSS | Bunsixa jo Buluoissiuwod |jn4

Japinoud
a|buls e uoIssIWwWo?) |

Jo3I1Ip SSS1
Buipinoid pue siapinoid 9 woly BuluoISSILIWOD SdH YIM ‘Ssi-se SSS | apinoid 0] anunuo)

uonduosap |aA9| ybiH

onb sne1s 0

suondo

:0102Z 1890190 / uo dnoub Bunjiom YSSS | 2yl Agq palapisuod sem suondo Jo 1si| Buimojjol ay |

suoljdo Jo 3sI| buoT

183



143
"G xipuaddy 1e pa)eoo| s suondo pajuNooSIp 8y} UO |IB)ap Jayun4 "sapl|s BuIMo||0) 8y} UO [Ie1ep 810w Ul 1NO }8s ale asay |

"SJUIBIISUOD

[eanoeud pue sajdioulid wisieao] Jo N0 3|0 Japim Bunoayjal ‘ejqissod yoeosdde paseyd

B pue ‘pauluislep aq 0] AISAIjSp |BOO| PUB |BJludd JO aouejeqg "S92IAISS ]sijelauab alow (uondo maN)
Ajlenuajod ‘uayjo Buipinoid sayods [e20] yum (seaiAies 1sijeloads awos Ajjennuajod pue 8210 alnjonJ)s sayods pue
oeq paJeys Buipnjoul) gny |esusd e yum Aus ojbuis e yum ‘4 pue | suondo Jo pugAy v gny yum Japinoid sjbuig ‘g

‘uondo Jayuny ay} paalbe dnolb Bujiom YSSS | ay) 19qoio0 LZ @Yl U0 malaal Jayuny Buimojjo4

"S81}I|BO0| UOISIN0Id B2IAISS Ul pase(q sa)ods ||ews eiA gny 8y}
0] ssao2e Bulpinoid - poddns jsijeloads 0] ssaooe yum (siapinolad jualind Ag uoisinoid Jo [9pOowW Sal}es0T
sjeng| buibiaw) gny ajbuis e eIA |aA8] AJuno) e e SSS | J10)08S SS0UO dlIauab/al090 e JaAle(g / @jods pue gnH ‘¥

‘slapinoid jo abuel e eiA yoddns s)sijeloads uoissiwwod pue ‘(Ajuo | uoisinold SSS | Pa2JnosINo

991440 )oBQq) 8J]Udd BIIAIBS paleys SJH Ol uoisiroid SS | dusuab/alod ajelbajul SHH pue padnos-ul paxi\ ‘qg
‘'sJapinoid
Jo abuel e eiA poddns sjsijeloads uoissiwwod pue ‘(Joddns 3sijesauab auij Juoldy pue | uoisirnold SSS | pPa2INOSINO
991440 )oBQq) 8J]Udd BIIAIBS paleys SJH Ol uoisiroid SS | dusuab/alod ajelbajul SHH pue padnos-ul paxi\ ‘eg
‘slopinoid |euoljeu pue |euoibal ‘|eoo| pJeog
apn[oul ued sIy| "SSSL JaAldp 0y suonesiueblo 10)0as ajeAud Buipnjoul sjuesjus jJaxlew | S 9jbuls e eia siapinoid
M3U 8}IAUI pue SSS] Buipinoad 1oy uoniadwod ajejnwiils pue sjoeljuod SSS| ||e Japud)-ay a|diyInw uoissIWWOoY g
‘(sJopinoid pauoissiwwod Bunsixa Jo |je Jo Jed Jo Jabisw ay)
Buipnjoul Ajlenuajod ‘ainjuana juiol e eiA ‘ajdwexa 1oy} ‘aq pjnod siyl) Aljus ajbuls e ein S4H Japinoud
pue siapinoid g Bunsixa ayy Ag papinoid Ajuaiind AlAnoe SSS| (e Jo Buluoissiuwo? |jn4 9|buIs e uoissIWwWOoY) |

uonduosap |aA9| ybiH suondo

‘21enjeAa 0} suondo Jo 1si] Buimoj|o} ayy 18qojo L uo paalbe dnoib Bunjiom YSSS 9yl

suondo Jo 1si| Hoys

184



st 10}J98Ss plIy} JO SAljejUSSaIdal JouU 8210A 8|BUIS «
AJuno9o ssouoe sadlIAIas apinoid 0} a|qeun
J0J08S PpJIY} 9SISAIP JO SPaaU }oaW 0} 9|qeu( «
S90IAI8s poddns jsijeloads pue snooy JO SSOT «
SOQS obJaw Ajjnyssaoons 0} ainjie.
aoualladxa pue abpajmouy ‘ieis Aay JO SSO| [ellua)od
sysl palduw|
‘spaau Buibueyo 0}
asuodsal Ul S82IAISS / SBaJe SSOIOB S90IN0Sal J0alIp-al 0} J9ISeT «
sjuswabueule Buiuodal pue Buluoissiwwod 19| dwiS «
uoISNJUO9 SS9| ‘sO14 Jo} doys dojs auo / julod ssadoe 9|buIg «
2JIySpJojaiaH Ul J0}o8s pJIy} JO 8910A 9jbuls aoueyug .
SaI10uUaIdIYd - ANAIIOE JO uoljedlldnp SAOWSY «
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw
uoneoldnp Jo |eAowal
pue suonouny pabiaw 0} anp s}s02 Buluuni wis) Buo| JoMO| BLUNSSY «
ueoliubis aq pjnod s)soo uonelbajul pue Jablispy «
~S)S09 paljdw|

~

odas1

ainjonis

¢49pINOIH w_mc_w

S80IAIBS paieys

Japinoud ajbuig

uswdojanap Aoijod pue yoieasay

Japinoud ajbuig

abelayolq
pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens

Japinoud ajbuig

o210/ Buiuayjbuans

Japinoud ajbuig

wswdojarap pue BuluieaT

Japinoud ajbuig

$80IN0S8. pUe 90UEB)SISSE [BoljoRId

Japinoud ajbuig

aouepinb pue
90IAPE ‘UoljewIolUl [eo1UyD8) B [eba

Japinoud ajbuig

Aq paJanleg

uoddns juswdojarag

uonoun4

"Japinoid pabisw
‘a]buls B BIA pauoISSIWIWO SI SOJST 9 @Yy woly
PaUOoISSIWIWOI 10 4SH Aq papinoid Ajjuaiind SSS] IV »
MBINIBAQ

Japinoud a|buls e uoissiwwo? |

185



9¢

szopraoxd 3ursrxd jo ed
JUBAJ[QI UTRJUOD KB

uoisiaoud

SSS1
funoos

18y30

SSS1 SdH

oasn (SdH yim
pareys

A1qissod)
ALLLNA MAN 20130 08q
uoisinoad

i
1 o[Surs
sssL |
211YSPIOJRISH | 0ds 1 0as
! DI
1
1

s1opraoad pagiow
Surpnpour ‘szopraoxd Surnsxa Jo [[e urejuod Aew

‘diysiaunied ainjus ) JUIOr B JO WJOo) 8y} 8ye) p|jnod ‘ejdwexs o}

‘Alus mau siy| "mojaq pajesisn||i Jayuny si Japiaold ajbuls ay) Jo wioy 8yl "sOasT bunsixs jo Jabiasw |nj e
0} 9je[aJ 0} 8AeY Jou saop Ajus / Jepinoad ajbuils ay} JO w0y 8y} 1ey} paynuapl dnois) Buop) ¥YSSSL 9yl

2JNjonJls Jo uonessn||i Jaypun4 1 uondo

186



LS pJeoq Buiuoissiwwod Buiuuni pue dn Bun}as Jo S}SOD [BUOHIPPY .

siepinoud Joy ,pjey Buikeld |ans), € 918810 0} Bunjied . 10p1a01d 9[Suls 0} $1500 UONORSURT) JO SUNUNYS J[QISSOJe
uoddns jo m_m>m_>mEmm 106 Jabuoj ou |im sanuoud mc_co_mm__(m_too aBuB JO $1S09 pPajWI.
SdH 0} uoinguUuoo AJBAlBp Sajeljsuowsp 0} d|ge Jou sQ4 saldw] «
sino/sbuines ayew 0} palsinbal aq 03 Ajy1] Buipun} SdHe S]S00 U@:QE_
(Ayjenb pue Buipuny) [gpow Jo AjJIjIgeuIB}SNS JI9AO SUISOUOD).
s||Ms Buluoissiwwod ajeldoidde jo yoeT .«
‘lenuajod ¢siopiroid oN / swos S90IAISS paleys
Aouaio1ys asijeal jou op - Asaalap ul depano pue uoieoldnp panupuo).
WV_WC U@:QE_ siopinoud jo sbuey Juswdojanap Aoljod pue yolesssy
S04 Jo sjuswalinbal yoddns 198w 0] AJjige suayjbuansg .« obeioyolq
uoisinoid jo Ajjenb aaoidwi [im uonnadwod pasealdoul SWNSSY . ssepinoid Jo abuey pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens
sanoud SqH suiebe Buluoissiwwoo
Uo SN20J Jales|d pue [gpow Buluoissiwwod S4H Bulusyjbuals sawnssy .« ssopinosd Jo sy 5010 BuluayIBUSAS

sJapinold usamieq
selIepunoq Jeajo / SOT4 40} 9910y pasealoul pue uoisiroid ul sdeb o «
S991AI8S Joddns JO [9AS] JUBLIND 0} uondniSIP PaYIWIT e siepinoud jo sbuey

uondo jo syysuaq paljduw

wswdojarap pue BuluieaT

slopinoud jo abuey $83Jn0sal pue aduelsisse |edljoeld

aouepinb pue
sJopinoid jo abuey 92IApPE ‘Uoijewlojul [ealuyos) ¥ _mmml_

(S19Y10 siapinoad jo abuey tOQQDw MCQEQO_®>®D

Aq patanileQ uonoun4

OUB [V UuI135U0))
By

SOI'I/SOAST "Jo)JeW JO uoiedwod djeNWIS «
"sSuoISIoap

_ Buluoissiwwoo jeuoielado ayew siaquiaw pleoge
‘pJeog Buiuoissiwwo) SSS | Aluno)

e 0] SdH Ag pauoissiwwo 10 papiroid Ajjualind
SSS 1 Bunsixe jo Buluoissiwuwoo d16a1e)s [jnge
ainpnns MBIAIDAQ

pJeoq a|buls e eiA siapinoid aidijjnw UuoISSIWWOY 7

_ pIeog SUIUOISSIUWO))

187



8¢

"S9OIAIBS JsI|eiouab / 8100 BWOS 10} 8seq AJIjed0| JO SSOT «
‘Ajoeded dojansp o) sjie} SdH -«
uoisiAoid Jualind 0} uondnisip |elu] e
S9OIAIBS ]sI|e1oads ul uoneoldnp panuijuoy) .
sysl palduw|
uoddns jsijelauab 10} 92UB||90Xd JO BJJUB)) «
*Alunoo ay) ssouoe Ajoeded
uoddns 03 ‘sQ74 01 uoisinold 82IAI8S paleys |eljuslod e
9OIAISS paJeys Wol) S8ILoU0d] «
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw
91ju8d 92IAIBS paJeys YsI|qe)se 0} S}S0O |eUOlIPPY e
S1S09 paljduw|

(SO
SOJIAIOS PaIeyS

ey SdH

Qoue Y

L

SSS.L ¥sierads SSSL ISI[E1oUaD)!
4

ainjonis

JapInOId w_mc_w

S80IAIBS paieys

slapinold jo abuey

uswdojanap Aoijod pue yoieasay

slapinold jo abuey

abelayolq
pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens

slapinold jo abuey

o210/ Buiuayjbuans

slapinold jo abuey

wswdojarap pue BuluieaT

slapinold jo abuey

$80IN0S8. pUe 90UEB)SISSE [BoljoRId

slapinold jo abuey

aouepinb pue
90IAPE ‘UoljewIolUl [eo1UyD8) B [eba

slapinold jo abuey

Aq paJanleg

uoddns juswdojarag

uonoun4

sOdsT pue sOT14

0] s89IAI8s Joddns 821440 ¥oeq apinoid SdH »

sOdsT

10 abuel eiA poddns jsije1oads UoISSIWIWOY «
"8J]Ud0 82IAIBS paleys d|buls e eiA
SSS1 ouduab / 10108S SS0ID 8409 SapIN0Id SdH .

MBIAIBAQ

SSS | P82JN0S-)N0 pue pPadInos-ul paxijp\ "es

188



6¢€
"S9OIAIBS JsI|eiouab / 8100 BWOS 10} 8seq AJIjed0| JO SSOT «

‘Aioedeo dojansp 0} sjie) SdH «

uoisiAoid Jualind 0} uondnisip |elu] e

S9OIAIBS ]sI|e1oads ul uoneoldnp panuijuoy) .

sysl palduw|

‘|]oAely JO uonoallp SdH 0} Juswubl|y .
*Alunoo ay) ssouoe Ajoeded
uoddns 03 ‘sQ74 01 uoisinold 82IAI8S paleys |eljuslod e
(poddns 1sijelauab paleys Buipnjoul
se jealb se Jou 1nQ) 92IAI8S paJleys Wolj SSILOU0IT «
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw

3J1Ud2 B82IAIBS paleys YsI|ge)sa 0} S1S00 |_uonlIppy e
S1S09 paljduw|

S19H0 (SPPO
SAJIAISS PaIeyS

ey SdH

Qoue Y

L

SSS.L ¥steadg % isijersuan

ainjonis

JapInOId w_mc_w

S80IAIBS paieys

slapinold jo abuey

uswdojanap Aoijod pue yoieasay

slapinold jo abuey

abelayolq
pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens

slapinold jo abuey

o210/ Buiuayjbuans

slapinold jo abuey

wswdojarap pue BuluieaT

slapinold jo abuey

$80IN0S8. pUe 90UEB)SISSE [BoljoRId

slapinold jo abuey

aouepinb pue
90IAPE ‘UoljewIolUl [eo1UyD8) B [eba

slapinold jo abuey

Aq paJanleg

uoddns juswdojarag

uonoun4

sOdsT pue sOT14

0] s89IAI8s Joddns 821440 ¥oeq apinoid SdH »

sOQs Jo abuel

eIA poddns jsijesauab pue isijeioads uoISSILWOY ).

MBIAIBAQ

SSS | P82JN0S-IN0 pue padInos-ul paxip ‘qe

189



oy

"sJallIeq Jay}o J0 [einynd 0} anp }noiyip uoisiaoid Buiblew puly sOQST »
sysl palduw|
‘abe1an0o apim AJunod pue asJIaAIp 10y |enualod SSIWIXB] «
'SO714 01 Aje[o pue ‘uoneoldnp Jo |[eAOWSY .
‘sa)s Aljeoao|
a|buis pue qny a|buis ul AjAoe pabiaw wol) S8ILoU0I] »
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw

's@y0ds pue gny Joj UolJBpOWWOID. 8)jeulId)|e JO ]SO0 |Beljudlod »
S1S09 paljduw|

dduer
SIIIAIRG HIv A

2130 4L
Joeq pue S A
SSSL steroads

\
AY

v SSSL am:ﬁunow*

aJnjonis

Japinoud oN / qnH

S80IAIBS paieys

sayods pue gqnH

uswdojanap Aoijod pue yoieasay

sayods pue gqnH

abelayolq
pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens

sayods pue gqnH

o210/ Buiuayjbuans

sayods pue gqnH

wswdojarap pue BuluieaT

sayods pue gqnH

$80IN0S8. pUe 90UEB)SISSE [BoljoRId

sayods pue gqnH

aouepinb pue
90IAPE ‘UoljewIolUl [eo1UyD8) B [eba

sayods pue gqnH

Aq paJanleg

uoddns juswdojarag

uonoun4

*Ajunod 8y} SSOJOB SB1}I|ed0| Ul apew

8q ueod uoisinoid Buunsus ‘[epow |eoiydeibosb

e sI siyl “,.gny, ayi wouj uoddns jesnusd

S$S920E URD say0dg °,sax0ds, J9||ews BIA Sal}I|ed0|
ul yoddns jsijesauab uoisinoid yum (sispinoid
1ua.Ind Aq uoisinoid Jo sjaas| buibisw) ,gny, ajbuls
BIA [9A8] AJun0d Je SSS 1sieloads / 8109 JBAIIB( «

MBIAIBAQ

|Jopow saijlje20] / @jods pue gnHy

190



1874
anH S92IAISS paleys
"sJallieq Jaylo Jo [ednynd 0} anp }naiyip uoisiaoid Buiblaw pull SOQST » g forod
sayods pue gnH Juswido|aABp AJ1j0a puke Yyoleasay
sysl palduw|
) abelayolq
abelanod apim AJUuNod pue 8SIBAIP 0} |ennualod SSIWIXE| e soods pue qniy pue Buipjing diysioupied oiBa1enS
'SO14 01 Aliejo pue ‘uonedidnp JO |eAOWDY
‘Anus o|buis BuluoISSIWIWOD WOol) pue ‘salis A}Ijeoo) soxods pue qnH 8010A Buluayibusng
a|buis pue qny a|buis ul AjAoe pabiaw wol) S8ILoU0I] »
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw sevods pue qnH Juswdojensp pue BuiutesT
's@y0ds pue gny 10} UolepOWWOII. d)euUId)|e JO 1S0D [Bljud}Od «
L WHWOO U@:QE_ soyods pue qnH $90.JN0sal pue aduejsisse |edljoeld
\\\.\ //,,/ aouepinb pue
\\\\ . ayodg ayodg . '//// seyods pue qnH B2IAPE ‘Uoljewloul [ed1uyoa) g [eba
\\ . . /,,
\\ ‘ ‘ . . ’/ wwv_oaw pue gnH tOQQ:W MCQEQO_®>®D
[ ] e a ¢ Aq pesentieq uopoun
i 901jJ0 3joBq pue SSS I IsIerads mQH \
\ A .
: o® P s S15 WS ; sjulessuod [eonoeld
. . pue sajdioulid wsijeoo) Jo 1n0 9]0J Japim Buijoayjjal
‘a|qissod yoeoludde paseyd e pue ‘paululis}ap
8q 0} AIaAIjop |BO0| pUE |BJjUSD JO doueleq «

"S9OINIBS
1sijesauab alow Ajjenualod ‘1ayjo Buipinoid sexods
[e00] yum (sao1Aes 1sijeloads awos Ajjenuajod pue

9011J0 Yoeq paJleys Buipnoul) gny |eJjuad e yim
Amua o|buis e yum ‘¢ pue | suondo Jo plLgAy v «
MBIAIBAQ

aJnjonis

|lopowl

Sal]I|eo0| / @ods pue gny Ylim Japinoid a|buls g

191



uoljenjeA suondQ 4 uonoasg

uojuioy] ey @




3%

"sapI|s Buimoj|o) 8y} Ul pauleluod sI eLIBILIO yoes jsuiebe suondwnsse BulAjJapun ay) uo |iejep Jayun4

€ g 9 14 A ONIMNVA

(Ajuo

¥ pue ayodg 0g) 924nos 92IN0S pleog Japinoid
| J0 puaAH ® anH no g uj no g uj SSS1 a|buis
G uondo ¥ uondo gg uondo e¢ uondo Z uondo | uondo suonsanb uonenjeas Aay| elsyu)

"MOJag 1IN0 188
se ‘Bunjuel e aalbe 0} pue ‘suondo 8y} JO uoljen|eAs Jisy) WIojul 0} S8100S 8say) pasn uay) dnoic) BujJops ¥YSSSL 8yl

(o€ aplIs
99s) dnoug Bunjop) YSSSL 2ul Aq paalbe yiomawely uonenjeAs ay jsuiebe uojuloy | el Aq usyenspun sem Buliodg

bunjuey uolnen|eAy

193



0dsT 2[surs

‘Buipuny |euonisuel}; SO SS9JJe 0} |BlJUB}O
ssao0.d abiaw ybnoiy)

pauiejal si abpajmouy pue poddns isijeoadg .
Jablaw pue abueyd

J0O 1500 8y} ybiemino syjausq wiay 1obuo] .
S)S09 Juswabeuew

pue uoleJ}SIUILPE Ul UOIIONPaY
INEYNIEToRTIIVETS

0] yoeoidde uowwod pue passnd0) SIO| e

depano pue uoneoldnp JO S|9AS| SBAOWDY

suondwnsse jiyauaq Aoy

"J1opinoid
pabiaw ‘9|buIs B BIA POUOISSILLLWIOD
S1 SOAST 9 9y} WO} PaUOISSILIWOD

10 dSH Aq pepiroid Apusnind SSS IV -
MBIAIBAQ

JapIAOI

sijauesq
JBAI|2p 0} S}S0D pue sysu abeuew o} wes) Jabiaw paj|ys
e alinbai pjnom pue ‘AjaAosys Juswsajdwi oy buibusjeyd

Juonejuswaiduwi
yoddns 0} 3sixa Ayjigedes pue Ajoedeo
2y} seop pue ‘ebueyo ay) si 9|qISes} MOH

Kew suonesiueBlio [enpiapul 10} SUBBW SIU}
1BUYM Janamoy ‘Japiaoid ajbuis ybnoly) yoeoidde passnooy
pUE P3JEUIPIOOD SI0W B IO} Juswjwwod Buoiys sieaddy

(s1esn pus pue sOT4 ‘sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslapjoyayels
Aoy ynm sjqipauo uondo sy} sj

‘AloAnoaya Ayaioe sabiaw jo
sysu 8beuew o} paau Ing ‘Ajyus ajbuls 0} BuluoissIWWO
Aauow Joy anjea 1apaq Apueoyiubis sswnssy

£SaI0UBIOYJe Bses|al pue Asuow
10} @njeA Jajaq JaAlep uondo sy seoq

“Buipuny uonisues} SO0 4oy 9|qibije aq 0}

Aoyl st uondo siy} ‘JanemoH “suoiesiuebio g Jo suonouny
Buibiaw jo uonejuswsa|dwi pue Bujuueld yim pajeroosse
uondnisip pue abueyo jo }so9 Jueoyiubls awnssy

;9|qepioye
Kayy a1e pue ‘uondo 8y} yim pajeloosse
sabueyo 4o }s00 paldwi 8y} aIe Jeypn

‘paau pajesysuowap pue Buipuny

10 s|aA9| uo Juepuadap aq Aew Buuayo apim Ajuno)
90IAISS JO [9AS| PUB SPJEPUB)S UOWIWOD B YHM JUSIONd
aJow g p|INoM SSS JO UoeuIpIood a|Buls Jey) swnssy

¢Aunoo ayy ssoioe avINIeS
JO |aA8] 8|qeynba ue apiaoid pue ‘10j08s pJiy}
ay) Jo Aysianip ay) poddns uondo sy ue)

Juswabeuew
|Nja1eD SPasU Spuelq pue s}lomiau Bunsixa o} uondnisip
JO YSH 8y} ‘19ABMOH "SdH Unm sdiysuonejal pajeoldwod

ssa] ybnouy) pue ‘Buliayo pasnooy aiow pue Jaies|o e
ybnouy} sbio s10}08s pig Jo suoleoadxa Jo Juswabeuew
8y} @oueyus ued Japiroid ajbuls e Jey) swnssy

¢Jojoes
pJ1y} 8y} Jo spaau ay} BulaAljep uo snooy pue
suonejoadxa ay) abeuew uondo ay) saoq

'SdH wouy Juswabeuew

pue uoleuIpI002 ssa| salinbai Japiroid a|buls

‘Ryanoe jo

uonesidnp pue depano Jo [eAowal pue ‘Bupayo passnooy
aJjow pue Jales|d e apiroid ued sapiroid ajbuls e swnssy

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

‘[eAel)
40 UOROBIIP SdH O} 1 POOS) "SdH 40 sanuoud Bupsaw
ul 9|iBe a1ow aq ueo Japiroid ajbuls 8y} Jey) swnssy

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

-19b18W 0} Juelsisal aq Aew siapinold swos
INg ‘SI9p|oyaie)s pue siapuny Jayjo jo sanuoud Bunesw
ul a|16e aiow aq ued Japiroid ajbuls sy} Jey) swnssy

uondwnssy

¢P3BAOAUI
salpoq ay} Jo souspuadapul 8y} s}os)al
Ajeyendoidde pue saned jje Aq paumo

s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

suonsanb uoien|es Aoy

d s|buis e uoissiwwon - | uondo

194



(S1110 (SO

ERICHT UIOOU0))

AL

a8y

# SOI'T/SOdST

pIeog SUIUOISSIUWO))

abueyo Jo S)S00 pajwiIT «
sjuswaAoldwi pue SalouaIoIYd
AP ||IM }a)Jew aAI}edwW oD 8J0W B SBWNSSY/ «
Anqixaly yum senprioud
SdH JoA118p 0} BUIUOISSILIWOD PASSNO0) I0W e
suondwnsse jiyauag

193 eW UIYIM uoniadwod ajejnwing .«
"SuoISIo9p BuluoIsSIWWOoD
|[euonelado ayew siaquiaw pleog .
‘paeog Buiuoissiwwo) SSS | Aluno) e 0)
SdH Aqg pauoissiwwod 1o papiaoid Ajjualind
SSS 1 Bunsixa jo Buluoissiwwod 21691ed)s [N «
MBIAIBAQ

palinbai s|yjs Buluoissiwwoo
Buoss nqg ‘palinbal abueyo paywi

Juonejuswsa|dwi poddns
0} 1s1xa Ajjigedeo pue Ayoeded ayy
saop pue ‘abueyd ay} s a|qisea} MoH

'SO@ST WoJj soue)sisal swos aq Aew
aJay) 0s }axJew aARedwoo a1oW e 8)eald [

(ssesn pus pue sO14 ‘'sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslepjoyayels
Aoy yum s|qipalo uondo ay; S|

S910UBIDIe pue
sjuswanoldwi aAlp djay |m juswebeuew 1oxiew
pue pieog Buluoissiwwod Buosis jey) awnssy

£S8I0UBIDIYS Bsesal pue Asuouwl
10} @njeA Japaq Jaalep uondo sy} seoq

s}Jomawely BulUOISSIWILWIOD pue ‘pJeog 82IAI8S pue
dn-jas 0} palinbai yJom juswdojonap | 1 WOS

¢alqeploye Aoy}
ale pue ‘uondo 8y} Yym pajeioosse
sabueyo Jo 3500 paljdwi 8y} aJe Jeypn

‘uoisinoid Jo AjIsIanlp
poddns ued siapinoid ajeledas Buluiejuiew pue
‘pamalnal AlJeinbas aq ueo siy} ‘onoge se ‘awnssy

¢Aunoo

9Y) SS0JOB 9DIAISS JO [9A8] d|gelinba
ue apinoid pue ‘10}28s pJIy} 8y}

10 Ajisienip ay} poddns uondo ayj ue)

*9]0A0 BuluoIssILIWOD
Jo ped se [aAg| [euoljeu pue |euoifal/eoo]
e Je palayieb s| uoljewoul iy} SWNSsyY

£J40}08s plIy} By} JO Spasu ay}
BuuaAl@p Uo snooy pue suoljejoadxa
ay} ebeuew uondo ay} seoq

‘sdepiano

pue suoneoidnp Buiisixe abeuew Ajpaoaye

0} pas| ‘s}oxJew Buiajons yojew o} yoddns
x93} 0} Ayunpoddo smojje sajoAo BuluoissiLwoo
pue aouewlopad Jo malnal Jeinbas awnssy

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

91940 Buluoissiwwod

ay) Jo ued se pamainal Allejnbal ase

pue Jeajo ale sajoud SdH Jey) ainsus o} ybnoua
BuoJjs s pJeoq BuluoISSIWILWIOD Jey} swnssy

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

*9]0A0 BuluoIssILIWOD

ay} Jo ued se pamainal Alenbas ase pue

Jeajo ale sajoud 10}oas jey} ainsua o} ybnous
Buosis si pJeoq BuluOISSIWILWIOD By} SWNSSY

uondwnssy

¢P3BAOAUI
salpoq ay} Jo souspuadapul 8y} s}os)al
Ajeyendoidde pue saned jje Aq paumo

s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

pJeog a|buls eiA siapiroid adijjnw uoissiwwo) - Z uondo

195



aoe|d ul Apeasje swsiueyoaw yjm
9J1ud0 82IAIBS paleys ybnoly) palaniap sBUIneS «
saluoud uoneduNWWo9
pue a1juad Jo uoljejoadxs abeuew
0] ,81}uU8d 8y, Smojje BuluoISSIWWOoD pue
UOIBUIPJO0D ‘AIBAIIBP Ul JUBWSBAJOAUI SJH BuoJls »
£10)09S JO AJISIaAIp 198w
0] uoddns 1sijeroads Jaaljap 0} siapiroid Jo abuel «
suondwnsse jijauag

s$Ods1 pue sO14
0} saoInes Joddns 821440 oeq apinoid SdH -

sOdas’
J0 abuel eiA poddns jsije1oads UOISSILIWOYD) o
"8J]Ud0 82IAIBS paleys d|buls e eIA
SSS. ouBuab / 10}08s SS04D 8409 sapinoid SH e
MDIIAIDAQO

palinbai osje

s|Iys Buluoissiwwod Buoss "poddns jsiesousb
pue sadlAles paleys SdH Yim Bujuueld uonesbayul
pajiejop pue uoie}NSuod Jayuny salinbay

Juonejuswsa|dwi poddns
0} 1s1xa Ajjigedeo pue Ayoeded ayy
saop pue ‘abueyd ay} s a|qisea} MoH

‘uoddns
1sljeJauab paleys jou Ing ‘|oABl} JO UOIOBIIP
,slopjoyayels Aay o} paubije 8210 Yoeq paseys

(ssesn pus pue sO14 ‘'sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslepjoyayels
Aoy yum s|qipalo uondo ay; S|

poddns jsijeioads passnooy BujuoissIwwoD
ybnouyy Buipuny jo asn Japaq pue ‘sjuswabuelle
S$92IAI8S paleys ybnouy) sbuines 1so0o saldwi

£S8I0UBIDIYS Bsesal pue Asuouwl
10} @njeA Japaq Jaalep uondo sy} seoq

‘suopedldwi }S00 Paji| Yim
2J)uad 92IMIBS paleys SdH Bunsixe ul pajelbajul
aq ueod sadines poddns jsiesauab jey) Bulwnssy

¢alqeploye Aoy}
ale pue ‘uondo 8y} Yym pajeioosse
sabueyo Jo 3500 paljdwi 8y} aJe Jeypn

poddns jsijeioads
o Bujuoissiwwod ay) ybnoly) paiapisuod ag pjnom
Aydeib0ab pue 10}08s JO A}JISIOAIP Jey) SaWNSSY

¢Aunoo

9Y) SS0JOB 9DIAISS JO [9A8] d|gelinba
ue apinoid pue ‘10}28s pJIy} 8y}

10 Ajisienip ay} poddns uondo ayj ue)

uoisinold jsijesauab/eiod Jo apisino
suonejoadxa abeuew pue jybisul apiaoid 0}
siapinoid isieroads uo Ajas pjnom uoido sawnssy

£J40}08s plIy} By} JO Spasu ay}
BuuaAl@p Uo snooy pue suoljejoadxa
ay} ebeuew uondo ay} seoq

"sopunpoddo yqiyur Aueoyiubis [im jspow
xa]dwo9 AlIaA0 Jey) sysu Ing ‘sOaST o abuel

e 0} 9[040 Bujuoissiwwod ay} ybnolyy pauiwislep
poddns jsijeioads Jo Ajljiqixa)} pue spasu joxlew
198w spasu poddns jsijelauab 8109 jey) sawnssy

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

“Janap o} Ayllige

uo Buioedwll UoISNJUOD Jo)JEW SaWNSSE OS|e Ing
‘sapioud uo snooy 0} Ajjiqe alojeisy) sispiroid
1sije1oads JO JOUOISSILIWIOD pue ‘S8dIAIeS paleys
SdH usamiaq diysuoljejol 8so|0 e Sauwnssy

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

"s0uapuadapul J0J09S UqIYUI |IIM SdH
wouy 804 Jobuolis pue ‘seolAles Jo sjusidioal pue
sJapiroad 1oy xe|dwoo 00} si uondo sy} Sewnssy

uondwnssy

¢P3BAOAUI
salpoq ay} Jo souspuadapul 8y} s}os)al
Ajeyendoidde pue saned jje Aq paumo

s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

(oddns jsijesauab

pue 992140 ¥oreq) SSS| Pe2JN0S-IN0 pue PadINos-ul paxiw - eg uondo

196



ouR Y UIOJU0))
YL a8y

aoe|d ul Apeasje swsiueyoaw yjm
9J1ud0 82IAIBS paleys ybnoly) palaniap sBUIneS «
saluoud uoneduNWWo9
pue a1juad Jo uoljejoadxs abeuew
0] ,843U8d 8y}, SMO||e BuluoISSIWWOD pue
UOIBUIPJO0D ‘AIBAIIBP Ul JUBWSBAJOAUI SJH BuoJls »
£10)09S JO AJISIaAIp 198w
0] uoddns 1sijeroads Jaaljap 0} siapiroid Jo abuel «
suondwnsse jijauag

s$OdsS1 pue sO14 0}
sooI1AMes Joddns 2210 yoeq apinoid SdH -

sOQS1 Jo abuel el Loddns
1sljelauab pue jsieroads UoISSILIWIOY) «
MBIAIBAQ

* palinbal
os|e Bujuoissiwwod Buoljs Jo dn j9S "S82IAIBS
paleys SdH Yyim Buiuueld uoieibajul salinbay

Juonejuswsa|dwi poddns
0} 1s1xa Ajjigedeo pue Ayoeded ayy
saop pue ‘abueyd ay} s a|qisea} MoH

‘padinbal s| suoiouny
90140 Yoeq Buleys jey} sOasT WwoJj Juswsaibe
|eJousb pue ‘jaAel) Jo uonoalip SdH 03 paubily

(ssesn pus pue sO14 ‘'sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslepjoyayels
Aoy yum s|qipalo uondo ay; S|

1sIxa [[13s Aew uoneodnp pue deuaao jo

ysiy - pwoddns jsieroads passnooy BuluoissILWoD
ybnouyy Buipuny jo asn Japaq pue ‘sjuswabuelle
S92IAI8S paJeys ybnouyy sbuines 1s00 saldwi

£S8I0UBIDIYS Bsesal pue Asuouwl
10} @njeA Japaq Jaalep uondo sy} seoq

2J)uad 92IMIBS paleys SdH Bunsixe ul pajelbajul
aq ueod sadines poddns jsijelausb jey) sawnssy

¢alqeploye Aoy}
ale pue ‘uondo 8y} Yym pajeioosse
sabueyo Jo 3500 paljdwi 8y} aJe Jeypn

Aaniep SdH ybnouyy pue poddns
1sljeroads o Bujuoissiwwod ayy ybnoiyy paiapisuod
aQ p|NOM J0}08S JO AJISIOAIP 1By} SBWNSSY

¢Aunoo

9Y) SS0JOB 9DIAISS JO [9A8] d|gelinba
ue apinoid pue ‘10}28s pJIy} 8y}

10 Ajisienip ay} poddns uondo ayj ue)

uoisinold jsijesauab/elod Jo apisino suoleoadxa
abeuew pue ybisul apiroid o} siepinodd isieroads
pue SdH yiog uo Ajal pjnom uoido awnssy

£J40}08s plIy} By} JO Spasu ay}
BuuaAl@p Uo snooy pue suoljejoadxa
ay} ebeuew uondo ay} seoq

'SNO0} JO YOE| |eljuajod pue SadIAIeS
paleys SdH Jo} ajos Asanlep Jabbiq e yum depsno
SSS1 jo Jake| Jayjoue ajeald pinod uoldo

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

'SdH Aq a]0J uoneuiplood oibajess
Jabuolis e alinbal pjnom uondo ayj Ing ‘|aAes}
10 UoNoalIp 92IAIBS pateys SdH 0} paubie si siyl

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

‘Jopow Jo Ayxajdwoo apisbuole

‘10}09s Jo @ouspuadapul 0} JoYgIYu] ‘'SSSL

10 Aanijop pue BuluoISSIWIWOD ‘Uo)eUIPIO0D
yloq Ul SdH 1oy ajos Jabuoljs e sawnsse uondo

uondwnssy

¢P3BAOAUI
salpoq ay} Jo souspuadapul 8y} s}os)al
Ajeyendoidde pue saned jje Aq paumo

s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

(Ajuo 8921yjo

yoeq) SSS | pe2Jnos-1N0 pue pPaosinos-ul paxiw - q¢ uondo

197



8Y --7 T~

SOOIAIOS DOIFO
Jorq pue

\ ayodg

. SSSL
* ISI[RIdUID)

~
~
~

aoe|d ul Apealje swsiueyoaw Yjim
211udd 82IAIBS paleys ybnoly) pasoaaldap sBuInes .
saljliod uonesIuNWWod
pue aJjuad Jo uoneoadxe abeuew
0] ,8J]1Ud9 8y}, SMOJj|e BuluoIssIwwod pue
UOIIBUIPJ00I ‘AIBAIBP Ul JUBWSAJOAUI SdH Buouls «
£10)03s JO AJISIaAIp 198W
0] uoddns jsijeroads Janljap 0} siapinoid Jo abuel «
suondwnsse jiyauag
« any,
3y} wolj Joddns [esjuad ssadoe ued seyods
" .s9y0ds, J9||lews eIA sanleoo| ul yoddns
1sijesauab uoisinoid yum (siapinolid juaiind
Aqg uoisinoid jo sjens| buibiew) ,qny,, ajbuis eia
[9A8] AJuno2 1B SSS | 1sljeloads / 81092 JaAIBQe
MBIAIBAQ

B
. o
b

soyods

1o} pasinbal osje Buiuoissiwwod Buolys jo dn jog
S99IAIBS paleys

SdH yim Buiuueld uoneibajul pajielop saiinbay

Juonejuswsa|dwi poddns
0} 1s1xa Ajjigedeo pue Ayoeded ayy
saop pue ‘abueyd ay} s a|qisea} MoH

! 10308s Jo pue Aydeiboab
10 AJIsianIp s}eaW Jey) AJunod 8y} SSOJOe SaOIAISS
apinoid 0} JuswWWOD Japjoyaye)s 0} paubile - s A

(ssesn pus pue sO14 ‘'sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslepjoyayels
Aoy yum s|qipalo uondo ay; S|

y 1SIx@ |11 Aew uoneoldnp pue dejano Jo sy

’ ‘saniunpoddo A shw saus ajdijnw

ing - poddns jsije1oads passnooy) Buluoissiwwod
ybnouyy Buipuny jo asn Japaq pue ‘sjuswabuelle
$99IAI9S paleys ybnouyy sBuines 3s0o saljdwi - S A

£S8I0UBIDIYS Bsesal pue Asuouwl
10} @njeA Japaq Jaalep uondo sy} seoq

‘Buipuny [euolisuely

SO0 10} 8[qibije 89 pinoY *,sax0ds, UlyIm

uoisinold dn Buijies pue s3sod pappe yim ‘siapiaoid
J0 poddns jsijesauab Buibiow sawnsse - Jueoyubis

éolqeplojje
Ay} aJe pue ‘uondo sy} Yim psjeloosse
sabueyo Jo 3500 paljdwi 8y} aJe Jeypn

Aaniep SdH ybnouyy pue poddns
1sijeioads o Bujuolssiwwod sy} ybnoyy passapisuod
aq p|NOM 10}08S JO AJISIOAIP JBy} SOWNSSE - SO A

¢Aunoo

9Y) SS0JOB 9DIAISS JO [9A8] d|gelinba
ue apinoid pue ‘10}28s pJIy} 8y}

10 Ajisienip ay} poddns uondo ayj ue)

uoisinoid jsijesauabel09 Jo apisino suolejoadxa
abeuew pue jybisul apinoid 0y siapiroid
isijer0ads pue SdH yi1oq uo Ajas pjnom uondo

£J0}09s plIy} dy) Jo spasu
ay) Buuaaljep uo snooy pue suoljeoadxa
ay} ebeuew uondo ay} seoq

SNO0} JO Yoe|
|enuajod pue sadiIAIes paleys SdH Jo) 9104 Alanlep
196619 e yym dejsono SSS | Jo Jahe| Jayjoue ajeald

pinod uondo Ing ‘Ayjiqixaly Buoss sawnsse siy |

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

‘sg|diound
sa}I[eo0] SdH 03 paubije AjBuosis si [ppow SIy |

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

"S8IJIUNWIWIOD 8SIBAIp ssoJoe poddns

0} $s900E Bulsiwixew ‘|opow saiieoo| 0} ubije 0}
SSS1 Jo Alanliep pue BuIUOISSILUWIOD ‘UOIIBUIPIO0D
y10q Ul SdH 10} ajos Jobuoljs e sswnsse uondo

uondwnssy

|]opow sallljeao] ajods ¥ gnH - 7 uondo

¢ PBAJOAUI SBIPOQ 8y} Jo aouapuadapul ayy
s109)01 Ajgrendoidde pue saiued ||e Ag paumo
s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

suopsanb u

198



AOTLI0 YR R £S5, 1A Eads
Anus o15ms

SHE =l ¢
»

) ® o
— X .

\Q/ .

@
" 4]
SaTATAS ]

‘Aue a|buls
Buluoissiwwoo ybnoiyy pasaiep sbuineg .

saloud uonedIuNWWOo9

pue aJjuad Jo uolejoadxs sbeuew 0} ,81jus8d

3y}, SMOJ|e BuIUOISSILIWOD pue UoIjeuIPIO0D
‘AJIOAIIBP Ul JUBWBAJOAUI SdH Buong

£10103s Jo AJsianip 198w 0} uoddns
1sijeads JaAljap 0} siepinoid Jo abuey .
suondwnsse jiyauaq Aoy

‘[apow ,8yods pue
gny,, 8y} SMoj|o} AJjus 8y} JO aInjonns 8y e
"Ajus e|buls e 0} sSOAST
BIA PBUOISSILIWOD 10 S4H Ag papinoid
Apoaaip gSS | Bunsixa jo BuluoissILwoD
In4 "¢ pue | suondo jo pugAy v«
MBIAIBAQ

‘sjydusq
JBAI|2p 0} S}S0D pue sysu abeuew o} wes) Jabiaw paj|ys
e alinbai pjnom pue ‘AjaAosys Juswsajdwi oy buibusjeyd

¢uonejuswajdw
yoddns 0} 3sixa Ayjigedes pue Ajoedeo
ay} saop pue ‘abueyd ayy si 9|qiSeay MOH

‘abe1anoo apim
Aunoo yum ‘sapinoid ajbuls ybnoiyy yoeosdde passnooy
pUE P3JEUIPIOOD SIOW B IO} JusWwwwod Buoiys sieaddy

(s1esn pus pue sOT4 ‘sOAST ‘SdH)
Jslapjoyayels
Aoy ynm sjqipauo uondo sy} sj

Ayanoe Jabiaw Jo sysu abeuew 0} pas ‘|opow S
}99W 0} }S09 Jayyny Ing ‘Ayzus o|buls 0} BuluoISSILIWOD
Aauow Joy anjea 1apaq Apueoyiubis sswnssy

£SaI0UBIOYJe Bses|al pue Asuow
10} @njeA Jajaq JaAlep uondo sy seoq

“Buipuny uonisues} SO0 4oy 9|qibije aq 0}

Aoyl st uondo siy} ‘JanemoH “suoiesiuebio g Jo suonouny
Buibiaw jo uonejuswsa|dwi pue Bujuueld yim pajeroosse
uondnisip pue abueyo jo }so9 Jueoyiubls awnssy

Zalqepioye
Kayy a1e pue ‘uondo 8y} yim pajeloosse
sabueyo 4o }s00 paldwi 8y} aIe Jeypn

‘paau pajesysuowap pue Buipuny

10 s|aA9| uo Juepuadap aq Aew Buuayo apim Ajuno)
‘abelanoo apim Alunod sainsus yoeoidde sanieoo]
"90IAJSS JO [9AS] PUB SPJEPUB)S UOWWOD B U}IM JuSIod
aJow g p|INoM SSS JO UoeuIpIood a|Buls Jey) swnssy

¢Aunoo ayy ssoioe avINIeS
JO |aA8] 8|qeynba ue apiaoid pue ‘10j08s pJiy}
ay) Jo Aysianip ay) poddns uondo sy ue)

RVETVIET]
|eoo| Buipnjoul ‘SdH uum sdiysuonejal pajeoidwod
ssa] ybnouy) pue ‘Buliayo pasnooy aiow pue Jaies|o e
ybnouy} sbio s10}08s pig Jo suoleoadxa Jo Juswabeuew

8y} #oueyus ued Japiroid ajbuls e Jey) swnssy

¢Jojoes
pJ1y} 8y} Jo spaau ay} BulaAljep uo snooy pue
suonejoadxa ay) abeuew uondo ay) saoq

‘uoisinoid

1e00| pue AjjIqIxa)} SI80 ‘SdH Woly Juswabeuew

pue uoneulpJood ssa| salinbal Japinoid a|bulg “Alanoe

Jo uopeoldnp pue depano Jo [eAowal pue ‘passnooy
alow pue Jases|o e apiaold ueo Japinoid ajbuls e swnssy

¢senuoud Buibueys yeaw o} ybnous

a|qixal} sI pue ‘yuswdojeAap S} 0} )NQUIUOD
‘A12100s |IA10 pue s8d1Aas 21ignd jo epuabe
Buibiaws ay) 1suiebe Jalap 0} suonesiuebio
10308s pJiy} Joy poddns snooy uondo ay) seoq

'S80JAJSS Paleys PUE [9poW S3I|E00]| JO SWIS) Ul [9ARI}
4O UoNOaIIP SdH O} 1l POOD "SdH o sanuond Bunsaw
ul a|iBe a1o0w aq ued Japiroid a|buls By} Jey) SWNSSY

¢so|diound

sanieoo| buipnjoul ‘saoinies yoddns

10}08S PJIY} JO J9|qEeUd pue Japuny Jofew e

se SdH jo sanuoud sy 39w uondo sy} saoQq

‘qny apisino aouspuadapul spoddns [gpow

saljjeoo] “Jebiaw 0} Juejsisal aq Aew siapinoid awos
INg ‘SIap|oyaie)s pue siapuny Jayjo jo sanuoud Bunesw
ul a|16e aiow aq ued Japiroid ajbuls sy} Jey) swnssy

uondwnssy

¢P3BAOAUI

salpoq ay} Jo souspuadapul 8y} s}os)al
Ajeyendoidde pue saned jje Aq paumo

s yoiym uopnjos e Buipinoid ‘10j08s ay} jo
suonuajul o16ajel)s ay} Jeaw uondo ay} seoq

suonsanb uoien|es Aoy

|]opow ayods pue gqny yiim Japiaoid a|bulg - g uondop

199



SuUoIsN|duU0) .G Uuoljo=S

uojuioy] ey @




IS

"SI9P|0YaX.)S SWOS JO JUSWILIWOD 8y} 81ndas 0} Aoy
aiow aq Aew ) jey) Buysabbns pue ‘Ajjiqixays Jajealb palayo )l Bulesy ‘g uondQ 0} aiow papua} dnob ay} uo Ajuouiw y

‘pawIBuOD Ajljigeploye pue padojaasp
sI yoeoudde Ayjeoo| Jjapim ay) ‘sainjew Ajjus ay) se pajusawajduwil
Kjaaissaibolad ag pjnoo asay) - 1509 [enuajod pue Ajxa|dwoo

e — e & uoneuawsa|dwi Jo swid) ul ,sayods, [eao| Buuawajdwi Jo Ajljiqises)
o ® | N o o
o ) L o 3y} 1N0ge SUIB2UO0D BWOS alam alay) JoaAeMoH “(Ajjeuoneu pue) Ajunod
[orss | _— E ® " ay) ul sjuswdojanap Aj9)I| YIm Jus)SISUOD SI YdIYM ‘|aABl} JO UOIjoalIp
| o® ok e e S j pallajeid 8y} Se sSnd0j SaI}|BO0| B U0 SNSUSSU0D sem alay) Ajlenbg
[ s | ® ‘salpoq Bunixa uodn joedwi jo
LSS s soalbap Bulliea yum uonelbalul jJo sadA) Juaiayip 109|)21 Aew ey sjppow

@
|euoneisuebio sSnoleA ale 818y "S804nosal [euolippe pue Buipuny JaAs)| 0)

|enualod ay) sasiwixew ey Aem e Ul JI 81njoNJis 0} pasu ay) pue (paAowal
ale sjuawa|e Jepiroid SSS ] allysplojela JI) suonesiueBio Jossadspald
a1 Jo AjljIgeIA ay) papnjoul 8say ] "passalppe aq o) sanssi Jueoliubls
aJam aJay) 1ey) pasiubooal sem ]| “dnois) BuIop) 8y} JO Slequiawl || jou
1ng 9sow 0} a|geJajald sem g uondQ 1ey) sem Bunesw ay) Jo asuas ay |

"(MaIA 10}08S pue SJH djeledas e jJou Sem a1ay}) Saul| Jey} J0}0aS UO SPIAIP JOU PIP UOISSNISIP Pajou 8q pinoys i
ybnoyjje ‘snsussuod Jeajd e yoeal jou pip dnolg) Bunpiop) 8yl (g pue g) suondo om) uo snooy 0} papual dnois) BuiyIop) 8y L

"4}0q Jo syyduaq ay) Buiuiquiod o} anp ‘¢ pue | suondQ 0} ajqelsseld
paJapisuod sem siy] ‘(enoge g uondQ a98s) aouasaid |B20] swos yum Alius ajbuls e Buluiquiod ‘paijjuapl Sem uoijdo mau Ye

‘suondo Jayjo ayy 03 paiidde aq pjnod pieoq Buiuoissiwwo)

3y} Jey)} pajou sem }| ‘onb snjejs ayj wody ainyesy Buiysinbunsip ay) se payjuapl sem g uondQ ul pseog BuluoissIwo) 8y «
"PaJBAIIBP 8Q P|NOM BN|eA BIIX 3} ey} pasiubooal

sem Jl pue ‘sQ14 |e Aq pawoojam aq pjnom yoeoidde ay} jey} Jesjoun Sem }i ‘JJOABMOH "S82IAI8S paleys ybnouy) sbuines
}S00 0S puUB ‘9|edS JO SBILIOUOIS SWOS JBHO0 PINOM 838Uy} Jey) pasiubodal sem | “pajunodsip aq pinoys q¢ pue e ¢ suondQe

:Jey) pealbe sem )l malnal 1si) ay) Buimojjo4 “suondo sy patepisuod dnolo) Buop) YSSSI 9yl

uondQ M4 1seg

201



suoleJapisuo) uoneluswsaldwyi :g9 uonoas

uojuioy] ey @




€S

fonjod 8
ABorens

ainng
g|doad

abueyo
[euonesiuehlo jo suoisuawip adiound

‘lopow AJaAljep mau ayy Buliaalap jo pued
se uonelbajul woa)sAs awos aq 0} pasu [|IM a18y) - SWoISAS

‘[opow AJaAljep mau ay) Loddns |im 1ey) sessaooud
ssauIsng mau ysiigeyse 0} jueupodwl aq |IMm }I — S$S3%0.1d

"SS S| BuusAlep 10) [opow mau pue Bunjiom Jo shem
Mau ay} 0] aseyd uonisuely ayy Buunp Ajeoadss ‘Alaniep
aAloaye buipadwi pue abueyd 0y sialueq jenuajod Bunesid
‘slopjoyayels awos isbuowe by aAnebau e ul paniisuod
aq Aew uondo u is8q 8y} bBunyusweldwi — ainyonsg

‘abueyo Jo seouanbasuod ayj JnOge uJadu0d
JuaJayul ue S| alay} ‘ssauyeam pue swajqoid asiubooal
g|doad ybnoyye - obueyo uo Moono aAnebaN ‘€

swa|qo.d aA|os 0] Jay1abo) ylom
0} suonesiueBblo ; S90IAI8S JO ainjiel — sepnupe ojIS g

jInsal e se uaddey s usas
aAey a|doad pue eale SIYy} Ul PBUOISSILUWOD Udaq daAeY
suodal Jayjo Jo Jaquinu e — wsiondaos Jo 1A ybiy v |

:Buipnjoul ‘ebueyo palinbal ay} ayew 0}
slapjoyayels Aay ay} 1o} passalppe aq 0} paau [m sabus|eyo
JO Jaquinu B ey} oAalleq 9A\ SS820Nns  uolejuswa|dwi
0] |eonud sI abueyo odoad — ainyny g 9jdoad

'$$9004d uonejuswa|dwii
ayl Buunp pessaippe AjeonewsisAs aq 0} pasu yoiym
(3ybu) suoisuswip Juspuadepialul pue [euonesiuebio Aay Jnoj
ay] ssalppe 03 Jueuodwi s1 3 abueyd Buiuueld uaypy -Bunpiom
Jo Aem mau ay} 0} ul-Ang spm-Alunod 186 0} swwelboud
abueyo pasnoo} pue jsnqol e obispun 0} siapinold SSS |
Jaylo pue SdH aJ4inbal m uondo 1 1s9q oyl Bunuswadwi

suoljelapisuo)) uoljejuswa|dwiy

203



auloWI] YSSSI WoJ) Jor)Xg :82In0g
149

03 Joud ooed ur 9q 03 paou [[Im ue[d FUTUOISSIWIWIOD B PUL QS8

ssaursng & ojur pado[oAdp 1Yy ST A3uLyD J0J ISBD J139)e1)S A} AINSUD 0)
poau [[im dnoin) Sunpropp oy ‘uondo parrdyaid oy Surf[ropun suondwnsse
oY) 1597 [[IM YOIYM ‘ss3001d oFua[[eyd pue Aunnids oy} Iurmor[oj

L10E wdy 10

N

£ HuAwaiue s
AU O} nz/_

; UDGEUELL ;

Fik

‘uonejudw[dur

zulbag uomsuEn
TR
uaneedzig

ik

( (
5

= StEenuod
oiaT

feniga d-prl
RIEDE S51
R
ST EE
a} JEUD
oirt

\..|
4 smnwEn ./_
[UE W0
pEod 51 0
LONEESa
oLaz
aep s kg S
ALY 2
SuonENd|
- - BPBEUtD
Buaa peod, Ll
duzEuues ¥
AAUSDIORRH /
Vo
LY
Bupnaul
SIED SR A
—— _:.. husEYD % /
. 4 Agnss
oo pRasEd o LA LA
kg sl o _ i
SUDEPCUBLILODEY
B _
EHEL e ;
ﬁ‘ |
b
paaibe
b uafdo pELEEg
/ {PRISPEUCO )
e e
abuzieyoviugruss
uanda pauzzid 1o} zhg
[Ercudde j2uge s
| £ 02/ LMOE

-100load ayj Jo abejs Aunnios ay) ybnolayy sAow mou ||Im suondo ay |

sda)g 1XaN

204



saolpuaddy

uojuioy] ey @




uonesiuebip

"}JOM JNnO Jo Hed se paynsuod usaq aAey oym Buimoljo) 8y} Jo sindul pue awi 8y} Joj [njejelb ale app

P3]|NSU0D Ss|enplAIpu] ;| Xipuaddy

206



LS

"snowAuoue alem pauiadouod suonesiueflo pue s|enplAlpul
a1 1ey) sueaw AsAins siy) Jo ainjeu ay| ‘AaAins spaau S4H 8yl 0] papuodsal SO LZE ‘@Aoqe 8yl 0] UonIppe U

uonesiuebip

(Penunuod) PB)NSUOY S|enpIAIpU| ;| Xipuaddy

207



5 010z 1des ‘suonesiuebin

Juswdojansg pue poddng (8007 XIS 8y} Aq 010Z-/00Z L0} SJUN0SOY pUE Spodey [ENULY SOUEBIY UL «
papiwgns Jaded :MaIA8y s80IAI8S Joddng J0j0es paiyl . Koljod uonejuesaiday pue uonejussaiday aouel|y 8yl .

ylomewel4 Buluoissiwwo) aliysplojeisH . SSRIOLoIoH Ul BUIIOSSILILIOS O]
£00g Aoueynsuo pue Buiuueld oi6ajens :uejd uooy pue Jodsay SouelY 8yl .

Ule}Sng - allysia)}sadIoN) pue aliysplojaloH YJew-ayy uoneypalode ynboe ay)
u1 Jojoas Ajlunwwo) pue Asejunjop ay) Buinjep * ]o juswdojansp aininy ayi Joj |esieidde suondQ souel|y ay | .

9002 AInr Hoday :spasu o

82IAJ8S pue poddns ainjoniiselyu) J0joss Ajunwwod allyspiojaieH ul sbiQ aie) [e100S pue yjesH J0j08S piIyL
PUB AUBIUNIOA FUNRHOSUOD SIMONISEL] SIUSPIONSIOH - JO 90UEl||Y 8Y} J0} Lloday :ynboe jo uonjenjea] souel|ly 8YL .
Sel|ea0] 10402 ABA b1 ) 90uUaldjal JO SWId) (4S5 ) 1S4 J0}08S paiy L .
dnoug) Juswebeuely diysisuped aiiyspiojaiay . L L/0L07 S60IN0S [[E WO SWOOUl 0L - MSSSL -
SISPSISMON VAD  + ) 07 Jequisjeds uonesiueBiQ ayj Jo Alewwng souely syl -

auizeBew auliSMaN }sii4 Ajunwwod . . Suidd
yoed Bunayepy ayesodion isii4 Ajunwwoy . 010¢ synsal AsAIns bulddew UOISINOId -«

600Z SIUNOODY ISii AJUnWwoD 0L0Z sHnsal Anauns Buiddew spaaN .
€102 - 010z ueld ajelodio) 1s414 Ayunwiwio) . dnoug) Buppopn MBIASY 24njoNJISelju| J0}08S Py L .
syeaysjoey Jsii4 Ajunwwo) . 6002 1UBWISSassy spaa 2169)e.)S JUIor allysplojalaH .
siaded punoibxoeg 600 Hoday |enuuy yyesH olignd ~ «
1o8l0id LALID 8U} HOS FHTH. PUB JHOVIH. VAH  + 2o1j0e.d JO SOP0D pue JoedWOo?) BIIYSPIOSIoH By .
0102 '600C SIUNOOOY [EloBUILIY YVAH  » 900z ABojens Ajunwwon anyspiojeloy
600z ue|d oibejens YAH - 6002 (Dd)
L1-0L0C ueld ueld ssauisng SAADOH . 9p0) JuswWaINd0Id pue Buipun4 joedwo) ay} Jo Malnay .
010Z-600¢ SUNOIJY ,sisqWBIN GOH . 600z diysisuyed
MBIASY [Benuuy SAADH . aJlyspJojaiaH yim juswabebug 1010ag pliyL JO MaInaY .
L 1/010Z swwelbold ANAIOY SAADH . 600¢ dduel||ly allysplojaisH 8y} JO MaInay .

MOJB(q PaJoU ale Sjuswnoop A8y ‘sjuswinoop Auew pa)Nsuod sap\

P3]|NSUO0) SJUBWND0(] :Z Xipuaddy

208



swa | Jo Auesso|s) ¢ xipuaddy

209



09

‘suonesiuebio
AJaAljop 10108S pJiy} 0} 8JNJONJISBIUI PUB SBIIAISS SSBUISN( JO UOISIAOIG

S82IAI8S paJeys JO UOISIAOIg

‘Alanijap aoinles pue Buiuueld ‘Aoijod aouanjjul 0} JpJo Ul ‘10108S pJIy) 8y}
uIyum sjuawdojaAsp pue 8j0J ‘Spasu 8y} Uo 82UapIAd apinoid pue 109]|0D

juswdo|anap
Aoljod pue yolessay

FIETNIE]
aoIn1es pue Buluueld ‘Bunjew Aoijod aAnelado-09 / juiol 1oy suonesiueblio
10)08s ajeAld pue 21gnd Jeulaixa yum sQ 14 Jeyiebo) buibung

abelayoliq pue
Buipjing diysiauped oibejens

"slopuny pue siauue|d a21AI8s ‘siayew Adljod 0y suonesiuebio
J0}08S pJIY} JO} 92I0A 8|qBJUNOII. puk dAlelUasaldal e apInoId

a2loA Buluayibuang

*J0}08S 8y} ssoJoe saljiunuoddo
Buiules| pue Buiuiel) Jo dn aye)] 8y} 8)euIpio-00 pue abeinoou]

Juswdojanap pue BuiuleaT

‘Joddns sanioe) pue sasiwald ‘sbuipjing

S80Inosal
pue aoue)sISSe |eoljoeld

‘'spJepuels ybiy
0] Buneisado pue jueldwoo Ajjebs| ‘esodind 1oy 1) a1e suonesiueblo ainsug

aouepinb pue aoinpe
‘uoneuwlojul [ealuyos} g [eba

‘uoisinold ul sdeb Bnjd 1o spaau asoy) 198w 0} sasuodsal buipoddns
pue Buneyioe) pue AJlunwiwod |e20| 8y} ul spasu BulAjyuapl AjoAnoe-oid

SOIIAIOY

uoddns juswdojana

Aiobaje) aoineg

[EUOLIPPY

adoog
uf

‘obe)s Juswdojanap
suondo ay} buunp adiAies poddns jo Alobajes jeuonippe ue 0} paalbe dnols) BuIop) YSSSL 9yl

S92IAIBS JUBsWdo|aAa(]

© 11oddng 10)08g pJiy] Jo salobaje) 4 xipuaddy

210



19

"sapl|s Buimoj||o] 8y} uo papnjoul si suondo asay) Uo [Ie)ep Jayung
"UoIIEN|BAS J1JaW Jou pIp )l 0S pue ‘SSS | Buipun) snunuoo
pjnom SdH - uondo onsijeas e Jou sem Siyj 18yl 1|81 Sem 1l :sesea) Buipun4 SdH  —
‘pelEN|BA® 8Q JOU P|NOYS pue ‘sjuswalinbal s,811yspiolaiaH
198W 10U P|NOM pue xa]dwoo 00} Sem SIY} 1BY) 1|8} SEM ]I :]opoW Sanijeso| pasiadsiq —
"uonen|eAs Joj
Japisuoo 0) uondo onsijeal e Jou sem Siy) Jey) 1[8) Sem )l ;[apow paoinos-ul AN} SdH —
‘palen|eAd aq pjnom suondo
Pa]SI|-LoYsS 8y} yoiym Jsuiebe suljgseq ay) Se pasn aq pjnoys ony snjels ay) 1ey)
‘poalbe Jayln) sem ]I ‘JIoASMOH palen|eAs g Jou pjnoys 1l 1Byl yons sem ‘ebueyo
10} poau 8y) pue ‘[apow JuUa1ind ay] U0 80USPIAS 8Y] 1BY) )8} SeM ]I :onD SNielS —
:dnot Buop) ¥SSSI 8yl Ag 1Sl] Woys ay) wolj papnjoxa suondo Jnoj alem aiay]

suondo 1s17 Buo pajunoasiq ;G Xipuaddy

211



a9

paonpal aq 0} Ajgy| Buipun} SdH.

(Ayenb pue Buipunj) jopow JO AJijIgRUIBISNS JOAO SUIBOUO ).
Alannap ul dejueno pue uonedidnp panunuoe

sysu paldu|

uoneoldnp aonpal ‘sawooino aaosdwi 0}
A|9A1}BI0QR| |00 HIOM 0} SdH PUEB SISPIAOIY »
uoisinoid s82IAIBS
uoddns Jo [9A8] Jualind 0} uondnisip pajWIT «
uondo jo syysuaq paljduw

abueyo Jo S)s00 palwie
S1S09 paljdw|

siapinoid ON

S0IAIBS paleys

slapinold sWoS

uswdojansp Aoljod pue yoieasay

slapinold sWoS

abelayouq
pue Buipjing diysiauued oibsjens

slapinold sWoS

aoloA Buluayibuang

siapinoid ||y wswdojanap pue BuiuiesT
siapinoud |1 S$8J2JN0sal pue aduejsisse |edljoeld

aouepinb pue
sJopinod Iy 82IApE ‘uoljew.lojul [ed1uyos} g [eba
siapinoid ||y uoddns juswdojaaaq

Aq paJanleg

uonoun4

ERUCRTN
YL

SOI'1/sOdST

uIdOU0))
By

aJnjonis

,SS9| 10} 80w, JBAI|BP - douewIOHad pue AlaAllBp
anoidwi 0} AjoAneloqe||0o Ylom siapinoid awnssy
sawwelboud

uononpal J1oyap nob wouy sainssald |easiy 0} anp
sjuswabuelle Jualnd ybnolyy sa1oualidlye JoAlep
pue Buipuny Jo S|oA8| 8oNnpal 0) paau asiubooay

SdH
pue siapiroid g 8y} BIA SSS| JBAI[SP 0} 8NuUnU0D

MBIAIBAQ

onb snjelg

212



€9

Alunoo ay) ssouoe g|qejieAe poddns jsijeloads 0} UoiONPaY «

¢slopinoud

aoualladxa pue abpajmouy ‘ieis Aay JO SSO| [ellua)od ON /10010 / SdH seoinieg poddng
SOQS1 pPue SdH usamjaq uoIsnyuod O «
J0}08S pJIy} 8y} JO 3210A Juspuadapul ue Buiag se uaas Jou SdH c1opinoid ON / 300 diysiosuods [eosi4
paonpal 8q 0} paau Aew sa2IAIas 1oddns JO S[oAST »
lanl|ap o} sanijiqedeo pue Ayoeded Jijdn 0} ajqe aq jou Aew SdH - £ SdH yuswdojaasp Aoljod pue yosessey
sysu paidw obeloxoIq
¢SdH pue Buip|ing diysseuped oibsjens

S92IAIBS paleys ybnolay) asnoy
-ul uoisinoad Buibuuq ybnolay) apew aq ued sbBuiABS BWNSSY « ¢SdH
uoisinoid SdH papuny Ajualind Jo doys dois auQ «

aoloA Buluayibuang

; wswdojanap pue BuiuiesT
uondo Jo syjsuaq pailjdw ¢SH
S92IAIBS 19peo.q JaAIBP 0} SdH ul Ajioeded Bulpjing JO 1S0)) « ¢SdH $80IN0S8I PUE BOUB)SISSE [BO10RId
S1S09 paljduw|
aouepinb pue
iSdH 92IAPE ‘uoljewlolul [eo1uyoa) ¥ [eba]
$SdH Hoddns juswdolenaq

Aq patanileQ uolnoun4

"sjaAa| Buipuny mau 0} uoisinoid

Buiubijeal ‘e@oussald joyJew uleyuiew sQQST «
‘uoisinold 10841p Bunsixe spisbuoje

‘SdH Aq AjpoaJip papinoid uay) pue ‘pauoiSSILLWLIOD
-op ale SdH Aq pauoissiwwod Ajualind SSS «

MBIAIBAQ

UINUO))

ainjonis

SSS1 P83lnos-ul SdH

213



¥9

"J0J08S pJIy} 8y} 10} AOBOOAPE pPUB SI0A BPIM AJUNOD JO SSOT «
WV_WC U@:QE_ ¢1epinoid oN $92IAI8S oddng
doys dojs auo AJ|eoo| pue sapjeao] ul uoneslidnp paonpay . ¢lapiroid oN diysiosuods |eosi4
S91}1[ED0] Ul UOI}EPOWWOIJ. puUB 89140 M}oed jo Buleys «
abeianod apim AJunoo ajgeynba pue aAioay] « sqny U yuswdojansp Aoljod pue yosessay
so|dioulid saneoo] S4H 01 Juswubiy .
uondo jo sjyeuaq paidu| ebeseolq
: . . SqQNH 1IN pue Buipjing diysiauped oibajensg
"S81}I|EO0| UIBHSD Ul UOIJEPOWIWODOE MU alinbal Ael « SANH 1IN 5010A BulusYIBUBAS
............... S1S09 paljdw|
T p— RO SQNH 1UIN yuswdojonsp pue Bujuies
\\\\ SO0IAIRG Il/l
e i ® o
@ ey o SaNH 1IN $90JN0Sal puUE 9OUB]SISSE [eoNjoBId
’ ‘ ‘ sqny-TurjA FERIREIN . N .
’ SSSL . N
y sqny-ury . \
\ SAIAIS SAIAIS . / mocmb_:@ Ucm
1 * * \
/ sqm et . SANH 1IN 90IAPE ‘UOeWLIoU! [BOIUYDS) B [efa]
1
. 091 SOH |
1 qny-tarpy e 1 SqQnH 1IN Hoddns juswdojarsq
\ ’

Aq patanileQ uonoun4

"'sgny BIA SSS | SWOS apiAoid 0} SeNUUOD SdH »
'sOQS 7 IIe 4o} saseq ale ,sqny I, «

"S91)I|e00| Ul paseq

.SANY IUIW,, BIA SSS ||B SUOISSIUWOD SdH
MBIAIBAQ

aJnjonis

|Jopow saijlje207 pasiadsiq

214



S9

"oeq pajess uolisinoid se abeianod a|gelnba uop

(Ayjenb pue Buipuny) [epow Jo AjijIgeulB}SNS JOAO SUIS2UO0D JuedIUBIS « Jopinoid oN so9oIA8G poddng
Alanijep ul dejano pue uonedidnp panuiuoy) «
wv_wc U@:QE_ Japinoid oN diysiosuodg |eosi4
uoneo|idnp sonpal sJapInold Jo abuey juswdojanap Aoljod pue yolessay
‘saw09}no anoidwi 0} A|BAlBIOQR[|0D YIOM 0} SdH PUE SISPINCId « :
palnoas Buipuny JO S82IN0S dABUIS)E abelayolq
Buiwnsse ‘saoiAlas 1oddns JO [9A9] Jualind 0} uondnusip ON siepinoid 1o sbuey pue Buipjing diysisuued oibajens
(+w 3) sbuines ajqeyses jueoyiubis asijeas SdH -
CO_HQO JO S}ljaus(q U@:QE_ siepiroid Jo abuey 8010A Buluayibusng
SOQAST 404 ANARoE uonelsusbh siapinold Jo abuey wswdojarap pue BuluieaT
BWOdUI dAIBUIB)E YIM pajeloosse Ajjueuiwopald ‘abueyd Jo S}s0o pajiwie
S}S09d U@:QE_ sJepInold Jo abuey S82IJN0SaJ pUB 9JUE]SISSE [BO)joBId

aouepinb pue
siapinold Jo sbuey B2IAPE ‘Uoljewloul [ed1uyoa) g [eba

siapinold Jo abuey uoddns juswdojarag

Ag paianileg uonoun4

(SO

QoUR/ Y UI9dU0))
a8y

‘uoisinodd |1e dn syoid 19)e .
_ (uoisinoad 10841p pue BuluoISSILIWOD

SOr120as1 elA) AIAOB SSS pun) 0} S9SE30 SdH »
MBIAIBAQ

aJnjonis

sasean bulpun{ SdH

215



216



	Agenda
	
	3 MINUTES
	4 JOINT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/14 AND BUDGET UPDATE 2011/12
	JMTFS 2011_14 Cabinet 120111

	5 JOINT CORPORATE PLAN 2011/14
	6 RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW OF HOME CARE
	Appendix A Original Report of Home Care Review
	Appendix B Amended Action Plan  Final Version

	7 REVIEW OF THIRD SECTOR SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
	Review of Support Services - ITSSB Scrutiny Panel FINAL report
	TSSSR Working Group Terms of Reference Adopted 080710 SE additions 130910
	Herefordshire TSSR report 251110 FINAL FINAL DRAFT for issue


